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As a bank with over 76 years of history in Hong Kong,
Dah Sing Bank has been committed to our vision to be “the
local bank with a personal touch”. Customer centricity
lies at the heart of everything we do, as we continually
uplift the quality of our products and services. We strive
to grow with our customers in Hong Kong, the Greater Bay
Area and beyond, delivering on our promise - “Together
We Progress and Prosper”.
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AT

KB EBTIT HKS Million 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
KEEE Shareholders’ funds 27,271 28,441 29,913 29,914 32,578
EIMERME TR Additional equity instruments 899 899 899 311 311
BEBHS Subordinated notes 5,510 3,828 4,128 3,801 5,917
E=YEE N Deposits from customers 182,629 190,340 196,135 199,792 207,234
BEEITIFEREE Certificates of deposit issued 6,751 8,126 6,590 4,229 2,428
pe® ek Total deposits 189,380 198,466 202,725 204,021 209,662
BERE Total liabilities

(BIERERER) (including subordinated notes) 215,222 217,951 218,168 221,861 227,855
EREMX Advances to customers

(FEEESZR) (excluding trade bills) 136,947 137,577 144,313 136,530 143,049
BERE Total assets 243,406 247,306 248,979 252,086 260,744
AEERE IR A Profit attributable to shareholders 2,240 1,493 1,658 1,609 1,860
PHERERE Total dividend distribution 675 422 478 548 843
LOBITIIZR HKS
SRERERF Basic earnings per share 1.59 1.06 1.18 1.14 1.32
SFRIRE Dividends per share 0.48 0.30 0.34 0.39 0.60
KBS SR Percentage %
EREEREEE(551)  Loan to deposit ratio (Note 1) 72.3 69.3 71.2% 66.9% 68.2%
5 Note:
1 BERHEEREEAETFREREE (FEEESZE 1. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as the ratio of total advances to

) HIERHERE (AR B ETINTEAGEE) Z = - customers (excluding trade bills) to total deposits (including certificates of

deposit issued).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EREMFREE BERE
Advances to customers / Total deposits Total assets
EEE5T HKS Million BT HKS Million

143,049
23 23 260,744
209,662
136,530 5
2 oo 2 252,086
204,021
144,313 B
21 L 21 248,979
202,725
137,577 N
20 o 20 247,306
198,466
136,947
19 Sl 19 243,406
189,380
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SZh (R~ =) N
ERER(FIIEERER) e EEeE
Advances to customers Total deposits Total assets
(excluding trade bills)
— E (FUEE 5 TR BiEa (FIEBRITHENEE) b
Loan (excluding trade bills) to deposit
(including certificates of deposit issued) ratio
BREARREN SRR
RRES Basic earnings per share /
Shareholders’ funds Dividends per share
BEET HKS Million JBIT HKS
0.39
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Shareholders’ funds Dividends per share Basic earnings per share
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive
Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Blair Chilton Pickerell

Paul Franz Winkelmann

David Wai-Hung Tam

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan

Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Paul Franz Winkelmann
Chairman

Robert Tsai-To Sze

Blair Chilton Pickerell

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Chairman

David Wai-Hung Tam

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Richard Tsung-Yung Li

CORPORATE INFORMATION

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

AUDITORS

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

SOLICITORS
Herbert Smith Freehills

REGISTERED OFFICE

26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre

248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: 2507 8866

Fax: 2598 5052

S.W.I.F.T.: DSBAHKHH

Website: http://www.dahsing.com

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong

SHARE LISTING AND STOCK CODE

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 2356

MAJOR BANKING SUBSIDIARIES

Dah Sing Bank, Limited
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

(Please see pages 340 to 344 of this annual report for
respective lists of branches.)
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S PROFILE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Mr. Wong, aged 83, was appointed as the Chairman of
the Company in 2004. He is also the Chairman of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, a substantial
shareholder of the Company as defined under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited), Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”, a key
operating subsidiary of the Company), Banco Comercial de
Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance Company Limited (formerly
known as Dah Sing Insurance Company (1976) Limited)
and Macau Insurance Company Limited. He was a member
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, DSFH and DSB until December 2023. Mr. Wong is
the Honorary President of Guangdong Chamber of Foreign
Investors. He was the Vice President of The Hong Kong
Institute of Bankers. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Electrical Engineering from Massachusetts Institute of
Technology and has over 60 years of experience in banking
and finance. He is the father of Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong,
an Executive Director and the Group General Manager of
DSFH and the Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief
Executive of DSB.

Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Mr. Wong, aged 71, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in 2004 and promoted as the Vice Chairman
in April 2011. He was appointed as the Managing Director
and Chief Executive of the Company in June 2017. Mr.
Wong joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited in 1977 and has served
and managed various departments before appointed as a
Director in 1989, promoted to the Managing Director in 2000
and then appointed as the Vice Chairman in April 2011. He
is the Managing Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (a substantial shareholder of the
Company as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited)
and a director of various major subsidiaries of the Group. He
was the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited for the
period from June 2008 to August 2023. He is a Non-Executive
Director and Vice Chairman of Bank of Chongging Co., Ltd.
(listed in Hong Kong and Shanghai) in which the Group has
a 13.2% equity interest. Mr. Wong is an Associate of The
Institute of Bankers (U.K.) and a Founder Member of The
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and The International Retail
Banking Council of the U.K. He holds a Higher Diploma in
Business Studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic College
(now known as Hong Kong Polytechnic University) and has
over 45 years of experience in banking.

Mr. Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Sze, aged 83, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director of the Company in 2004. He is also an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial
Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, a substantial shareholder of the
Company as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited),
Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and Dah Sing Insurance
Company Limited (formerly known as Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited). He is currently the Chairman
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Company,
DSFH and DSB. He served as the Chairman of the AC of the
Company, DSFH and DSB until December 2023. Mr. Sze is an
Independent Non-Executive Director of Nanyang Holdings
Limited and Sunwah Kingsway Capital Holdings Limited.
He was an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hop Hing
Group Holdings Limited which was delisted in January 2022
and Mr. Sze resigned in February 2022. Mr. Sze is a Fellow of
The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He
was a former partner of an international firm of accountants
with which he practised for over 20 years.
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Mr. Blair Chilton Pickerell
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Pickerell, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent Non-
Executive Director (“INED”) of the Company in December 2017
and a member of the Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Company
in June 2021. He was also appointed as an INED of Dah Sing
Bank, Limited (“DSB”) in December 2017, a member of the
Risk Management and Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) of
DSB in August 2018 and the Chairman of the RMCC of DSB in
June 2020 and a member of the AC of DSB in June 2021.

Mr. Pickerell is an Independent Director and a member of
the Finance Committee and Nominating and Governance
Committee of The Principal Financial Group, Inc. (which is
listed on NASDAQ in the U.S.). He is an INED and a member
of the Nomination Committee and the Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee of Link Real Estate Investment
Trust (which is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). He is an INED and a member
of the Finance Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of First Pacific Company Limited (which is listed
on the Stock Exchange). He is also a director of Vision 2047
Foundation and a member of the Supervisory Committee
of The Tracker Fund of Hong Kong (a Hong Kong unit trust
whose units are listed on the Stock Exchange). He is the
Chairman of Harvard Business School Association of Hong
Kong Limited and a member of the International Advisory
Council of the Faculty of Business and Economics of The
University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Pickerell was a court member of The University of Hong
Kong from December 2008 to November 2014 and a member
of the Main Board and GEM Listing Committees of the Stock
Exchange from July 2015 to July 2016. He was an INED and
a member of the AC of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(the parent company of the Company) from June 2013 to
December 2017.

Mr. Pickerell joined Nikko Asset Management Group as the
Head of Asia and Global Chief Marketing Officer in 2010 and
served as the Chairman, Asia of Nikko Asset Management
Company until July 2015. He joined Jardine Matheson
Holdings Group in 1984 and held various positions in
Jardine Matheson Holdings Group. In 2003, he joined
HSBC Investments (Hong Kong) Limited (now known as
HSBC Global Asset Management (Hong Kong) Limited) as
Chief Executive, Asia Pacific. From 2007 to 2010, he served
as Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer, Asia of
Morgan Stanley Investment Management.

Mr. Pickerell holds an MBA degree from Harvard Business
School, U.S.A. and an MA degree (in East Asian Studies) and
a BA degree (in Political Science) from Stanford University,
U.S.A.

Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Winkelmann, aged 68, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and the Chairman of the
Audit Committee (“AC”) of the Company in January 2024.
Mr. Winkelmann is currently an INED and the Chairman of
the AC of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”, a
substantial shareholder of the Company as defined under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) and Dah Sing Bank,
Limited (“DSB”). He is also a member of Risk Management
and Compliance Committee of DSB. Mr. Winkelmann joined
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) in 1984 and was admitted
to partnership in 1990 to become a member of the first
group of partners to set up PwC’s financial services practice
in Hong Kong. He specialized in the audits of financial
institutions, both local and international. He was partner-
in-charge of PwC’s risk and compliance matters for Greater
China for 14 years up to June 2014. He was also the leader
of PwC’s Greater China Risk and Quality function overseeing
auditing and ethical standards within PwC. In 2001, he joined
the governance Board of Partners of PwC in Hong Kong and
subsequently was appointed to the Management Board
of PwC China and Hong Kong. Following his retirement
from PwC Hong Kong in June 2014, Mr. Winkelmann was
engaged as a senior advisor of PwC in Hong Kong on risk
and quality matters during the period from July 2014 to
December 2015. Mr. Winkelmann is currently an INED and
a Non-Industry Member of the General Committee of the
Insurance Complaints Bureau. He is also the Non-IA Eligible
DP Member of Disciplinary Panel Pool of the Insurance
Authority. He was the Chairman of the Financial Reporting
Standards Committee of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) from 2004 to 2009 and the
President of HKICPA in 2009. In 2005, he was appointed
to the Standing Committee on Company Law Reform and
served for a period of 6 years. Mr. Winkelmann was the
Chief Executive Officer of Financial Reporting Council of
Hong Kong (now known as the Accounting and Financial
Reporting Council) from April 2016 to March 2019. He is a
fellow member of the HKICPA. He holds a Bachelor of Arts
(Business) Degree from Trinity College, Dublin.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023
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Mr. David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Tam, aged 74, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Company in June
2021. He was appointed as an INED of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited (“DSB”) in March 2019 and a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company
and DSB in January 2024. Mr. Tam was an INED of Dah
Sing Financial Holdings Limited (the parent company of
the Company) during the period from December 2018
to June 2021 and a member of the Risk Management
and Compliance Committee of DSB from March 2019
to December 2023. Mr. Tam started his career with The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited in
1968 and held various senior positions until February 1999.
In March 1999, Mr. Tam joined Hang Seng Bank Limited and
was the Deputy General Manager and Head of Commercial
Banking during 2003 to 2008 and the Chief Risk Officer from
2008 until his retirement in 2012. He was a director of Yantai
Bank, a city commercial bank in Yantai, from December
2012 to June 2017. He resigned as a Non-Executive Director
of Nameson Holdings Limited in April 2022 and retired as an
INED of Xinyi Glass Holdings Limited in June 2022. Mr. Tam
is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of Bankers
and The Chartered Institute of Bankers in the U.K. and an
associate of The Institute of Bankers. He holds a master’s
degree in Business Administration from the University
of Toronto, Canada. Mr. Tam has more than 45 years of
experience in commercial banking industry in Hong Kong
and the PRC.

Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan
Independent Non-Executive Director

Ms. Chan, aged 62, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) and a member of the Audit
Committee (“AC”) of the Company and Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”) in January 2024. From March 2022 to December 2023,
she was an INED and a member of the AC, the Connected
Transactions Control Committee, the Risk Management
Committee and the Strategy Committee, and the Chairman
of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing
Bank (China) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of DSB. Ms.
Chan joined Bank of Communications Co. Limited, Hong Kong
Branch (“BOCOM”) as a management trainee in July 1981.
She was the Assistant General Manager of BOCOM from April
1992 to June 1998, primarily responsible for the formulation
and implementation of the operation procedures for trade
finance, loan administration and bancassurance business,
and she also led the trade finance and loan operations
centralization project. Ms. Chan was the Deputy General
Manager of BOCOM from July 1998 to March 2021 responsible
for overseeing the daily operation of trade finance, loan
administration, remittance and retail banking business and
the launch of private banking business. She was appointed as
Alternate Chief Executive of BOCOM in August 2002. Ms. Chan
was a Director of Bank of Communications Trustee Limited
from September 1999 to October 2019 and was appointed
as the Chairman in June 2006. She was the Vice Chairman,
Director and Chief Executive of Bank of Communications
(Hong Kong) Limited before her retirement in June 2021.
She has over 38 years of experience in the financial industry.
Ms. Chan is an associate member of The Chartered Institute
of Bankers, United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers (“HKIB”). She is a Fellow of The Hong Kong Institute
of Directors and a Certified Banker of HKIB. Ms. Chan holds
a Master of Science degree in Information and Technology
Management from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and
a Master of Corporate Finance degree from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.
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Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)
Independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Cheung, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent
Non-Executive Director (“INED”) of the Company and
an INED and a member of the Risk Management and
Compliance Committee of Dah Sing Bank, Limited in January
2024. Mr. Cheung worked with DBS Bank (Hong Kong)
Limited (“DBS”) from July 2009 to December 2022 where
he served as Managing Director and Head of Institutional
Banking Group in Hong Kong from June 2011 until his
retirement in December 2022, responsible for growing
DBS’s franchise in the corporate and commercial banking
businesses in Hong Kong. He was also the Alternate Chief
Executive of DBS from December 2012 to December 2022.
Prior to joining DBS, he was the Regional General Manager,
North East Asia and General Manager of Oversea-Chinese
Banking Corporation Limited, Hong Kong Branch. Prior to
such appointments, Mr. Cheung held senior positions in
corporate commercial banking and risk management with
major international banks including Citibank, Hong Kong,
ABN AMRO Bank N.V., Hong Kong and Rabobank, Hong Kong
Branch. Mr. Cheung has over 40 years of corporate and
commercial banking experience. Mr. Cheung is currently as
an INED of K. Wah International Holdings Limited and Yuexiu
Property Company Limited (both are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited). He is the Chairman of the
Board of Governors of World Green Organisation, a member
of the Hong Kong Academy of Finance and a member of
the Advisory Committee on Accounting and Finance of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He was a member of
the Advisory Board of Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance
Corporation from 2011 to 2016 and a member of the Banking
Industry Training Advisory Committee from 2021 to 2023.
Mr. Cheung holds a Bachelor of Social Sciences degree in
Economics from the University of Hong Kong.

Mr. Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director

Mr. Wang, aged 63, was appointed as an Executive Director
of the Company in 2004. He joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”) as the Group Financial Controller in 1995 and was
promoted as a Director in 1997, responsible for the overall
financial management and control, operations and IT
functions of the Group for a number of years. Mr. Wang was
promoted as the Managing Director and Chief Executive of
DSB in May 2011 and was re-designated as the Deputy Chief
Executive and Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in August
2017. He is also an Executive Director and Deputy Chief
Executive of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”,
a substantial shareholder of the Company as defined under
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited), as well as a Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”). He was appointed as the Chairman
of DSB China in November 2023 and a member of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company,
DSFH and DSB in January 2024. Mr. Wang was the Group
Chief Financial and Operating Officer of the Company,
DSFH and DSB until June 2021. Mr. Wang is a qualified
accountant, a Fellow of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He holds a
Bachelor of Social Sciences degree from The University of
Hong Kong and has over 35 years of experience in financial
management and banking.

Mr. Nicholas John Mayhew
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive

Mr. Mayhew, aged 56, was appointed as an Executive
Director and the Deputy Chief Executive of the Company
in June 2017. He is currently an Executive Director of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and a Director of Dah Sing
Insurance Company Limited (formerly known as Dah Sing
Insurance Company (1976) Limited) and Macau Insurance
Company Limited. Mr. Mayhew also serves as the Deputy
Chief Executive of DSB and Group Head of Treasury, Global
Markets & Corporate Finance of DSB, responsible for its
treasury and corporate finance activities. Mr. Mayhew was
an Executive Director of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited
(the parent company of the Company) during the period
from August 2004 to May 2017. Mr. Mayhew holds a Bachelor
of Arts degree (Hons) (in Chinese and Economics) from the
University of London. He has over 30 years of experience in
financial services both in the U.K. and Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Harold Tsu-Hing Wong
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Mr. Wong, aged 54, is currently a Vice Chairman, Managing
Director and Chief Executive of Dah Sing Bank, Limited
(“DSB”). Mr. Wong joined DSB in 2000, and was appointed as
an Executive Director in 2005 and a Vice Chairman in March
2010. Mr. Wong was appointed as Managing Director and
Chief Executive of DSB in August 2017. From April 2011 to
June 2017, he was an Executive Director, Managing Director
and Chief Executive of the Company. He was appointed as
the Group General Manager of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited (“DSFH”, a substantial shareholder of the Company
as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited) in
April 2011 and appointed as an Executive Director of DSFH in
January 2024. He is also a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited, Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A., Dah Sing Insurance
Company Limited (formerly known as Dah Sing Insurance
Company (1976) Limited), Macau Insurance Company
Limited and Macau Pension Fund Management Company
Limited. Mr. Wong is currently an Executive Committee
Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a Non-official
member of the Industry Advisory Committee on Long Term
Business established by the Insurance Authority and a Non-
official Member of the Trade and Industry Advisory Board of
the Trade and Industry Department. Mr. Wong holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from Harvard University,
U.S.A. and a Bachelor of Laws (Honours) degree from King’s
College, London, and is a qualified solicitor in England and
Wales and in Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a son of Mr. David Shou-
Yeh Wong, the Chairman of the Boards of the Company, DSB
and DSFH.

Ms. Phoebe Mei-Chun Wong
Executive Director and Deputy Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Ms. Wong, aged 57, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
as Head of Retail Banking in February 2012, responsible for
the development and management of overall retail banking,
bancassurance, retail brokerage, wealth management
businesses, private banking and vehicle financing. She was
appointed as an Executive Director of DSB in May 2012 and
an Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in May 2014. She was
further appointed as a Deputy Chief Executive of DSB and
Group Head of Personal Banking in April 2022. Ms. Wong
holds a Master of Business Administration degree from
Brunel University (UK) via Henley Management College and
a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Hong Kong.
She has over 30 years of experience in retail and personal
banking business with other banks operating in Hong
Kong, including Standard Chartered Bank and CITIC Bank
International.

Ms. Barbara Yuen-Lai Ma
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Ms. Ma, aged 57, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
as Group Head of Corporate Banking in February 2020,
responsible for overseeing and supervising corporate
banking business. She was appointed as an Executive
Director and an Alternate Chief Executive of DSB in February
2021. She has over 30 years of solid banking experience
in Hong Kong, the United Kingdom and the United States,
mainly in commercial and corporate banking with a full
spectrum of clients in various sectors. Ms. Ma attained a
Bachelor of Science in Economics from The London School
of Economics and Political Science.
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Mr. Cliff Wai-Kin Chan
Executive Director and Alternate Chief Executive of
Dah Sing Bank, Limited

Mr. Chan, aged 52, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”)
as General Manager and Head of Wealth Management in
2009, and was appointed as an Executive Director of DSB in
March 2019. He was further appointed as an Alternate Chief
Executive of DSB in June 2022. Mr. Chan is Group Head of
Wealth Management and is responsible for the formulation
and execution of overall business strategies of DSB’s wealth
management business, including securities brokerage,
retail wealth management, and private banking. He holds
a Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Cambridge
and a Master degree in Business Administration from
the Harvard Business School. He is a Chartered Financial
Analyst of the CFA Institute and a Certified Private Wealth
Professional of the Private Wealth Management Association.
Mr. Chan has over 25 years of extensive experience in various
areas including financial services, manufacturing and public

administration.

Mr. Eric Ka-Yeung Ho
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited

Mr. Ho, aged 51, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) in
July 2007. He was the Head of Corporate Development,
Strategy and Investor Relations of the Group before the
appointment as a Director of Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited
(“DSB China”), a key operating subsidiary of the Company,
in November 2018. He was then appointed as an Executive
Director of DSB China in June 2020 and the Chief Executive
Officer of DSB China in July 2021. Mr. Ho has over 25 years
of experience in finance and banking industry in China and
Hong Kong. He worked for investment bank, international
commercial bank and international accounting firm before
joining DSB.

Mr. Pak-Hung Lau
Chief Executive Officer and Director of
Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A.

Mr. Lau, aged 59, joined Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) and
was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer and a Director
of Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (incorporated in Macau),
a key subsidiary of the Company, in January 2020. Mr. Lau
has over 37 years of solid banking experience in Hong Kong
and Macau. He started his career in banking by joining HSBC
in 1986 and immediately before joining DSB, he was the CEO
of HSBC Macau Branch.
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In 2023 we continued our efforts to make progress in our
business while maintaining financial stability and sustaining
the quality development of our core businesses amidst
external challenges in our major markets. We have grown
our businesses in line with our strategy to leverage our
franchises in Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China, and
continue to seek opportunities in the Greater Bay Area.

During the year, we saw a material improvement in net
interest income and net trading income and other income,
whilst net fee and commission income, excluding the gain
on the termination of our previous insurance distribution
agreement in the previous year, was higher than 2022.
Moreover, we achieved key milestones in developing and
growing our businesses in the year including an exclusive
15-Year Bancassurance Partnership with Sun Life in Hong
Kong; and the opening of the new Shenzhen Branch as we
became the first foreign bank granted a “Dual Operating
Licence” in Mainland China.

BANCASSURANCE ALLIANCE WITH SUN LIFE
HONG KONG

We were delighted to announce in January 2023 that we
had entered into an exclusive 15-year bancassurance
partnership in Hong Kong with Sun Life Group for the
distribution of Sun Life products starting from July 2023.
The new bancassurance agreement has offered our wealth
management customers the choice of a diverse range of life
and protection products through our strong franchise and
distribution network of over 40 branches in Hong Kong.

It was our pleasure to partner with the world-class
protection solution provider Sun Life Group, and we look
forward to strengthening our relationship further in the
years to come.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

OPENING OF NEW SHENZHEN BRANCH IN
QIANHAI

Our subsidiary Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) celebrated
the official opening of its new Shenzhen Branch in Qianhai
on 1 August 2023. We became the first foreign bank in
Mainland China to be granted a dual operating licence and
set up a local branch in addition to our locally incorporated
wholly-owned bank, Dah Sing Bank (China) Limited.

In line with our GBA strategy, the new Shenzhen Branch
focuses on Renminbi lending, deposits and remittance
services for corporate customers onshore, which also
better positions the Group against the backdrop of RMB
internationalisation.

Despite the market challenges such as rising inflation
and tightened monetary policy by central banks of major
economies, we reported an increase in profit for the year of
16% to HK$1,860 million for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Benefiting from the rebound of interest rates during the
year, DSB’s net interest margin has widened, resulting in
an increase in net interest income by 10% as compared to
2022. The net interest margin rose by 16 basis points due
both to higher market interest rates and to our efforts to
control our funding cost during the year. Despite relatively
subdued loan demand in our core markets, loan balances
rose slightly across most business lines, and our overall loan
balances grew by 5%.
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Our FX related business for customers was robust with
improved business from customers in both Personal
Banking and Corporate Banking. Overall, net fee and
commission income recorded a modest increase of 1%
as compared to last year excluding the HK$1,394 million
one-off gain recognised upon termination of the previous
bancassurance distribution agreement in 2022. As the
15-Year Bancassurance Partnership with Sun Life became
effective on 1 July 2023, the distribution of insurance
products to our retail customers has resumed in the second
half of 2023 and the results to date are encouraging.

Operating profit before impairment losses decreased by
28% mainly due to the one-off gain of HK$1,394 million in
2022, as mentioned above. Excluding this item, operating
profit before impairment losses was up by 14%, and
non-interest income was up by 5% for the year. Our credit
cost fell by 9% as compared to 2022 although it remained
somewhat high during the year, with credit impairment
losses at HK$731 million. A large part of the reduction
was attributable to our corporate banking business as we
continued to take proactive risk management measures in
the current business environment.

We recorded an increase in our share of the net profit of
our associate, Bank of Chongging (“BOCQ”), for the year to
HK$689 million. After we updated the impairment model in
2022 to reflect the latest economic conditions and projection
of BOCQ’s future performance, recording an impairment
charge of HK$1,683 million, the total impairment charge
on the basis of the updated model for the 2023 year was
HK$552 million. It should be noted that the provision made
relating to BOCQ is non-cash and does not affect our capital
adequacy.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

In 2023, economic growth in Hong Kong remained relatively
sluggish, with subdued loan demand and generally higher
market interest rates. The continued rate increases had an
impact on the capacity of certain borrowers to repay debts,
and on loan demand amongst customers, and resulted in
weak performance in loan growth in the banking industry
during the year. The rate hikes also led to challenges
in terms of more expensive funding and higher interest
expenses, as customers switched their placement of funds
to higher rate deposits. The rate hike cycle is expected to
end in 2024 and a reduction in rates may start to take place
later this year. However, there are market expectations that
a somewhat higher interest rate level will potentially remain
for some time, which should continue to be of benefit to
our net interest margin. Furthermore, in response to the
weak property sectors in both China and Hong Kong, policy
changes have been made to ease market conditions, which
hopefully will provide the market with some stabilisation.

With the increasing integration and rapid development of
the Greater Bay Area, consumer sentiment has improved
and is expected to support the increase in outbound
and inbound travel from and to Hong Kong. That said,
Hong Kong as our core market continues to maintain its
stable economic conditions and competitive advantages,
including well-developed infrastructure, low taxation,
strong institutions and robust banking system. We expect
the banking sector of Hong Kong to remain stable under a
stringent regulatory environment with generally very high
levels of bank capital and liquidity.

Our strategy aligns with the development of the Greater
Bay Area, with Dah Sing Bank operating both a branch
in Shenzhen and a wholly-owned subsidiary bank in the
Mainland to serve our target customers. The “dual operating
licence” allows us to gradually expand our cross-boundary
business to gain a wider footprint in the Greater Bay Area. At
the same time, the life insurance sales to our retail banking
customers was resumed in mid-2023. This is very important
in serving our customers with a range of financial services
and products throughout different stages in their lives. As
a result, we have increased our team of financial planning
managers to support the relaunch of bancassurance
business. We are glad to achieve these two important
milestones in 2023. We have enhanced our capabilities
in wealth management business and corporate banking
business in the Greater Bay Area as two key drivers of our
long-term growth.
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Dah Sing Bank celebrated on 1 August 2023 the opening of
our new Shenzhen Branch in the Qianhai Shenzhen Hong
Kong International Financial City, marking an important
milestone as the first foreign bank in China granted a dual
operating licence to set up a local branch in addition to our
locally incorporated bank. The new Shenzhen Branch will
enable the Group to deploy the combined resources of Dah
Sing Bank, Banco Comercial de Macau and Dah Sing Bank
(China) flexibly and to respond nimbly to the needs of our
customers. It will also better position the Group against
the backdrop of RMB internationalisation and the financial
markets in Hong Kong and the Mainland becoming more
integrated.



During 2023, we successfully completed the implementation
of our new core banking system. We continue to invest in
technology and the digitalization of our banking services,
both to improve our service to customers, and to improve
efficiency. This is an ongoing process as a greater proportion
of our transactions move from branch based to online/
remote.

Looking forward, we expect challenges to remain with the
banking industry in the near term. In particular, higher credit
risk is one of the considerations, with credit cost expected to
remain relatively high across banks and the financial system
as a whole. In order to maintain healthy asset quality, we
are managing credit risk in our loan and asset portfolios in a

prudent manner.

Both our capital adequacy and liquidity remain robust,
enabling us not only to meet the challenges of a difficult
business environment, but also to position us for growth
should market conditions allow. Liquidity conditions
domestically in Hong Kong, and our funding base, mainly
comprising domestic Hong Kong deposits, have stayed
strong in spite of the recent challenging times, and we
expect that to continue. We are ready to accelerate the

growth of our business over the medium and longer term.

On behalf of the Board, we have declared a final dividend
of HK$0.49 per share, representing a total dividend for the
whole year of HK$0.60, an increase of 53% compared to the
HK$0.39in 2022.

Last but not least, | take the pleasure in thanking my
fellow directors for their valuable contribution. In addition,
I would like to thank the management team and staff
members of Dah Sing Financial Group for their dedication
in tackling the challenges and commitment to keeping our
business running smoothly over the past year, and also our
appreciation of the long-term trust and support from our
customers and shareholders. | believe that the dedication
and flexibility from my colleagues will help us achieve the
goals of the Group’s development in driving the business

performance.

David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024

R @D x 37 4R 7
' €a) DAHSINGBANK

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023




24

e ]
MFEE
rEEERGEUBERIBREGIINTE !

20234 2022 G|
SEEE 2.01% 1.85%
BEET
IBUA 5,916.1 6,826.3 (13.3%)
NREERERER 2 EERT) 2,747.2 3,810.3 (27.9%)
MNREERERBBRZ EE R 2,015.9 3,007.2 (33.0%)
FRIS AT A 2,141.6 1,970.0 8.7%
EERF 1,860.3 1,608.8 15.6%
TEEREEATIRE Z RBE T 1,723.3 2,635.1 (34.6%)
ZEAREZ 143,049 136,530 4.8%
EEES 207,234 199,792 3.7%
E?ﬂ‘ﬁﬁﬁf ) 2,428 4,229 (42.6%)
TEHas 209,662 204,021 2.8%
BIEEE 5,917 3,801 55.6%
ERCFrEREESER HER (BEEETHFERGE) thX 68.2% 66.9%
BRASE WA LB 53.6% 44.2%
RA7%5[ClEE FANH BRI B0 22 FE NI B ROVE RSB L » REEE

BAEN2022F 82153 TN A K > BAE20235F3.2%8
E1§'§ AR BEENNERT  REERAEIREAM
KO > MNP SR AEE T I 2 BRI & T K P B Y AR5 [0]
FHERTEHAMIER ©

1220235 > EENEMMBHORETEI03% > REER

14% U MERS A ERE » THERINE R EAM R E M BBt H O
EFRHFERENR °

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

R7.3%  ETFFRREMEBRKKRT T EESHEE
FRIELSS o BEEARTE RS TRRIME » AMAERTEE3%
M > BMERIBEEAS BEFABEREBRBA > HFT
RIFEHIAZT] ©

R2023EFENEE » miHEETHIRERIIR » RELIEIE
108489 EFE128M51.3 c FAAFEERBRERKLEM
= B BYERNZIBRIFIKTE o



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The highlights of the Group’s consolidated financial performance for the year are summarised in the table below:

2023 2022 Variance

Net interest margin 2.01% 1.85%
HKS Million
Operating income 5,916.1 6,826.3 (13.3%)
Operating profit before credit impairment losses 2,747.2 3,810.3 (27.9%)
Operating profit after credit impairment losses 2,015.9 3,007.2 (33.0%)
Profit before taxation 2,141.6 1,970.0 8.7%
Profit for the year 1,860.3 1,608.8 15.6%
Profit attributable to shareholders excluding the investment in 1,723.3 2,635.1 (34.6%)

an associate
Advances to customers 143,049 136,530 4.8%
Deposits from customers 207,234 199,792 3.7%
Certificates of deposit issued 2,428 4,229 (42.6%)
Total deposits 209,662 204,021 2.8%
Subordinated notes 5,917 3,801 55.6%
Loan (excluding trade bills) to deposit 68.2% 66.9%

(including certificates of deposit issued) ratio
Cost to income ratio 53.6% 44.2%

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Hong Kong economy expanded by 3.2% in 2023,
recovering from the 3.7% contraction recorded in 2022.
The reopening of the border amidst an easing of the COVID
pandemic helped bolster the domestic economy, while
external demand continued to be weighed down by a
sharp increase in interest rates globally and a weaker than
expected rebound in Mainland China’s economy.

Total exports of goods reduced by 10.3% year-on-year in real
terms in 2023, slightly improved from the 14% contraction
a year ago, as exports to both Mainland China and other
destinations showed signs of stabilisation toward the end of
the year.

Private consumption expenditure increased by 7.3% last
year from a low base on pent-up demand, although the
momentum softened in the second half of the year amidst
falls in property prices and the stock market. The local
unemployment rate fell below 3% as labour demand
recovered in service industries, with the rebound in the
labour force stalling despite an influx of immigrants through
various talent visa schemes.

Business sentiment showed signs of recovery in Q4 2023
with the purchasing manager index advancing to 51.3 in
December from 48.9 in October. Private non-construction
capital investments accelerated, but spending was still
lower than pre-pandemic levels.
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Domestic property prices declined by 7% last year
after falling by 15% in 2022. Total residential property
transactions shrank to around 45,000, the lowest in more
than a decade. The Government announced the easing of
property curb measures in October 2023 including down
payment requirements and stamp duties. It subsequently
removed all additional demand-side management measures
for residential properties in February 2024.

The prime rates of licensed banks in Hong Kong went up by
25 basis points in 2023 despite a 100-basis-point increase in
US policy rates. The Federal Reserve is expected to cut rates
in 2024 with inflation trending toward its 2% target level and
risks of an economic slowdown growing.

Mainland China reported GDP growth of 5.2% in 2023,
up from 3.0% in 2022. However, a continued cooling in
the property market and an uncertain economic outlook
hampered both consumption and investment growth.

Amidst the challenging business environment, the Group
reported an increase in profit attributable to shareholders
by 15.6%. Operating income was 13.3% lower than the
higher base in 2022, mainly attributable to the one-off
recognition of unamortised fees arising from the termination
of the Hong Kong Distribution Agreement with Tahoe Life
Insurance Company Limited.

Excluding this item, the normalised operating income
for 2023 would have been 8.9% higher than 2022, which
was driven by higher net interest income from a wider net
interest margin and higher asset yields during the year. Net
fee and commission income would also have increased by
1.4% if this item was excluded. Net trading income rose in
the year due to higher sales income and improved trading
results, partly offset by a higher funding swap cost, in
response to a widening HIBOR/LIBOR rate differential when
compared with the prior year.

Operating expenses grew by 5.1% due to increases in wages,
legal and professional fees incurred and other expenses
accruals, partly offset by lower depreciation and spending
on IT related projects. Credit impairment charges decreased
by 8.9% year-on-year, as a result of lower provisions for
credit losses on our exposures to the China property
developer sector.

Our businesses in Macau delivered stronger results due to
improved operating income and lower credit impairment
charges while Mainland China delivered weaker results
from higher credit impairment charges and lower operating
income primarily from reduced net interest income as
a result of the challenging business environment in the
Mainland.

The Group’s return on shareholders’ funds increased from
5.4% in 2022 to 6.0% in 2023. Cost to income ratio increased
from 44.2% in 2022 to 53.6% in 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, the consolidated Common Equity
Tier 1 ratio of Dah Sing Bank, Limited (“DSB”) increased to
16.2%, 1.0 percentage point higher than the level of 15.2% at
the end of 2022. Taking into account DSB’s outstanding Tier
2 subordinated debts, DSB’s consolidated capital adequacy
level at the year end was 21.2%, higher than the prior year
of 19.3%. Our Bank continued to operate well above the
minimum Liquidity Maintenance Ratio of 25%, reporting an
average level of 64.0% during the year. We believe that our
capital and liquidity ratios are maintained at levels within
the market range for both peer banks in Hong Kong, and
indeed for banks internationally.
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VIP Banking launched its “Just Like Family” marketing campaign in 2023 to
build brand awareness of our value proposition to stand by our customers
at every stage of their lives, helping them plan for their future and creating
tailor-made solutions for customers’ evolving financial needs.
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HIGHLIGHT OF BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
Personal Banking

Our Personal Banking business maintained a stable
underlying performance in 2023 despite the continued
business and economic disruptions from interest rate hikes,
high inflation, global geopolitical tension and the slow
post-COVID recovery. However, net profit was impacted
primarily due to the higher base in 2022 with the HK$1.4 billion
one-time gain on the termination of the former bancassurance
distribution agreement.

18 RREETade

RaRumE

REXKRERETF

Targeting the acquisition of new-to-bank customers, we
grew overall deposits modestly in 2023 despite the intense
competition for deposits in the market. In addition to the
6% increase year-on-year in our VIP Banking customer base,
our Retail SME customer base recorded growth of 34%
year-on-year. We were able to strengthen our customer
franchise by expanding our SME Banking network from
11 SME Banking Centres to 16 during the year and by
improving our SME account opening efficiency for customer
experience enhancement.

During the year, we maintained our market share in
personal loans with active promotions and collaborations
with various social media platforms to increase market

awareness.

In 2023, total credit card spending increased 11%
year-on-year. Along with various new card acquisition and
usage programmes, credit card balances rose by 4.6%
compared to the end of 2022.

RIRTIELEREERS > EATEEEZRE

BRATLRE BB EETIR o
DSB launched its US Stock Trading Service to offer its

customers a broader range of investment options.

Dah Sing Bank’s Central Branch on Des Voeux
Road Central has given the Group its iconic
presence in the heart of core Central in Hong
Kong ever since 1981. As part of a broader
strategy to gradually upgrade our branch
network for better customer experience, the
branch was remodeled into our second digital
flagship branch in Dah Sing Bank’s network
last year. Designed to be largely paperless in its
operations, the branch leverages technology
as an enabler for front-line staff to focus their
time more on listening to what our customers
need. The branch also features an exclusive
VIP Banking Centre as well as a 328 Business
Banking Centre to service different customer

segments in the prime business district.
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Wealth management remained a key focus in Personal
Banking to deliver customers personalised services with
investment and insurance solutions offered to suit different
life stages. During the year, VIP Banking maintained stable
growth of customer base and offered customers a diversified
range of wealth management services despite weak market
sentiment and volatility. The result was an increase in both
wealth management fees and customer foreign exchange
income. Meanwhile, the resumption of our bancassurance
business in July 2023 through our exclusive partnership with
Sun Life Hong Kong Limited gave our customers access to a
diverse range of life and protection products. In December
2023, we announced the addition of Bank of Dongguan
as our Northbound partner bank under the Wealth
Management Connect Scheme to expand the investment
choices for our customers seeking opportunities in China.

Dah Sing Bank’s Retail Banking Division launched its
15-year exclusive bancassurance collaboration with Sun
Life Hong Kong Limited in July 2023, an important step to
strengthen Dah Sing Bank’s wealth management franchise.
Both partners boasted strong business legacies in Hong
Kong, and shared the same commitment to understanding
and addressing customers’ needs across their different life
stages by delivering relevant and forward thinking wealth
and protection solutions, as illustrated by the joint customer
statement of “Life « Brighter Together”. As at the end of
2023, the collaboration has brought a meaningful range of
life and medical protection products throughout Dah Sing
Bank’s branch network in Hong Kong, with more varieties of
innovative products expected to be added in the near-term
future.

In addition, our Private Banking business continued to make
efforts to cross-sell to our Corporate Banking customers
through an enhanced personalised service model and
customised offerings to meet customers’ needs.

We have implemented our digital transformation to meet
different customers’ preferences. Innovative initiatives were
launched on our mobile banking platform in early 2023
including our first-to-market Voice Laisee and our in-app
gamification with instant e-coupons to enhance customer
engagement. During the year, digital transactions grew by
48%.

In line with our omni-channel strategy to serve our
customers, we invested resources in a programme to
gradually renovate and/or relocate our branches to improve
customer services and experience as well as to achieve
greater operational efficiency. As of the end of December
2023, our retail presence in Hong Kong totalled 42 branches
across Hong Kong, Kowloon and the New Territories,
including 27 VIP Banking centres and 16 SME banking
centres.

- Sun Life
X 9 4

@D 5 R 17 ‘
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Life - Brighter Together
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with Dah Sng Sanl, Sun Lifs Flong iKong and you

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

31



32

EEIRT

ERBITTHHRBHN—BEE > AEELEBTEBRER
ARFEAERERERETEREFRARE > HRBEFE
HE TN EIRITE R AR o

1202354 - BEEMBRBERINERRE - 2IKIREZH
18 o A > HHERZIEHEBE R EZHEBUAER RS
FHEAHEERMER - EEBRERERS kSN ENIBER
T EERRPHRESIFRTEE > HATERFEEESE
HARE CRITEREE o ILSh > ERR EARRIZT » A OBE
BRI EET R, S ERRABRENTRARBE
Moo ERHBIRIET - EHEMEERUAL » B RIERESE
BEIRNFTIESE > BERITEBI2023FERFEMFER -

BHEWAREERT > TEARERFEWAIEM > K
TREZAEXH - AT HHF I - ERNHEEAEN -
TEZREFMRFTRE > ERMAEAREEREERHTE
T FREREERIE -

RIRITEEBRAT) 2023FFiR

FFRBIMAR EFERIERT - HRERINERA ~ HEE
BWAKRERBA RIS EEREIR -

EMREBENER LA BRRLEEE - BEZEZEHY
hEEMEXNERMO - RFIREETERETAEGH
EEEER > BERERN - WRERELIRFEERR

EEIRTTEME BB CITIRTT (PR &1F - BBREERML
RPRBRT > PRECEZFETBRENEEBMARIRT
fRP - BAMERIUAMBRTEFMG > BERPEAMAT
EERPRERMHETER o M KIRITERAFE—BESER
FREVIRSNRT - TEARTIRIT (PE) B AR EHLUIMIER
AT > EREREEBRTBILXERTESE— LR -
HP—AEHEEREE T a8 RAEBIEMRRASZE

REBBEMR T ZFTHRBEBSIRITF A DS-DirecthAREF
RITHNEERET > MEENBLREEERPIERENE
mINEE - BBIRAE RS o LLSh > BERITIE—F BB
RBRRZIRA T RERRFER » IREBRBEPRME—
TMARFR B2 -

MAREERIBI M E - ERRITEEEEBRMEERR
REIRUERBPL > HRUEBRANEERTESETE
Bt o

RATRITIEBLI0F R ERE BN
BeXEmeREnN R hEERE
JARESE ) > W R2022 FFREE A2
B NEERERESE > R5
RIBITAFNEERBEERT
TSz 7FHIEE S o

DSB has been awarded the “Best
SME’s Partner Award”, organised by
The Hong Kong General Chamber
of Small and Medium Business, for
10 consecutive years and has won
the Gold Award for 2 consecutive
years since 2022. This achievement
recognised DSB’s effort in providing
quality services and support to SMEs.



Corporate Banking

Our Corporate Banking business continued to focus on
implementing customer account strategy across a range
of existing and targeted customer segments as part of the
execution of our medium term strategy, aiming to provide
diverse corporate banking products and services to our
customers.

In early 2023, global travel was gradually resumed when
borders reopened post-COVID. However, the market
recovery was hindered by ongoing headwinds arising from
a slow economy and widespread geopolitical tensions.
Against the backdrop of the continued weakening economic
environment and high interest rates, corporate customers
remained conservative in their funding plans while we have
remained disciplined in our credit underwriting standards.
Besides, many corporate customers proactively deleveraged
under the rising interest rate environment and/or diverted to
lower-cost onshore RMB borrowings. Our business reported
a mild net growth in 2023 given the sluggish environment
with shortfalls mainly in trade finance loans which was
partially offset by an increase in corporate lending.

Net interest income was stable versus the prior year,
primarily due to the increase in loan interest income,
which offset the higher interest expenses. Despite intense
market competition, loans slightly increased. Deposits from
corporate customers remained stable, enabling us to fund
our assets while effectively managing our liquidity.

In terms of non-interest income, there was a significant
improvement compared to the previous year. This
improvement was driven by higher foreign exchange
income, wealth management income, and income from
loans and cash management fees.

Loan impairment charges remained elevated, but was
lower than the previous year. The provisions made were
predominantly on exposures to the China real estate sector.
We will remain vigilant in monitoring the credit quality of
our loan portfolio, ensuring its resilience and in mitigating
any potential risks that may arise.

We continued to collaborate with DSB China. Through
providing onshore account opening witness services,
corporate customers in China are able to open Hong Kong
bank accounts in China without travelling across the border.
This provided opportunities to establish effective banking
relationships, while offering convenience to corporate
customers in China. Furthermore, DSB became the first
foreign bank to receive dual operating licenses to operate a
new Shenzhen branch in addition to its DSB China subsidiary
operations, which is intended to foster the further growth
of our corporate banking business in both Hong Kong and
China. One of our key focuses is to encourage cross platform
referrals and to develop cross-border solutions.

Investing in digital solutions and upgrading our digital
banking platform, DS-Direct, remained a priority. Our focus
on improving product capabilities in cash management
and the digital channel allowed us to enhance customer
experience. In addition, further streamlining of our internal
processes improved efficiency and service quality, which
aligned with our pursuit in delivering best-in-class services
to our customers.

Notwithstanding the challenging operating environment,
we continue to lay the ground work for building a stronger
corporate banking business by onboarding quality clients
and focusing on customer centricity.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

33



34

M ERIRIKTI5ER

1220235 > I ERIRERTIISES (TRAEZB) imFIg » Edhia
FIEI124.8% ETRAT6EE BT c FRAE LARZERS
FEHFEERF  FEEHLOIWILIMEL25% o FHFMIR
TRELF > FREFHEHEEEILIMNLT%E02EET o B
ERERRZEHAEM LA ERNFFNEWARIELITIEER
BITIENN22.5%E 1122 F5EE BT °

FERETFHENEBFEESHETTHERE > ERPEBNE
IR EEB A A KIRIENN o BIEIEEHIMNE AR E TR
ME > MESNES R EENAS S ERMEIN
BT WAER20224F ©

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

FRVEBNE A ERMEE T HEERIRABRES » 2%
SMNEARRAZEFSATIER) > WA TTEEBTELETTES
BIT o FNEEZLIENIT% o AT > BEEZHRYE
BERRE L AR RS HIE N - AERE A A 1EIN6.9% » FRR B A
BEMEREERES L - TEHARWEIEEEMIHRBEN3T6aE
AT ©

FR o UERFEEERDIE > TORBMESLEXRFRER
64.0% > AFRI%50.4% - ~EEMEREERHEEAS -
I0E B R B S EIRIGFE R E R 2 FEm BT R EA
o REURT AR EEAIRITHIRER -



Treasury and Global Markets

Our Treasury and Global Markets division reported higher
profit in 2023, with an increase in attributable profit of 24.8%
to HK$746 million. Rising, and generally higher interest rates
during the year were beneficial to net interest margin, which
increased from 1.03% to 1.25%. Average interest earning
assets grew by 1.7% to HK$90.2 billion during the course
of the year, taking advantage of the higher interest rates
available. With both higher margin, and higher volumes,
net interest income grew by 22.5% from HK$918 million to
HK$1,125 million for the year.

Average USD interest rates during the year continued to be
significantly higher than average HKD interest rates, which
led to a substantial increase in the cost of our funding swap
activities. Whilst non-hedging FX revenues were improved
over the prior year, the high cost of our funding swap
hedging activities led to lower overall trading income than
in 2022.

Our customer related sales and marketing performance
improved significantly during the year, mainly driven by FX
related business, and revenues were up by HK$27 million
to HK$127 million. Operating expenses increased by 16.7%
during the year. However, this was mainly driven by a
higher allocation of central expenses to Treasury and Global
Markets, whilst underlying costs were higher by 6.9%. There
was a modest write-back of impairment charges during
the year, due mainly to the HK$36 million recovery of an
investment that had been written off in a prior year.

Liquidity was prudently managed with the average Liquidity
Maintenance Ratio for the year being maintained at 64.0%,
compared to the 50.4% in the prior year. We maintained
our high quality liquid assets portfolio and managed the
cash flow of DSB in a conservative manner given the overall
challenging operating environment and uncertainties faced
during the course of the year.
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BCM introduced a new smart casual

summer uniform for its branch staff
as part of its “Joyful Green Journey”
campaign, which helped to support
environmental protection and to
refresh its brand image.



Banco Comercial de Macau

In 2023, Macau lifted all COVID-related travel restrictions.
The Gross Gaming Revenue and hotel occupancy rate were
the first to benefit, and both recovered to 60%-70% of
pre-COVID levels. However, the recovery of other industries
such as retail and real estate was at a much slower pace
and still clouded by the continuing uncertainty of the global
economic outlook.

Inevitably, Macau’s banking industry was also impacted
by strong headwinds, including weaker loan demand
and pessimistic investor sentiment, largely driven by
the increasingly high interest rate environment, surging
geopolitical tensions around the globe, and the slowing
down in China’s economic growth. The combined
effect of negative loan growth together with increasing
non-performing loans year-on-year has overall impaired the
profitability of the banks in 2023.

Amid such a difficult operating environment and challenges,
our subsidiary bank in Macau, Banco Comercial de Macau
(“BCM”) managed to increase its loan balance and customer
deposit balance by 4.1% and 12.9% year-on-year respectively,
outperforming the market in both measures. Notably,
the increase in customer deposit balance helped to
improve BCM’s net interest margin by replacing relatively
more expensive public funds and certificates of deposit.
Furthermore, additional surplus funds were deployed into
the treasury investment portfolio yielding a higher interest

income overall.

Attributable to the improved net interest margin and the
growth in loans, deposits and treasury investments, net
interest income increased by 17.0% compared to 2022.
Meanwhile, non-interest income was also higher than
prior year by 9.7%. On the other hand, operating expenses
were maintained at a mild growth of 3.4% year-on-year for
continued investments in IT and infrastructure projects. As a
result, operating profit before impairment losses was 39.5%
above 2022, and with improved impairment charges, net
profit soared by 382.2% year-on-year.

During the year, BCM continued to enhance its VIP
Banking franchise and onboarded a significant number of
new-to-bank VIP Banking customers via various business
campaigns, which provides BCM with great potential for
growing its wealth management business going forward.

In non-financial areas, BCM through its newly-established
Streamlining Task Force has driven a number of initiatives
to enhance operational excellence and efficiency, which also
enabled it to redeploy resources into business development
activities. Having been through the Customer Centricity
journey in recent years, where a variety of initiatives have
been rolled out, BCM has built and boosted the desired
culture to its staff, and in turn enhanced customer
experience with BCM.

In terms of ESG and external profile, in 2023 BCM launched
the “BCM Joyful Green Journey” programme, which
incorporated various green initiatives with positive feedback
from the market and senior government officials. The new
staff summer uniform was particularly well received by the
public which helped to improve BCM’s identity in Macau.
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15th anniversary milestone
and reaffirmed its strategy
and commitment for long-
term growth in Mainland
China.



Dah Sing Bank (China)

With the reopening of the border, Mainland China’s
economy began to recover, but the pace was dampened by
the onshore real estate crisis which impacted the market,
affecting investor confidence and credit appetite. As part
of the economic stimulus package, the China 1-year Loan
Prime Rate was revised down by 20 basis points from
3.65% to 3.45% in 2023. While boosting the local economy,
lowering of the Loan Prime Rate adversely impacted the
interest margin and overall asset yield. Because of this, DSB
China’s net interest margin reduced from 1.84% to 1.44%
which led to a decline in net interest income year-on-year.
Disposal and write off of certain non-performing loans
brought forward from prior years resulted in a lower NPL
ratio but higher impairment loss charged to the profit and
loss account. With all the hard work, non-interest income
increased due to a higher customer demand for foreign
exchange and currency risk management services in a
volatile foreign exchange market. Loans and deposits fell
slightly due to customers’ early repayments and intensified
market competition. Notwithstanding the challenging
operating environment, DSB China maintained its capital
ratios at a robust level.

The increase in credit risk became more noticeable in
2023. Both the demand and valuation of properties saw a
significant decline in many major cities. DSB China remained
thorough and vigilant in all new credit underwriting and
customer onboarding.

For the Group’s business growth in the Greater Bay Area
(“GBA”), DSB China proactively supported its parent bank
to re-establish the Shenzhen Branch, which opened for
business in August 2023. Dah Sing Bank is privileged to be
the first Hong Kong incorporated bank to obtain a successful
dual banking licence. This provides an important foundation
for future growth in both Hong Kong and the Mainland. To
pursue its cross-border business ambition in GBA, DSB China
stepped up its franchise building efforts during the year,
with particular focus in mobile platforms.

DSB China continues to operate in 6 major cities in China,
with a network comprising Shenzhen Headquarters,
branches in Shanghai, Nanchang, Zhenjiang, Guangzhou
with sub-branches in Foshan and Shenzhen Nanshan,
offering a wide range of commercial and retail bank lending,
deposits and other related banking services to customers
in China, specifically to customers in GBA with cross-border
banking needs.

Bank of Chongqing (“BOCQ”)

BOCQ delivered improvements in both business
performance and financial results in 2023, with its profit
attributable to shareholders up by 1.3%. Loan and deposits
grew by 11.4% and 8.4% respectively. It recorded slightly
lower operating income, which was mainly a result of lower
net interest income and lower net fee and commission
income. Its non-performing loan ratio and non-performing
loan coverage ratio at the end of 2023 were 1.3% and 234.2%
respectively, compared to 1.4% and 211.2% at the end of
2022.

BOCQ successfully issued undated capital bonds in October
2023 with gross proceeds of RMB2.5 billion, which helped
strengthen its capital base.

Our share of BOCQ net profit continued to be recognised
on the equity accounting basis, which amounted to
HKS$689 million in 2023. Due to a further lowering in the
Value in Use of our investment in BOCQ assessed in June
and also at the end of 2023, a total impairment charge of
HK$552 million was recognised in our 2023 consolidated
results, compared with HK$1,683 million in 2022.

While the impairment charge was lower than our share
of BOCQ net profit recorded in the year, the carrying
value of our investment in BOCQ, net of the total
impairment allowance, increased to HK$2,215 million as
at 31 December 2023 as compared with HK$2,159 million
as at 31 December 2022. This is mainly due to our share of
the other comprehensive income of BOCQ which was partly
offset by the depreciation of RMB against HKD during the
year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk limits or tolerances are set for the major risks inherent in
the Group’s operations, including both quantifiable risks
such as credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk, as well as less-quantifiable risks, which include
operational risk and reputation risk. These limits and
tolerances are monitored regularly by management
and reported to the Board level Risk Management and
Compliance Committee to achieve proper risk governance
and oversight.

Global markets and economies continued to face strong
headwinds in 2023. The magnitude of economic recovery
was below expectations as dollar interest rates continued
to rise. Meanwhile, geopolitical risks heightened with the
war between Russia and Ukraine prolonged and escalation
in the Israel-Palestine conflict. Trade conflicts between US
and China continued to intensify. These factors have led to
reduced economic activities, including international trade.
Domestically, the credit quality of the Mainland property
developer segment continued to deteriorate with more
companies reported to have difficulties in meeting their
debt servicing obligations, putting more pressure to the
local banking environment. To manage the risk exposures,
particularly those in the credit and market risk areas, the
Group conducted various reviews and took necessary
actions to manage the potential financial impact on the
Group arising from such risks. Cautious credit management
and investment management were adopted throughout the
year, in response to the challenging market and weak credit
demand.

Since the implementation of the accounting standard
HKFRS 9 starting 1 January 2018, the Group has
implemented a set of Expected Credit Loss (“ECL”) models
and other tools to assess the amount of the impairment
provisions required for the credit portfolios, taking into
account macroeconomic factors, risk characteristics of
portfolios, as well as forward-looking elements during the
ECL calculation process. Regular reviews were conducted
to assess the possible developments in the macroeconomic
environment, with updated situations of borrowers that
have experienced deterioration in credit performance or
may expect weaker credit quality. This ensured that major
issues which could affect credit losses in the future are
properly and fairly evaluated, with appropriate regard to the
forward-looking assessment and reasonable provisions for
ECL being maintained.

The Group continued to strengthen its internal controls
with the established dedicated control officer function in
the major divisions. These dedicated control officers work
closely with the control functions of the Group, to ensure
that adequate and effective internal controls are in place
for daily operations of respective divisions to comply
with internal control requirements of the Group as well as
regulatory guidance. End-to-end process reviews had been
conducted to identify areas for control enhancements,
and work on areas for further improvements. During the
year, the Group also established a fraud risk management
framework with a dedicated fraud risk management team
to help improve fraud awareness, detection and prevention
amidst the rapidly changing market environment and more
diverse business channels.

Moreover, the Group, based on the framework developed
in prior years, continued to develop its climate risk
management capabilities by supporting green and
sustainable banking initiatives. During 2023, the Group
participated in the Cross-Agency Steering Group Climate and
Environmental Risk Questionnaire for Non-listed companies
and invited a selected group of SME customers to respond to
the questionnaire with the aim to enhance their awareness
and understanding of potential impacts driven by climate
changes. On the other hand, the Group also enhanced
the granularity of its data as well as the assessment
methodologies with the plan to conduct another round of
climate risk stress testing in 2024. The result will help to
evaluate potential impacts arising from climate change, and
to plan for further actions in the coming years.
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CAPITAL AND LIQUIDITY

Group 2023 2022
Capital base of banking subsidiaries (HKS Million)

At 31 December

- Common Equity Tier 1 28,726 26,268
-Tierl 29,893 27,436
-Tier2 7,725 5,791
Total capital base after deductions 37,618 33,227
Capital adequacy ratio*

- Common Equity Tier 1 16.2% 15.2%
-Tierl 16.9% 15.9%
- Total 21.2% 19.3%
Liquidity maintenance ratio (average for the year) 64.0% 50.4%

The capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 represents the consolidated position of DSB (covering BCM and

DSB China) computed on Basel Il basis with reference to the Banking (Capital) Rules. This consolidated capital adequacy ratio takes into

account market risk and operational risk.

The liquidity maintenance ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar month’s average consolidated liquidity maintenance
ratio of DSB (covering BCM and DSB China) for the 12 months of the financial year, computed in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity)

Rules.

The Group continued to maintain healthy capital adequacy
ratios over the year.

Our Group continued to maintain throughout the year a
high liquidity maintenance ratio, backed by a strong pool
of liquid assets including high quality liquid assets (such
as Hong Kong Exchange Fund bills and notes), cash and
placements with banks, and other diversified marketable
securities held for investment and liquidity purposes.

Stress testing on our capital and liquidity positions is
a regular and ongoing exercise conducted by our risk
management function, with the results reviewed by
Management on a periodic basis. Regular update and
high-level reporting on our capital and liquidity positions,
including the results of stress testing, are submitted to the
Board-level Risk Management and Compliance Committee
and highlighted to the Board.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

In 2023, the Group’s commitment to promote its “Culture
& Values” continued. Once again, we launched the second
“Culture Week” in July 2023, with a virtual “Dah Sing
Cultureland” set as the theme. Staff were encouraged to
embrace the Group’s values through exploring 7 uniquely
designed adventures in the Dah Sing Cultureland, both
physically and virtually. On the other hand, the Group
continued its effort to promote a “speak-up” culture by
conducting a group-wide culture survey in October 2023.
Encouraging improvement has been observed on the
overall positive perception score. “Dah Sing Star Awards”
were rolled out for the eighth consecutive year to continue
recognising staff who consistently live our “Culture &
Values” in their daily work.

To prepare our staff for future prospects and opportunities,
in addition to the existing learning series on leadership
capabilities development, digitalisation, environmental,
social and governance, green and sustainable finance,
Greater Bay Area and cross-border businesses, a new
“Dialogue with Leaders” series, which featured sharing from
senior leaders of the Group on their leadership experience,
insight and advice, was kick-started in November 2023.

The Group considers employee wellness as one of the most
vital elements in building an engaged workforce. Various
flexible work arrangements and leave options have been
introduced throughout the past few years, and all these
measures have been formalised in 2023. The annual event
“Wellness Week” was launched again with different activities
promoting staff wellbeing. Staff medical coverage has also
been enhanced in 2023.

Despite the intense talent war in the banking industry
in 2023, especially for revenue generating positions, the
Group was able to maintain a similar headcount level
as that of 2022 and secure a team of financial planning
managers to support our newly established bancassurance
partnership with Sun Life to kick-start the distribution of
various insurance products in July 2023. Staff turnover also
improved significantly when compared with 2022.

More detailed information on our human resources

development is included under the section “Workplace” in

the 2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND
PRACTICES

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the Management
of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (“Company” or “Group”)
are committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance practices within the Group and devote
considerable effort to identify and formalize best practices.
We believe that sound and effective corporate governance
practices are essential for delivering sustainable value,
enhancing a culture of business integrity and maintaining
investors’ confidence. Good corporate governance
promotes and safeguards the interests of shareholders and
other stakeholders, thereby enhancing the credibility and
reputation of the Group.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all code
provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG
Code”) under Part 2 of Appendix C1 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) with the exception of code
provision F.2.2 as explained in the following relevant section.
This Corporate Governance Report has been prepared in
accordance with the requirements set out in Appendix C1 of
the Listing Rules, and explains how the Company applies the
principles of the CG Code.

CORPORATE CULTURE

The Group promotes its corporate culture in alignment
with its core values and vision, which enables the Group to
deliver its long-term strategies and create sustainable value
for its shareholders and other stakeholders. The Group is
committed to ensuring that its businesses are conducted
lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and in accordance with
high standards of business ethics and corporate governance.

The Directors take the lead in promoting the desired
corporate culture and ensuring that it is reflected
consistently in the policies and operating practices of
the Group. Corporate culture and expected behaviors are
clearly communicated to employees of the Group through
orientation and training and they are also freely accessible
on the intranet of the Group.

More information about the Group’s Vision, Mission, Culture
and Values is available on the website of Dah Sing Bank
(About Group profile section).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company has established a Board Governance
Policy and Procedures (“BGPP”) which covers corporate
governance structure and practices and is subject to review
on an annual basis to ensure its effectiveness.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company so as to promote its success and continued
growth. The Board plays a leading role in setting the
corporate values, culture and standards for the Group, and
promotes a sound corporate culture which reinforces the
values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly. The
Board is also responsible for ensuring that the Company
has sound systems of risk management, internal control
and regulatory compliance. The Directors, collectively and
individually, have a duty to act in good faith, and to take
decisions objectively in the interests of the Group. The Board
sets the business objectives for the Company, and monitors
the execution of those objectives by the Management of the
Company.

The Board has delegated the day-to-day responsibility of
running the Group to the Management, and has delegated
responsibility for certain matters to a number of
committees, which are described more fully in the following
sections. As defined in the Board’s terms of reference, there
are a number of matters which require the deliberation of
the full Board, and may not be delegated to the committees
of the Board or the Management. These reserved matters
include:

setting and overseeing the objectives and strategies of
the Group

- approving annual budget and business plan, and
monitoring performance and execution of plan

- establishing and overseeing risk governance

- appointment and oversight of senior management,
and ensuring competent management s in place

- setting corporate values, culture and standards, and

promoting a sound corporate culture which reinforces
the values of acting lawfully, ethically and responsibly
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ensuring a suitable and transparent corporate

structure

ensuring effective audit function and internal control

ensuring an appropriate level of effectiveness in respect
of the structure, operation and risk management

matters involving conflict of interest of substantial
shareholders or any Director

material acquisition or disposal of assets (not in the
ordinary business or operation of the Company),

- to review the Group’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements

- to review the code of conduct and compliance manual
applicable to employees and directors

- to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and approve disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report

The following is a summary of the matters relating to the
above corporate governance duties reviewed and discussed
by the Board in 2023:

investments and business reorganization

- appointment of Directors and also appointment of
individual Directors as the chairman or members of
Board Committees

- corporate governance functions in respect of the
development and review of policies and practices on
corporate governance

- overseeing management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk
management (including ESG risks) and internal
control systems

- evaluating and determining the Company’s ESG-
related strategy and risks, and ensuring that
appropriate and effective ESG risk management and
internal control systems are in place

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties including:

- to develop and review the Group’s policies and

practices on corporate governance

- to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management

Corporate Governance Report of 2022

Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) Report
of 2022

Management’s confirmation on effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems of the

Group

Change of the composition of the Board/Board
Committees

ESG development and progress made against ESG
strategy

Revised Terms of Reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee

Annual Review of the Board Governance Policy and
Procedures

Annual Review of the Shareholders Communication
Policy

Annual Review of the Board Diversity Policy

Annual Review of the Director Nomination Policy

Revised Group Remuneration Policy

Connected Transactions
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Board Composition

As at 31 December 2023, the Board comprised 8 Directors,
namely Messrs. David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman), Hon-Hing
Wong (Derek Wong) (Vice Chairman, Managing Director
and Chief Executive), Gary Pak-Ling Wang and Nicholas
John Mayhew (Deputy Chief Executive) as Executive
Directors (“EDs”), and Messrs. Robert Tsai-To Sze, Seng-Lee
Chan, Blair Chilton Pickerell and David Wai-Hung Tam as
Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”).

Mr. Seng-Lee Chan has stepped down as an INED of the
Company and Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann, Ms. Nancy
Ha-Fong Chan and Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung) have
been appointed as INEDs of the Company with effect from
2 January 2024. Each of Mr. Winkelmann, Ms. Chan and
Mr. Cheung has obtained the legal advice from a firm of
solicitors as per Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 18
December 2023 and has confirmed that she/he understood
her/his obligations as a Director of the Company.

The Board possesses appropriate experience, competencies
and qualities to discharge its responsibilities adequately and
effectively. In addition, the Board collectively has adequate
knowledge and expertise relevant to the business activities
of the Company in order to ensure effective governance and
oversight. Brief biographical particulars of the Directors are
set out in the “Directors’ and Senior Management’s Profile”
of this Annual Report. The Company has maintained on
the respective websites of Dah Sing Bank and Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited (“HKEX”) an updated list of
its Directors including their roles and functions and whether
they are INEDs. INEDs are also identified as such in all
corporate communications that disclose the names of the
Company’s Directors.

Chairman and Chief Executive

The Company acknowledges that there are two key aspects
of its management - the management of the Board and
the day-to-day management of its business, and that there
should be a clear division of these responsibilities at the
Board level to ensure a balance of power and authority, so
that no single individual should have unfettered powers of
decision.

The posts of the Chairman and the Chief Executive are held
separately by Mr. David Shou-Yeh Wong and Mr. Hon-Hing
Wong (Derek Wong) respectively. This segregation ensures
a clear distinction between the Chairman’s responsibility to
manage the Board and the Chief Executive’s responsibility
to manage the Company’s business and a balance of power
and authority. The Chairman mainly provides leadership
for the Board to ensure that the Board discharges its
responsibilities effectively, and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The
Chairman possesses the requisite experience, competencies
and personal qualities to fulfill these responsibilities.
The Chief Executive is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the Company to provide business direction
and operational leadership for the benefit of the Group’s
businesses, enhance shareholder value and ensure sound
internal control.

NEDs (including INEDs)

NEDs, as equal Board members, give the Board and any
committees on which they serve the benefit of their skills,
expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications
through regular attendance and active participation.
They attend regular and special Board meetings, and are
encouraged to attend the general or extraordinary general
meeting of the shareholders of the Company. The NEDs
make valuable contribution to the development of the
Company'’s strategy and policies through independent,

constructive and informed comments and suggestions.

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had 4 INEDs. Each
of the INEDs has provided to the Company confirmation
of his independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. As at 31 December 2023, the Company has
complied with Rule 3.10(1) and (2) and 3.10A with sufficient
number of INEDs who possess the appropriate professional
qualifications and experience.

The independence of the INEDs has been assessed in
accordance with the guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. Following such assessment, the Board
considers all the INEDs to be independent. Further, the
Company has also received from each of the INEDs an
annual confirmation of his independence.
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The NEDs of the Company are not appointed for a specific
term, but are subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at annual general meetings in accordance with
the provisions of the Company’s Articles of Association.

The Company issues appointment letters to each of the
NEDs (including INEDs), setting out the terms and conditions
of their appointment.

Board Independence

The Company recognizes that Board Independence is key
to good corporate governance. As part of the established
governance framework, the BGPP contains effective
mechanisms that reinforce a strong independent Board
and that independent views and input from Directors are
conveyed to the Board. In March 2024, the Board conducted
a review on the BGPP and considered that such mechanisms
were properly implemented and is effective.

To maintain a strong independent element in the Board and
to ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board’s
decision-making, meetings of the Board/Board committees
are held in an inclusive environment where open debates
and constructive challenges are encouraged. Directors/
committees’ members are free to contribute their views
at meetings. Dissenting views of Directors on any matters
discussed at Board/committees’ meetings will be properly

recorded in the minutes.

The Chairman of the Board meets with the INEDs annually,
without the presence of other Directors and other
management staff, to facilitate open and frank discussion.

There is a strong independent element in the Board to
ensure the independence and objectivity of the Board’s
decision-making process as well as the thoroughness and
impartiality of the Board’s oversight of the Management.

Board Process

Board meetings are held at least 4 times each year at
approximately quarterly intervals, and additional board
meetings are held as necessary. Details of Directors’
attendance at the Board meetings and the annual general
meeting in 2023 are set out in the section on Attendance
Records of this Corporate Governance Report.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of regular Board meetings
to give all Directors an opportunity to attend. For all other
Board meetings, reasonable notice is given in advance.
Directors may submit to the Company Secretary, in writing,
and at least 7 days in advance, matters that they would
like to include in the agenda for regular Board meetings.
Minutes of the Board and committees of the Board are kept
by the Company Secretary or the secretary of the relevant
committees, and are open for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice by any Director.

Directors may, upon reasonable request, seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense. In circumstances where Directors
believe that independent advice is needed, they should
approach the Company Secretary or the Chief Executive in
the first instance with their request. No such request will
be unreasonably denied, and the Company Secretary or
the Chief Executive will endeavor to identify and engage
an appropriate professional adviser at the expense of the
Company. The Company maintains appropriate insurance
cover in respect of legal action against its Directors.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

A director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall be subject
to election by shareholders at the first general meeting
after his/her appointment. All new Directors are subject to
election by shareholders of the Company at the next annual
general meeting after their appointments have become
effective. All other Directors of the Company are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In the recruitment of INEDs, the Company will consider
the selection criteria as set out in the Director Nomination
Policy, which include time commitment, cultural and
educational background, professional experience and
qualification of the candidates.

Delegation by the Board

To ensure the efficient and smooth operation of the
Company, the Board acknowledges the need to delegate
certain power to Board committees and management. The
roles, responsibilities and reporting lines of Management
are set out in the BGPP.

In particular, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

and the Audit Committee were set up under the authority of the
Board, to assist the Board in carrying out its responsibilities.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

53



pR2023% 128310 > EFE « BRUAFWNEEEUKRELZZEGREFINT !

HITES

- ETFE EE)
ERE (BT « BEFASIEIRT TR
=)

EETE (B TEAEE)

BIIENITES
. =g
R s )
BRI
A A
REERHMNEES BZZEYg
(REHABIIENTES) (BBABIIENITES)
BRE : RE :
BRESA (/) . PBEREE)
Saeeli) o BREEF
. FEorE . ERE

54  KHRITEEEBRAR 2023FFK



As at 31 December 2023, the composition of the Board, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee is

as follows:

EDs

David Shou-Yeh Wong (Chairman)

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) (Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive)
Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew (Deputy Chief Executive)

INEDs

Robert Tsai-To Sze
Seng-Lee Chan
Blair Chilton Pickerell

David Wai-Hung Tam

A A

Nomination and Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee (all are INED)
(majority are INED)

Members: Members:
Seng-Lee Chan (Chairman) « Robert Tsai-To Sze (Chairman)
Robert Tsai-To Sze + Seng-Lee Chan
David Shou-Yeh Wong »  Blair Chilton Pickerell
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BOARD COMMITTEE - NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established by the
Company in August 2005 with specific written terms of
reference setting out its roles and responsibilities. The
Committee was reconstituted as the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) of the Company in August

2006 with a set of updated terms of reference.

Nomination of Directors

The terms of reference of the Board set out the requirement
for a formal, considered and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new directors to the Board. The terms
of reference also explicitly prohibit the delegation of
decisions regarding the appointment of new directors to
sub-committees of the Board or to the management of the
Company, and require that such appointments are made
after deliberation by the full Board.

The NRC performs the following duties:

- To make nomination or review and endorse the
nomination for appointment as directors, and to
review and endorse the nomination for appointment
as senior management

- To review the structure, size, composition and
diversity of the Board and also its committees at
least annually and make recommendations on any

proposed changes to the Board

- To regularly review the efficiency and effectiveness of
the functioning of the Board and also its committees,
particularly in respect of the composition of Board

and committee members

- To review if the individuals nominated as Directors are
suitably qualified

- To assess the independence of INEDs

- To review the Director Nomination Policy

- To review the Board Diversity Policy, the related
measurable objectives and the progress on achieving

these objectives

- To advise and assist the Board in discharging its
culture reform and related responsibilities

Director Nomination Policy

The Director Nomination Policy was adopted by the Board
in May 2019 which is subject to regular review to ensure its
effectiveness. The Director Nomination Policy describes the
process for identifying and evaluating potential candidates
for appointment to the Company’s Board of Directors.

In assessing the suitability of the candidates for nomination
as Director, the NRC shall consider the candidates on
the basis of the selection criteria set out in the Director
Nomination Policy which includes his/her reputation for
integrity, accomplishment and experience in the financial
services industry or other industries, commitment in respect
of available time and relevant interest, diversity perspectives
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge, independence and length of service, and
independence criteria as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules in respect of proposed appointment of independent
non-executive director.

For appointment or election of a new Director, the NRC
shall take the lead in identifying candidates suitably
qualified to become a Director. The NRC may solicit
ideas for identification of candidates from a number of
sources including present members of the Board, senior
management and individuals personally known to the
members of the Board. The NRC and senior management
will also consider information and comment on individual
candidates coming from other sources, including but not
limited to well regarded senior business executives or
professionals, professional firms, and business associates.
Any shareholder of the Company may nominate a person
other than a retiring director for election as a director of the
Company at a general meeting by lodging a written notice
with the Company. The nomination procedures and process
are set out in the Procedure for Nomination of Directors by
Shareholders which is available on the website of Dah Sing
Bank.

The NRC shall consider candidates recommended as
nominees for directors submitted to the NRC by any
directors, senior management or shareholders of the
Company, provided that in the case of shareholder
recommendations, such nomination shall comply with the
notice requirements set forth in the Company’s Articles of

Association.
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The NRC shall endeavor to consider and select individuals
who possess the qualifications, qualities and skills to
effectively make contribution to the Board. In conducting
the assessment, the NRC shall take into account the
selection criteria set out in the Director Nomination Policy as
well as the prevailing structure, size and composition of the
Board to maintain a balance of perspectives, qualifications,
qualities and skills amongst members of the Board. The
NRC shall then make recommendations or endorsement
to the Board on the appointment of the candidates for
directorship.

For retiring directors who are eligible for re-election at
general meetings, the NRC shall determine if the incumbent
directors consenting to re-nomination continue to be

qualified and proposes the retiring directors for re-election.

The NRC shall include in its recommendation to the Board
for consideration the justifications for re-appointing an
independent non-executive director who has served more
than nine years. The recommendation for re-appointment
should state why the NRC believes that the director is still
independent and should be re-elected, including the factors
considered, the process and the discussion of the NRC in
arriving at such determination.

Remuneration of Directors

The NRC has the following roles and responsibilities:

- To assist the Board in discharging its responsibility
for the design and operation of the Company’s

remuneration system

- To review and make recommendation to the Board
in respect of the Company’s remuneration policy and

practices

- To ensure that regular review of the Company’s

remuneration system and its operation is conducted

- To review and endorse matters relating to share
schemes

- To review and endorse the specific remuneration

packages of directors and senior management

The Group’s Remuneration Policy

The Group’s policy on remuneration is to maintain fair
and competitive packages for its employees, which are
commensurate with market terms, and are based on
business needs, expertise and quality of the individuals, and
with proper reference to industry practice and regulatory
guidelines.

For determining the level of fees paid to members of the
Board of Directors, market rates and factors such as each
director’s workload and required commitment will be taken
into account. The following factors are considered when
determining the remuneration packages of EDs:

Business needs and performance

- The economy and business conditions in general

- Each individual’s contributions to the Group

- Risk related performance

- Involvement in ESG and climate-related risk
management

- Reference to market pay level commensurate with the
individual’s responsibility

- Consideration of regulatory guidelines

- Retention considerations and each individual’s

potential

During the process of consideration, no individual director
will be involved in decisions relating to his/her own

remuneration.

The NRC is chaired by an INED and the majority of the
members are INEDs. The terms of reference for the NRC are
available on the websites of Dah Sing Bank and HKEX.

The NRC held 3 meetings in 2023. The attendance record of

the NRC members at NRC meetings held in 2023 is set out in
the section on Attendance Records of this CG Report.
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The following is a summary of the work of the NRC during
2023:

- Reviewing and endorsing the remuneration levels for
executive directors and senior management

- Reviewing and endorsing the nomination of directors
to the Board/members to the Board Committees

- Reviewing and endorsing the new/amended Share
Schemes and the adoption of the Schemes

- Reviewing and endorsing the re-election of directors

- Reviewing and endorsing the adjustment of fees
payable to the INEDs and NEDs

- Reviewing and endorsing the Group’s remuneration

policy and related systems and practices

- Reviewing the disclosure on the Company’s

remuneration systems and practices

- Reviewing the Board governance of the Company and
Dah Sing Bank

- Reviewing the 2022 Board evaluation of Dah Sing Bank

- Reviewing and endorsing the succession plan for the
Chief Executive and Division Head positions of Dah
Sing Bank

- Reviewing and endorsing the Board Diversity Policy

- Reviewing and endorsing the Director Nomination
Policy

- Reviewing the culture enhancement initiatives
pursued by the Group

- Reviewing and endorsing the changes to the Terms of
Reference of the NRC

- Reviewing and approving the revised Code of Conduct
for Staff

BOARD COMMITTEE - AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee (“AC”), established by the Board of
the Company, is responsible for ensuring the objectivity
and credibility of financial reporting, reviewing the
internal control system and compliance with regulatory
requirements, and approving audit plans and reviewing
findings and reports of the internal and external auditors,
and that in presenting results to the shareholders, the
Directors have exercised the care, diligence and skills
prescribed by laws, and that appropriate accounting and
financial reporting standards are followed.

The AC has the following roles and responsibilities:

The AC makes recommendations to the Board regarding the
appointment of the head of internal audit and reviews the
effectiveness of the internal audit function.

The AC makes recommendation to the Board on the
selection, oversight and remuneration of external auditors.
The AC reviews and monitors the external auditors’
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards.

The AC reviews and monitors the integrity of the Company’s
annual and interim financial statements, including
significant financial reporting judgements used in producing
the financial statements.

The AC reviews the Company’s internal controls and reports
its major findings and comments to the Board. Descriptions
of the Company’s internal control system are set out below.
Information relating to the Group’s risk management
including appropriate financial quantification is set out in
the Financial Risk Management sections as notes to the
annual financial statements.

The terms of reference for the AC are available on the
websites of Dah Sing Bank and the HKEX.

All members of the AC are INEDs with extensive experience
in banking, finance and business management. Mr. Robert
Tsai-To Sze is a qualified accountant and was a partner of
a predecessor firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers up to June
1996. Save for the above, none of the other committee
members are employed by or otherwise affiliated with the
former or existing external auditors of the Company.
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The AC members meet at least 4 times a year with the
Company’s senior management, the head of internal audit
and the external auditors. In 2023, a total of 4 meetings were
convened. The attendance record of AC members at the AC
meetings held in 2023 is set out in the section on Attendance
Records of this Corporate Governance Report.

To enable Directors to be informed of the discussions and
decisions of the AC, members of the AC who also attend
meetings of the Board will advise on matters of significance
relating to the financial statements and the internal control
system of the Group discussed in the AC. In addition, a
report highlighting the matters reviewed and dealt with by
the AC is submitted to the Board on a half-yearly basis.

The following is a summary of the work of the AC during
2023 in discharging its responsibilities:

- Review, and providing advice and recommendations
to the Board for the approval, of the 2022 results
announcements and audited financial statements of
the Group, and the 2023 interim results and interim
report

- Review of external auditors’ findings and comments,
and management’s reports on major accounting and
financial disclosure matters in respect of 2022 audit
and financial statements

- Review of the Corporate Governance Report of 2022
forinclusion in the Company’s 2022 annual report

- Approval of the reports to the Board providing a
summary of the issues, focuses and discussion
reviewed and dealt with by the AC in the second half
of 2022 and the first half of 2023

- Review of connected party transactions and disclosure

- Review and approval of the appointment and
remuneration of external auditors

- Review and approval of the external auditors’ audit

plan

- Review and approval of internal audit plan

- Review of the internal audit’s work, findings and

recommendations

- Review of updates from the Compliance Division
of the Group on the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”) examinations and regulatory concerns,
management’s actions in implementing the HKMA’s

recommendations

- Review of the highlights of major new accounting
and financial reporting standards and guidance
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and impact to the Group on their
adoption

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT
Financial Reporting

It is the responsibility of the Board to present a balanced,
clear and comprehensible assessment of the Company’s

performance, position and prospects.

Management is responsible for providing sufficient
explanation and information to the Board to enable the
Board to make an informed assessment of the financial and
other information put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Group. As at 31 December
2023, the Directors are not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The Directors have prepared the
financial statements of the Group on a going-concern basis.
The responsibility of the Group’s external auditor on the
financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report attached to the Group’s financial statements.

The Board is also responsible for providing a balanced,
clear and understandable assessment in annual and interim
reports, other price-sensitive announcements and other
financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules, as
well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
statutory or regulatory requirements.
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Internal Controls

The Board has delegated to management the responsibility
to develop and maintain a sound internal control system.
The internal control system, operating through a framework
of management and operational controls, and risk
management systems, is intended to allow the Board to
monitor the Group’s business performance and financial
positions, to control and adjust risk exposures, to adopt
sound business practices, to obtain reasonable assurance
on controls against fraud and errors, to ensure compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and to exercise
oversight on and provide guidance to management in
achieving the Company’s objectives. However, it should be
recognized that the Group’s internal control procedures can
only provide reasonable, not absolute, assurance against
material errors, losses or fraud.

The key procedures that the Group has established to
maintain an effective internal control system are as follows:

- A clear management organizational structure is set
up with well-defined lines of authority, accountability
and responsibilities.

- Specialized committees are formed to oversee and
control significant risk factors, such as credit risk,
liquidity and interest rate risks, operational risk and

compliance risk.

- Regular reporting of the performance of the
Company’s businesses to senior management and
management committees. Actual performance
results against budgets are closely monitored. The
Board reviews the Group’s business and financial

performance on a quarterly basis.

- Written policies and procedures are established to
facilitate proper assessment of customers, services
to customers, segregation of duties, accuracy and
completeness of transaction processing, safeguarding
of assets, credit control and risk monitoring,
control of business exposures, compliance control
and monitoring (including anti-money laundering
(“AML™)), staff training, IT development, IT
governance and information security, business
continuity planning, financial control (including
accounting, regulatory reporting, financial reporting
to comply with regulatory and financial reporting

standards, management accounting and budget
control, reconciliation of accounts), and system of
management oversight including the operations of
various functional committees.

The independent internal audit function monitors
compliance with management policies and
procedures, as well as regulatory requirements. It
conducts a wide variety of internal control reviews
and audit activities such as compliance audits
and operations and systems reviews to ensure the
integrity, efficiency and effectiveness of the systems of
control. The Head of Internal Audit reports functionally
to the Audit Committee and administratively to the
Chief Executive, with direct access to the Executive
Committee.

The independent group risk function monitors
and reports the Group’s risk positions and analysis
to senior management, Risk Management and
Compliance Committee and the Board, and operates
to sustain a sound asset quality and risk control in
the portfolio of the Group’s businesses with due
consideration of a proper risk and return balance.

The Group continues its ongoing upgrade of risk
management framework and capabilities to
strengthen its risk control and effectiveness, which
are key to the maintenance of sound internal control
process of the Group.

The Group Compliance Committee at the management
level serves to uphold a high level of awareness
and accountability of compliance requirements.
It is responsible for overseeing and guiding the
development, maintenance and enhancement of
compliance system, policies and practices to ensure
compliance with all statutory requirements and
regulatory guidelines. The Group Compliance Division
performs an independent on-going monitoring and
advisory role on the Group’s compliance with relevant
rules and regulations, while the AML and Financial
Crime Risk Department manages and oversees AML
and financial crime risk of the Group.

A Guideline on Group Functional Reporting is in place
to promote collaboration between Group functions
and subsidiaries, align Group’s policies, practices
and standards, and allow Group functional heads to
exercise proper control, supervision and monitoring of
subsidiaries’ operations.
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Assessment of Internal Control System

In assessing the effectiveness of the internal control system,
the Board has considered reviews performed by the AC and
Management, and the findings of both internal and external
auditors.

Under the direction of the AC, the Group’s Internal Audit
conducted an assessment covering all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management practices. The 2023 reviews included an
annual assessment of internal control system with reference
to the comments made by both internal and external
auditors, policies and procedures of the Group, regulatory
guidelines and the CG Code regarding internal controls. The
Group is committed to continuously enhancing its internal
control system and processes.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to evaluate and
determine the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives,
and ensuring that the Group establishes and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems. Such risks include, amongst others,
material risk relating to ESG. The Board is also responsible
for overseeing Management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems. Management has to provide a confirmation to the
Board on the effectiveness of these systems.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. Such systems comprise a well-
established organisational structure and comprehensive
policies and standards. Areas of responsibilities for each
business and functional unit are clearly defined to ensure
effective checks and balances.

Procedures have been designed for safeguarding assets
against unauthorised use or disposition; for maintaining
proper accounting records; and for ensuring the reliability
of financial information used within the business or for
publication. The procedures provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against material errors, losses or fraud.
Procedures have also been designed to ensure compliance
with applicable laws, rules and regulations.

Systems and procedures are in place in the Group to identify,
control and report on the major types of risks the Group
encounters. Business and functional units are responsible
for the assessment of individual types of risk arising under
their areas of responsibilities, the management of the risks
in accordance with risk management procedures and the
reporting on risk management. The Group maintains an
effective risk management framework through the setting
up of specialised management committees for the oversight
and monitoring of major risk areas and the establishment of
risk management departments for relevant functions of the
Group.

Risk management reports are submitted to the relevant
committees and ultimately to the Board or its delegated
Board committee for oversight and monitoring of various
types of risk associated with the Group’s businesses
and operations. The Group’s risk management policies
and major control limits are approved by the Board
or its delegated Board committee. Operating and risk
performance are monitored and reviewed against relevant
risk limits regularly according to established policies and
procedures.

Annual Assessment

The Group has implemented a robust risk management
and internal control framework with ongoing monitoring
and regular reporting of risk profiles, risk positions and
internal control issues to the Management and to the Board.
Based on the ongoing reviews and regular assessments,
the Management including the heads of business units,
financial control, risk management, compliance units and
operations management, and the senior management of the
key subsidiaries of the Group have evaluated the existing
status of the risk management and internal control system
and confirmed that they remain effective with reference
to the requirements of the CG Code of the Listing Rules.
These statements of Management have been reviewed and
endorsed by Internal Audit function, and reviewed and
confirmed by senior management of the Group.

The results of the 2023 review, which have been reported
to the AC and the Board, concluded that the Group’s risk

management and internal control systems were effective

and adequate.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

67



68

REREZ

FEERIUNEEZHAE - NEBEZBENTIEZABERY
EFERSEEEASREFSEREE BERIFEHR
[ o NEREAZIAE Y AN B B IR P HIRT K Bt B9 A 52 [/
BEEER  EHRELREFERFRETEERDMNAN
RAEI R FHRIREST o

ABEZBEERD —RABERZLIFERAEBERARE
BENERIERMNFEERAEZZEEN (WES) EFEE
3} o FIENEREERBATE LA > AEBELETREE
REEEMEZERELNENG BN ZBRRMERNTD
MEFRBERIE o

SMESRZ BN 2RI 1 R =

e NCIRY R A= e NNEIPINEY 2Y - Gl R e P S E R TS
P (MERUKE ) M AEBM B RETERZ BT -

FABNEERE AN - AR K BIFRE AT
ZHINBZEM B RFRIEERT - thEBRIAKER
MBEZLUONZ RS - DR KR EEMBERARREZTER
5 o

FRERSIZREIN » BEAUKENREIZFIN2023FRNRAE
EERESBZLUMNRS - SIEFRRMAERENE -« 24
MBEERE - ERAEETREELHER - BRANERN
R IRTT20EE TN T 5 T A RIB ST 8 R BB R 2 B Kk
FEFETRFRE - RREENANEEIE B s

BE2023F12A31HILFE ' EXNTAZN FERBKEAMBEZRBREZLONRBZMEWT

B%ft BExHZER

AR ERHIBRTS (F#7t)

BIZRFS 16,355
BIZUUIMET :

. BRECETNENTBPEEERE (T5H8)) RATIRITET 8 NI R EEHNEETE 1,288

HEERREE  RRRERER - MEAAREE SRHARBERN BT Z 4,812

B EARRE 2 TR AR A IR IR St BRI SRS 2 B A REL 2,700

HAth _

aH 25,155

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R



INTERNAL AUDIT

The Group has established an Internal Audit function. The
primary role of the Internal Audit function is to help the
Board and Management to protect the assets, reputation
and sustainability of the Group. The Internal Audit function
provides independent and objective assurance as to
whether the design and operational effectiveness of the
Group’s framework of risk management, control and
governance processes, as designed and represented by the
Management, is adequate.

Results of audit work together with an assessment of
the overall risk management and control framework are
reported to the AC or the Board as appropriate and at
least annually. The Internal Audit function also reviews the
Management’s action plans in response to audit findings
and verifies the adequacy and effectiveness of the controls
before formally closing audit issues.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS’ INDEPENDENCE AND
REMUNERATION

The Company has reviewed and is satisfied with the
independence of the Company’s external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”), for performing the audit
of the Group’s financial statements.

The Company will use the non-audit services of PwC only
when the Company can benefit in a cost-effective manner
and the independence and objectivity of PwC as the
Company’s external auditors can be maintained. Otherwise,

professional services from other firms are used.

In addition to audit related services, PwC, based on
agreed-upon procedures, provided the Group non-audit
services during 2023 including review of tax returns and
computation, tax advisory services, review of the Group’s
interim financial disclosure, and review of the update
on the offering circular of Dah Sing Bank’s US$2 Billion
Euro Medium Term Note Programme, and independent
assessments of certain operational processes, risk
management and internal control of the Group.

The remuneration paid/payable to PwC in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2023 is

set out as follows:

Fee paid/payable

Services rendered for the Company (HK$’000)

Audit services 16,355

Non-audit services:

. Review of the updated Euro Medium Term Note Programme (the “Programme”) and 1,288
professional work on new subordinated note issue of Dah Sing Bank under the Programme

. Compliance reviews and independent assessments on operational risk management, 4,812
technology risk management, new IT system projects etc.

. Tax compliance review on taxation computation and advisory service on compliance with new 2,700
tax regulations relevant to the Group

. Others -

Total 25,155
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GOVERNANCE POLICIES

The Group places utmost importance on the ethical,
personal and professional standards of Directors and
employees of the Group. All employees are required to
adhere to various Group policies that reflect the core values
and corporate culture of the Group.

Code of Conduct

The Group has adopted a set of Code of Conduct for Staff
which sets out at its outset the culture and values that are
to be upheld at work. The Code of Conduct for Staff also lays
down the guidelines on ethical values and business conduct
that staff shall follow, which include anti-corruption policies
and measures to curb corruption such as extortion and
bribery. These are intended to help to ensure and sustain
legal and regulatory compliance and an effective control

environment.

Whistle-Blowing Policy

In maintaining and supporting the Group’s corporate values
and ethical standards, the Group has in place a Whistle-
Blowing Policy, which sets out procedures for its staff to
communicate and report, in confidence, material and bona
fide concerns or any violations. These communications can
be elevated to the Group AC and/or the Board (via the Group
AC).

Policy of Handling of Confidential and Price-
sensitive Inside Information

A Guideline on the Control and Disclosure of Inside
Information is in place, which sets out the guiding
principles, procedures and internal controls for the handling
of confidential inside information, and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner so as to allow all
stakeholders to be aware of the latest positions or price
sensitive information of the Group and its subsidiaries.

In addition, the Group has implemented the Policy on
Handling of Unpublished Price-sensitive Inside Information.
The policy adopts additional precautions which should be
taken by employees who are in possession of unpublished
and price-sensitive information or confidential information,
including identification of project by code name and
dissemination of information for stated purpose and on a
need-to-know basis only.

DIVERSITY
Board Diversity
Board Diversity Policy

The Board Diversity Policy was adopted by the Board in
December 2013 which is subject to annual review to ensure
its effectiveness. The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Company’s Board
in order to enhance the quality of its performance which
in turn should benefit the Company and its business as a
whole.

The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board in supporting the attainment
of its sustainable development. Board diversity has
been considered from a number of aspects. Selection of
candidates will be based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, ethnicity, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge, independence and length of service. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the factors on personal attributes outlined above,
expectation on contribution to the Board, and the benefits
of diversity of the Board.

As at 31 December 2023, the Board had no female Board
member. Taking into consideration of gender diversity,
Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan has been appointed as an INED
of the Company with effect from 2 January 2024. The
Board currently has one female Board member. The Board
targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation and will consider opportunities to increase
the number of female members over time with the assistance
of the NRC in selecting and making recommendations on
suitable candidates for Board appointments, subject to the
availability of suitable candidates. The Board will endeavour
to achieve the appropriate gender diversity with reference to
local regulatory requirements/recommended best practices.
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Our Board Composition and Diversity:

Key Highlight: INED representation of 50%

Gender
INED Ratio ED (4)
Ethnicity Chinese (5)

Male (8)

Non-Chinese (3)

Age Group 41-60 (1) 61-65 (1) Over 65 (6)

Board T

0 Years) | Below3(1) 3-9(2) Over 9 (5)
Other listed

directorship

(no. of co.)

The Board, through the NRC, has reviewed the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board and the Board
Diversity Policy to ensure the composition of the Board
complies with the CG Code with an appropriate mix of skills,
experience and diversity that are relevant to the Company’s
strategy, governance and business and contributes to the
Board’s effectiveness and efficiency. The implementation of

Board Diversity Policy was considered effective.

Workforce Diversity

The Group is committed to creating an inclusive
environment for all employees. We have established
policies in our Code of Conduct for Staff and Policy on Equal
Opportunities on Employment in strict compliance with
applicable laws and regulations that unequivocally prohibit
any form of discrimination, harassment, victimisation, or
vilification based on gender, pregnancy, breastfeeding,
marital status, disability, family status, or race. We ensure
decisions made with respect to recruitment, promotion and
any development opportunities are based on individual’s
qualifications and merits. We monitor our workforce
diversity on an on-going basis to maintain a balance mix.
To maintain diversity in our workplace, we have ongoing
monitoring on our diversity mix. For 2023, we have set a
target of 45%-55% for gender ratio in the workforce and
plan to maintain this target ratio. As at the end of 2023, we
achieved gender balance among our full-time employees
across the Group, with 53% women and 47% men.
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INDUCTION AND TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

A newly appointed Director is provided with a Director’s
induction handbook and materials relevant to the Company
and briefed by the Management to ensure that the Director
has a proper understanding of the operations and business
of the Group and that he or she is aware of his or her
responsibilities under the relevant laws and regulations.
The Company also organized continuous professional
development and training to its Directors to ensure that they
are fully aware of their responsibilities under the applicable
laws and regulations.

Directors participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. During the year, the Company has organized
board briefings for Directors. All Directors provided to the
Company Secretary a record of the training they received in
2023.

The Directors received trainings on the following areas during the year:

Training Areas

Regulatory/ Group’s Macroeconomics/
Corporate Business and Business/

Directors Governance Management Financial
INEDs
Robert Tsai-To Sze v 4 v
Seng-Lee Chan (retired on 2 January 2024) v v 4
Blair Chilton Pickerell 4 4 4
David Wai-Hung Tam v 4 v
EDs
David Shou-Yeh Wong v v -
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 4 4 4
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 4 4 4
Nicholas John Mayhew v 4 v

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

The Company has adopted its own code for directors’
securities dealing (“Directors’ Dealing Code”) on terms no
less exacting than the prevailing required standard set out
in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) under Appendix C3 of the
Listing Rules. Following specific enquiry, the Directors
of the Company confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
Directors’ Dealing Code during the year ended 31 December
2023.

All employees of the Group, including the senior
management and selected members of the employees, are
obliged to follow the Company’s restrictions on dealing
in securities, which are on terms no less exacting than the
Model Code, as set out in the Staff Securities Dealing Policy.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS

The attendance of individual Directors at the Board meetings, Audit Committee meetings, Nomination and Remuneration

Committee meetings and the Annual General Meeting held in 2023 are as follows:

Attended/eligible to attend

Attended
Nomination and Annual
Audit Remuneration General
Directors Board Committee Committee Meeting
EDs
David Shou-Yeh Wong ete) 5/5 - 2/3 -
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 5/5 - - v
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 5/5 - - v
Nicholas John Mayhew 5/5 - - -
INEDs
Robert Tsai-To Sze 5/5 4/4 3/3 v
Seng-Lee Chan (retired on 2 January 2024) 5/5 4/4 3/3 v
Blair Chilton Pickerell 5/5 3/4 - v
David Wai-Hung Tam 5/5 - - v

Note: Pursuant to code provision F.2.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. David Shou-Yeh
Wong, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend the 2023 Annual General Meeting (the “2023 AGM”) of the Company held in Hong
Kong on 2 June 2023 as he was away from Hong Kong at that time. Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong), Vice Chairman, Managing Director

and Chief Executive of the Company, took the chair of the 2023 AGM.

SHAREHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Effective Communication

The Board attaches great importance to communication
with shareholders. The Annual General Meeting (“AGM”)
provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The Chairman of the Board and all Directors
make a strong effort to attend. The Chairmen of the Board
Committees and a representative of the external auditors
also attend the AGM to take shareholders’ questions.

The Management holds group meetings with analysts in
connection with the Company’s annual and interim results.
Apart from the above, designated senior executives maintain
regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to
keep them abreast of the Company’s development, subject

to compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Moreover, the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com)
offers shareholders convenient access to the Company’s
financial information, announcements/circulars and
information on the Company’s corporate governance
structure and practices, in addition to business and
corporate social responsibility activities of the Group.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of the Company may put forth requisition to convene
an Extraordinary General Meeting (“EGM”) of the Company.

The requisition must (i) state the objectives of the meeting,
(i) be signed by the requisitionist(s) and (iii) be deposited
at the Company’s registered office at 26th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong
Kong or in electronic form. It may also consist of several
documents in like form, each signed by one or more
requisitionist(s).
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The requisition must also state (i) the name(s) of the
requisitionist(s), (ii) the contact details of the requisitionist(s)
and (iii) the number of ordinary shares of the Company held
by the requisitionist(s).

The Directors must proceed to convene an EGM within
21 days from the date of the deposit of the requisition. Such
meeting should be held on a date not more than 28 days
after the date on which the notice convening the meeting is
given.

If the Directors fail to convene the EGM as aforesaid, the
requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more than one-
half of the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves
convene the meeting. Any meeting so convened shall not
be held after the expiration of 3 months from the date of the
deposit of the requisition.

A meeting so convened by the requisitionist(s) shall be
convened in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that
in which meetings are to be convened by the Directors.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
by reason of the failure of the Directors to duly convene
a meeting shall be repaid to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

Shareholders representing not less than 2.5% of the
total voting rights of all shareholders, or not less than
50 shareholders, who are entitled to vote on a resolution at

a general meeting, may:
- put forward a proposal at a general meeting

- circulate to other shareholders a written statement
with respect to matters to be dealt with at a general

meeting

Shareholders may refer to section 580 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for
further details on the shareholder qualifications and the
procedures and timeline in connection with the above.

Submission of enquiries to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries requiring the Board’s
attention to the Company Secretary at the Company’s
registered office at 26th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre,
248 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. Questions
about the procedures for convening or putting forward
proposals at an AGM or EGM may also be put to the Company
Secretary.

Shareholders Communication Policy

The Board recognizes the importance of maintaining on
ongoing dialogue with the Company’s shareholders and has
adopted a Shareholders Communication Policy which sets
out the framework to promote effective communication
with shareholders and to enable them to engage actively
with the Company and exercise their rights as shareholders
in an informed manner and is subject to review on an annual
basis to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company communicates with its shareholders and the
investment community through a wide range of channels
and means including publications (e.g. annual reports,
interim reports, notices, circulars, and announcements),
website (e.g. publication posted on the Company’s website
including the ESG reports), and in person (attending
shareholders meetings and analyst briefings or press

conference).

Having taken note of the multiple channels in place for
shareholders to communicate their views, the Board
considered that the Shareholders Communication Policy
was appropriate and effective.

The Policy is available on the website of Dah Sing Bank
(www.dahsing.com).

Dividend Policy

The Company’s dividend policy aims to pay sustainable
dividends over time. In determining dividend distribution,
the Company takes into account factors such as general
business conditions, financial results, business growth
prospects, capital requirements, regulatory requirements
applicable to the Company’s businesses, shareholders’
interests and any other factors the Directors consider to be
relevant.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has not changed its constitutional documents
in 2023.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is accountable to the Board for
ensuring that Board procedures are followed and Board
activities are efficiently and effectively conducted. These
objectives are achieved through adherence to proper Board
processes and the timely preparation and dissemination
to Directors comprehensive Board meeting agendas and
papers. Minutes of all meetings of the Board and Board
Committees are prepared and maintained to record in
sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached by the Board or Board Committees, including
any concerns raised or dissenting views voiced by any
Director. All draft and final minutes of Board meetings and
meetings of Board Committees are sent to Directors or
Board Committee members as appropriate for comments,
approval and records. Board records are available for
inspection by any Director upon request.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary who possesses the relevant
qualifications and experience pursuant to the requirements
of Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules. The Company Secretary had
taken more than 15 hours of relevant professional training
to update his skills and knowledge during the financial year
ended 31 December 2023.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the continuing connected transactions as set
out in Note 43 to the financial statements, all the INEDs
of the Company have reviewed the said transactions and
confirmed that the said transactions have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Company;

(2)  onnormal commercial terms; and

(3)  inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company.

Further, the Company has engaged its external auditors,
PwC, to report on the Company’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PwC has issued an
unqualified letter containing their findings and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transactions set out
in Note 43 to the financial statements in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
letter needs to be submitted by the Company to The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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ENVIRONMENT, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

In addition to focusing on the strategic development of its businesses, the Group embraces its responsibilities for the
advancement of Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) initiatives in the way it conducts its businesses and how it
engages its stakeholders. The Group actively strives to promote environmental protection, corporate sustainability and engage
with communities.

Sustainability considerations are embedded in our business strategy and operations. The Group strives to stay abreast of
evolving market trends and enhances the sustainability practices proactively. The Group’s ESG strategy guides its sustainability
focus and efforts in the key areas outlined below to drive continuous improvements and to create a more sustainable and
resilient future for itself as well as our society at large.

ESG Governance — Establish ESG positioning under Board’s oversight

Governance Establish clear accountability on ESG oversight and strategy implementation
Communication Regularly communicate our ESG initiatives to our internal and external stakeholders
Reporting Continuously improve disclosure quality and performance tracking

Marketplace — Prioritise Green and Sustainable Banking (“GSB”) and differentiate with small and medium enterprises

(“SMEs”) focus

Green and Sustainable Banking Build capacity, raise GSB awareness and establish our green product shelves

SME Support Increase outreach to and assist SMEs in ESG transition

Customer Focus Improve customer experience and reinforce customer centricity

Digitalisation Optimise customer experience and operational impact through digital transformation

Workplace — Build an engaged workforce to enhance employee loyalty

Culture and Ethical Behaviours Promote ethical behaviours to uphold the Group’s Culture and Values

Training and Development Enhance organisation and leadership capabilities for future-ready workforce

Health and Well-being Promote health awareness and provide flexible and healthy work environment

Community — Enrich our community strategy to enhance impact

Youth Education Support youth education with a focus on STEAM (Science, Technology, Engineering, Art
and Mathematics) and targeting under-privileged children

Youth Sports Promote sports as a means of nurturing all-round youth development

ESG Awareness Raise the awareness of ESG matters in the community for promoting sustainable

development

Volunteering Engage our employees to contribute to the society through volunteering activities

Environment — Sharpen our focus on environmental Key Performance Indicators for strategic impact and operational
efficiency

Environmental Footprint Reduce our environmental footprint and influence our supply chain

Paperless Reduce paper consumption through digitalising operational processes and engaging

customers on digital adoption

Staff Awareness and Engagement Promote environmental conservation to our staff for a greener planet
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We continuously seek to integrate our ESG Strategy into the Group’s overarching business objectives. We aim to efficiently
allocate resources to maximise value creation for our stakeholders and fostering sustainable growth which benefits all parties
involved. In 2023, the Group systematically implemented its ESG strategy in its business decisions and actions with notable

achievements made across the Group as outlined below:

Marketplace:

Commenced the implementation of greenness
assessment framework as an onboarding criteria for
borrowers in 7 carbon-intensive industries

Rolled out 9 and 5 additional ESG investment funds
in Dah Sing Bank and Banco Comercial de Macau
(“BCM”) respectively to offer more fund choices

Workplace:

Launched the first Dah Sing Cultureland platform
to foster staff awareness and understanding of our
culture and values

Provided 703 hours of training to equip employees
with knowledge regarding climate-related risk and
green and sustainable finance

Community:

A total of 1,206 volunteers contributed 3,633
volunteering hours

1,359 individuals benefited from our community
programmes and activities

Expanded the scale of Dah Sing Charity Score
Challenge by 69% in number of participants, to raise
funds for Operation Santa Claus

Environment:

Engaged 5,216 customers to reduce paper
consumption through Mastercard Priceless Planet
Coalition Programme and contributed to planting of
5,216 trees as a result

17% reduction in paper usage, compared to 2020

Launched and developed a proprietary product
recommendation engine, “Next Best Action”, which
analyses our customers’ financial habits to predict
their financial needs and was awarded the Certificate
of Merit in “Hong Kong Information ICT Awards
2023 - Fintech (Applied Solutions) Award”

Completed a programme of digital banking platform
upgrade in 2023, which focused on enhancing
customer experience through innovative solutions and
expanding transaction capabilities on the platform

Award recognition in the “SportsHour Company
Scheme” by the Inspiring Hong Kong Sports
Foundation for promoting physical activities of
employees outside the workplace, as well as engaging
with local charities and communities to support
athletes

92,814 training hours conducted in 2023

Co-organised a five-month “Metaverse ArtTech
Creation Course 2023” with Chinese YMCA of Hong
Kong to provide ArtTech training, immersive digital art
experiences, and a public digital art display to around
80 primary and secondary students

BCM collaborated with Macau China Bowling
Association and co-sponsored the Youth Bowling
Training Programme with Macau Insurance Company
for 32 local students aged 10-18 years old, of which 16
outstanding performers joined as contestants to the
BCM Bowling Open Competition which attracted 144
contestants

Replaced fluorescent tubes with energy-efficient LED
lighting in two branches in Hong Kong

The ESG Report 2023 provides an annual update on the initiatives, plans and performance of the Group in ESG aspects during the
year. During the year, the Group has complied with all applicable disclosure requirements and provisions of the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix C2 of the Listing Rules in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2023. In addition, the ESG
Report 2023 is prepared with reference to the IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures. For more details of the Group’s sustainability
initiatives during the year, please refer to the Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2023, which is published
on the website of Dah Sing Bank (www.dahsing.com) (About Us - Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) - ESG Report &
Achievement).
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENT ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of Dah Sing Banking Group Limited
(the “Company”) is banking investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 26
to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of
the performance of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the reporting period by business and
geographical segments are set out in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF SHAREHOLDERS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in the consolidated income statement on
page 113.

The Board declared an interim dividend of HKS$0.11 per
share and a total of HK$154,632,734.52 in cash was paid on
21 September 2023.

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HKS$0.49 per share in cash, totalling HK$688,818,544.68.

For determining shareholders’ right to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting:

Latest time to lodge transfers

Closure of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)

Record date

Annual General Meeting

4:30 p.m. on 27 May 2024 (Monday)

28 May 2024 (Tuesday) to 31 May 2024 (Friday)

31 May 2024 (Friday)

31 May 2024 (Friday)

For determining shareholders’ entitlement to receive the proposed final dividend*:

Latest time to lodge transfers

Closure of Register of Shareholders (both days inclusive)

Record date

Expected final dividend payment date

4:30 p.m. on 6 June 2024 (Thursday)

7 June 2024 (Friday) to 12 June 2024 (Wednesday)

12 June 2024 (Wednesday)

20 June 2024 (Thursday)

(*subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting)

During the periods of the closure of Register of Shareholders, no share transfers will be registered. For registration, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai,

Hong Kong before the relevant latest time to lodge transfers.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group and a discussion and
analysis on the Group’s future business development are
provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” and the “Review
of Operations” of this Annual Report. Description of the
principal risks and uncertainties that the Group may be
facing can also be found in the “Chairman’s Statement”
and the “Review of Operations” of this Annual Report. The
objectives and policies of financial risk management and
the risk management structure and framework of the Group
can be found in the “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” of this Annual Report. Particulars of important
events affecting the Company that have occurred since the
end of the financial year (if any) can be found in the “Notes
to the Consolidated Financial Statements”. An analysis of
the Group’s performance during the year using financial
key performance indicators is provided in the “Review of
Operations” of this Annual Report. In addition, discussions
on the Group’s environmental policies and performance and
also relationships with the key stakeholders and compliance
with relevant laws and regulations which have a significant
impact on the Group can be found in the “Corporate
Governance Report” of this Annual Report and the 2023
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “2023
ESG Report”). The “Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements” also contain description of the management
structures and framework to ensure compliance with
various laws and regulations which are applicable to the
Group. The above sections form part of this Report of the
Directors.

The 2023 ESG Report is issued as a separate report
concurrently with this Annual Report and both reports are
also published on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited (www.hkexnews.hk) and Dah Sing Bank
(www.dahsing.com).

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares of the Company issued during the
year are shown in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable and other
donations amounting to HK$1,929,000.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report are:

David Shou-Yeh Wong
Chairman

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

Robert Tsai-To Sze*

Seng-Lee Chan*
(retired on 2 January 2024)

Blair Chilton Pickerell*

David Wai-Hung Tam*

Paul Franz Winkelmann*
(appointed with effect from 2 January 2024)

Nancy Ha-Fong Chan*
(appointed with effect from 2 January 2024)

Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)*
(appointed with effect from 2 January 2024)

Gary Pak-Ling Wang

Nicholas John Mayhew
Deputy Chief Executive

*

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Directors retiring by rotation in accordance with
Article 107 of the Company’s Articles of Association are
Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) and Mr. Blair Chilton
Pickerell who, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Mr. Paul Franz Winkelmann, Ms. Nancy Ha-Fong Chan and
Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung) who were appointed as
Independent Non-Executive Directors on 2 January 2024 will
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting
in accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles
of Association and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023 ' 89



90

A RBEWERBUIFATESEMENFAEEEE IR
BB R FERSR - AA BB MBI MERRR
A o

TREZRBBEAGEREENER > HNERRNER
FETRRBBEA ©

EEEL 2
RIEC EHFRAINEE13.51B(1) % » BFIEARAE]2023FHHAZE
BEREE (L  BEA > MNEBREEZAENESMS » HIEE

SERERBDEFZAMBE) EXFRAMAL > EFERE
BRIBEZIT

() EFHERE
FE

—  H2024F1B1HEFF AT ERMERF R AT
AIRITERABIZIRBEIMEEEME » &
H2024F 1 A2 HEFEAR LR Z IR B KFMEE
gE

() HEELE
B  EFARACIBF{TIHAE
— ETHNB2024E1818ES A R 145,300
BT

(R) EfzEkE:

HITER
—  H2023F1186HEEZTAAIIET (FE) A
BARIZEER

—  H2024F1B1ABREZEARNNERERER
REMAHRITAERAB ZIRL AFNES TN
8> kH2024F1F2REEZEREART Iz
Kt EE g A

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

(T) £ZMxE
BUIFHITER
— H2024F1R1HERTEATEHERBFRADMN
KIIRTTBER AR BEZEE G FRH20245F
1E2HERIARABZBEZEE G EE » WHE
EIZEADBZEEGME
—  H2024F181HK&2024F1 828D BESES

RIRITARABKRAARZIRGAFNEES
EiE

—  EEEEH2024F1R1H0EHEEESET0,000
B (BEF—ENB AR ZFH)

(k) BEHLE
BUIRTEE
—  H2024F181HK&2024F1 828D BESES
KHBTTERAB RSN AR ZIRGKFNEES
jpA=l
—  H2024F1B1HEFMIEATRITER AT Z AR
EEREREEENE
—  EEEEH2024F 1B 1HEHEESF520,000
BT
(B) REERE
BUIFRITER
—  H2023F12B31HEABIEERITEENEHZE
Bg&E

—  B024F2F1HRNEERGEABEEE TR

BREXFHEEN  TEHEHMERNBRB(EHRRE)
513.51B(1)IKIELIHEE o



The Company has received an annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors as regards
their continued independence while serving as members of
the Board of Directors during the year. The Company still
considers all the Independent Non-Executive Directors to be
independent.

Details of the Directors to be re-elected at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are set out in the circular to the
shareholders sent together with this Annual Report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION WITH REGARD TO
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, changes in
information required to be disclosed by the Directors since
the publication of the 2023 Interim Report of the Company
(or, where applicable as regards Director appointed
subsequent thereto, since the date of announcement for
appointment) and up to the date of this Annual Report are
set out below:

(a) Mr.David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

- Stepped down as a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited and Dah Sing Bank,
Limited with effect from 1 January 2024 and the
Company with effect from 2 January 2024

(b) Mr. Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong)
Vice Chairman, Managing Director and Chief Executive

- Decrease of fixed remuneration by HK$145,300
per month with effect from 1 January 2024

(c) Mr.Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Executive Director

- Appointed as the Chairman of Dah Sing Bank
(China) Limited with effect from 6 November
2023

- Appointed as a member of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited and Dah Sing Bank,
Limited with effect from 1 January 2024 and the
Company with effect from 2 January 2024

(d) Mr.Robert Tsai-To Sze
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Stepped down as the Chairman of the Audit
Committee and remains as a member of the
Audit Committee of Dah Sing Financial Holdings
Limited and Dah Sing Bank, Limited with effect
from 1 January 2024 and the Company with
effect from 2 January 2024

- Appointed as the Chairman of the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited with effect from 1 January 2024 and the
Company with effect from 2 January 2024

- Director’s fee revised to HK$790,000 per annum
(including remuneration from a subsidiary) with
effect from 1 January 2024

(e) Mr.David Wai-Hung Tam
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Appointed as a member of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited and the Company with effect from
1 January 2024 and 2 January 2024 respectively

- Resigned as a member of the Risk Management
and Compliance Committee of Dah Sing Bank,
Limited with effect from 1 January 2024

- Director’s fee revised to HK$520,000 per annum

with effect from 1 January 2024

(f)  Mr. Kin-Sang Cheung (Alex Cheung)
Independent Non-Executive Director

- Ceased as a member of the Banking Industry
Training Advisory Committee on 31 December
2023

- Took up the Chairman role of the Board of
Governors of World Green Organisation with
effect from 1 February 2024

Save as disclosed above, there is no other information

required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable within 1 year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

A list of the names of all the directors who have served on
the boards of the subsidiaries of the Company during the
year and up to the date of this Report of the Directors is
provided in the “Directors of Subsidiaries” section which

follows this Report of the Directors.

Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of the Company

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the Chief Executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”))
which were required to be notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “SEHK”)
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they have taken on or are deemed to have
acquired under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required pursuant to the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein, or as otherwise required to be notified
to the Company and the SEHK pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers and
the code of conduct for directors’ securities dealing adopted
by the Company (collectively the “Securities Model Code”)

were as follows:

Percentage of

interests in the

Personal Corporate Other Total total number of

Directors interests interests interests interests issued shares
David Shou-Yeh Wong - 1,045,626,9551) - 1,045,626,955 74.38%
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 2,884,691 - - 2,884,691 0.21%
Nicholas John Mayhew 4,491,076 - - 4,491,076 0.32%
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of Percentage of

Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited

interests in the

Personal Corporate Other Total total number of

Directors interests interests interests interests issued shares
David Shou-Yeh Wong 173,4600) 137,285,682 - 137,459,142 43.01%
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 39,7710 - - 39,771 0.01%
Gary Pak-Ling Wang 107,063®) - - 107,063 0.03%
Nicholas John Mayhew 197,986%) - - 197,986 0.06%
Number of ordinary shares/underlying shares of Percentage of

Bank of Chongqing Co., Ltd. - A shares interests in the

Personal Corporate Other Total total number of

Director interests interests interests interests issued shares
Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 7,100 - - 7,100 0.00%
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Notes:

Such shares included the indirect corporate interests of David Shou-Yeh Wong in the Company under Part XV of the SFO by virtue of his
beneficial interests of 43.01% in Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”) which currently holds a controlling interest of 74.37% in the
Company and interests in the shares of the Company held through a company controlled by David Shou-Yeh Wong.

The personal interests comprised of (a) interests in 934,691 ordinary shares of the Company; (b) interests in share options in respect of
450,000 underlying shares of the Company as disclosed under the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its Associated
Corporation”; and (c) deemed interests in 1,500,000 notional underlying shares of the Company relating to cash-settled share-based
incentive options granted by the Company as explained in note (4) below.

The personal interests comprised of (a) interests in 2,541,076 ordinary shares of the Company; (b) interests in share options in respect
of 450,000 underlying shares of the Company as disclosed under the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its Associated
Corporation”; and (c) deemed interests in 1,500,000 notional underlying shares of the Company relating to cash-settled share-based
incentive options granted by the Company as explained in note (4) below.

The Company had established a cash-settled share-based incentive option scheme as a long-term incentive plan to incentivize employees
on 20 March 2018. The rights granted under the scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches commencing from the first
anniversary of the date of grant. Subject to the satisfaction of performance appraisal factors, the grantees may exercise their vested
options. No shares of the Company will be issued to the grantees of the options under the scheme which is essentially a deferred cash
incentive scheme linked to the performance of the grantees and the share price of the Company.

The personal interests were in respect of share awards granted under the Share Award Scheme of DSFH. Details are set out in the section
headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its Associated Corporation”.

The corporate interests were in respect of shares held by a corporation in which the director controls one third or more of the voting

powers at general meetings and shares held by companies under a family discretionary trust. HSBC International Trustee Limited is the
trustee of a family discretionary trust of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

Save as disclosed above and the details as disclosed under

All the interests stated above represented long positions.
As at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or Chief
Executive of the Company held any short positions as
defined under the SFO which are required to be recorded in
the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests and

short positions.

the section headed “Share Schemes of the Company and its
Associated Corporation”, as at 31 December 2023, none of
the Directors or Chief Executive of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
SEHK pursuant to the Securities Model Code.
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SHARE SCHEMES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

(a) The Company

I

Share option scheme

On 27 May 2014, the shareholders of the
Company approved the adoption of a share
option scheme (the “DSBG Share Option
Scheme”).

In accordance with the requirements of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”), a summary of the DSBG Share

Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the scheme:

The purpose of the scheme is to attract,
motivate and retain high quality executives
to contribute to the Group’s business and

growth.

(2)  Participants of the scheme:

Eligible participants of the scheme
included directors and employees holding
supervisory positions in the Company and
its subsidiaries.

(3)  Total number of shares available for issue
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors:

The number of shares available for issue
under the scheme is 70,076,781 shares,
representing 4.99% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company as at the
date of this Report of the Directors.

(4)  Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the scheme:

No share options may be granted to any
eligible person which, if exercised, would
result in such eligible person becoming

entitled to subscribe for such number of

shares as, when aggregated with the total
number of shares already issued or to
be issued to him under all share options
granted to him in the 12-month period up
to and including the offer date of relevant
share options, exceed 1% of the shares
in issue at such date. Any grant of further
share options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the scheme
and the Listing Rules as amended from

time to time.

(5)  Period within which the option may be
exercised by the grantee:

The exercise period is determined by
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of the
Company, and is specified when related
share options are granted. Shares under
the share options must be taken up within
10 years from the date of grant. All the
existing share options granted under the
scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting
in 5 equal tranches between the first and
fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(6)  Vesting period of options granted:

The vesting period is determined by
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of the
Company, and is specified when related
share options are granted. None of the
existing share options granted under the
scheme shall be exercisable within one
year from the date of grant.
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(7) Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of
an option is HKS1 and must be made
within 21 days upon offer of granting
of share options or the date on which
the conditions (if any) for the offer are
satisfied.

(8)  Basis of determining the exercise price of
options granted:

The exercise price per option share
is concluded by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of the Company on the basis
no less exacting than the requirement set
out in Rule 17.03E of the Listing Rules and
is determined as no less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of the Company’s

shares traded on the SEHK on the date of
grant; and (ii) the average closing price
of the Company’s shares traded on the
SEHK for the 5 business days immediately
preceding the date of grant.

Remaining life of the scheme:

The scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from
27 May 2014 and expiring at the close of
26 May 2024.

The number of share options available for grant
under the DSBG Share Option Scheme as at
both 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 was
68,876,781.

The particulars of interests in options to

subscribe for ordinary shares of the Company
granted under the DSBG Share Option Scheme
and information that is required to be disclosed

in accordance with the Listing Rules are set out

below:

Number of the Company’s shares underlying the options

Cancelled/
Outstanding lapsed/ Outstanding Exercise Exercise
Date of grant asat Granted Exercised forfeited asat price period®

Grantee (D/M/Y) 1/1/2023  during2023 during2023 during2023  31/12/2023 (HKS) (D/M/Y)
Directors

Gary Pak-Ling Wang 26/04/2018 450,000 - - - 450,000 1824 26/04/2019 -

26/04/2024

Nicholas John Mayhew 26/04/2018 450,000 - - - 450,000 1824 26/04/2019-

26/04/2024

Aggregate of 26/04/2018 300,000 - - - 300,000 1824  26/04/2019-

other employees®? 26/04/2024

Notes:

(1) Allthe existing share options granted under the DSBG Share Option Scheme shall be exercisable upon vesting in 5 equal tranches between

the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(2)  Share options were granted to certain eligible employees, who are directors, senior executives or officers of the major operating

subsidiaries of the Company and are working under employment contracts that are regarded as “continuous contracts” for the purpose of

the Employment Ordinance of Hong Kong.

(3) Details of the computation of the fair value of options at the date of grant and the accounting standard and policy adopted are shown in

Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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1.

Share award scheme

The Board of the Company approved and
adopted a share award scheme (the “DSBG
Share Award Scheme”) on 9 September 2021
(the “Adoption Date”).

In accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, a summary of the DSBG Share
Award Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the scheme:

The purpose of the scheme is to
recognize the contribution or value of
certain participants and to motivate
and incentivize them in furtherance of
the long-term business objectives of the
Group.

(2)  Participants of the scheme:

Eligible participants of the scheme
included any director or employee of the
Company or any other member of the
Group.

(3)  Total number of shares available for issue
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors:

The total number of shares that may be
awarded shall not exceed 42,000,000
shares of the Company (the “DSBG Award
Shares”), representing approximately 3%
of the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at the date of this Report
of the Directors. Under the scheme, the
trustee may acquire issued shares on-
market and/or subscribe new shares from
the Company and hold the DSBG Award
Shares respectively on trust for selected
participants during the trust period.

(4)  Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the scheme:

The total number of the DSBG Award
Shares granted to each participant
shall not exceed 7,000,000 shares of the
Company from time to time.

(5)  Vesting period of awards granted under
the scheme:

The vesting period, criteria and other
conditions is determined by the Board
of the Company or its delegate, and are
specified in the award letter when related
share awards are granted.

(6) Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the award and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid:

Nil.

(7)  Basis of determining the purchase price of
shares awarded:

Nil.

(8)  Remaining life of the scheme:

The scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of 10 years commencing from
9 September 2021 and expiring at the
close of 8 September 2031.

During the period from the Adoption Date
to 31 December 2023, no share awards were
granted under the DSBG Share Award Scheme.
The number of share awards available for grant
under the DSBG Share Award Scheme as at
both 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 was
42,000,000.
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(b) Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited, the
holding company of the Company

I

Share option scheme

On 27 May 2015, the shareholders of Dah Sing
Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”) approved

the adoption of a share option scheme (the
“DSFH Share Option Scheme”).

In accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, a summary of the DSFH Share
Option Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)

Purpose of the scheme:

The purpose of the scheme is to provide
an incentive and/or reward to grantees
for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the interests of, the
DSFH group.

Participants of the scheme:

Any director, manager, or other employee
holding an executive, managerial or
supervisory position in DSFH group of
companies as the Board may in its sole
discretion determine to be eligible to
participate in the scheme.

Total number of shares available for issue
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors:

The number of shares available for issue
under the scheme is 15,978,755 shares,
representing 5% of the total number of
issued shares of DSFH as at the date of
this Report of the Directors.

Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the scheme:

No share options may be granted to any
eligible person which, if exercised, would
result in such eligible person becoming
entitled to subscribe for such number of
shares as, when aggregated with the total
number of shares already issued or to
be issued to him under all share options
granted to him in the 12-month period up
to and including the offer date of relevant
share options, exceed 1% of the shares

in issue at such date. Any grant of further
share options above the limit shall be
subject to the provisions of the scheme
and the Listing Rules as amended from
time to time.

Period within which the option may be
exercised by the grantee:

The exercise period is determined by
the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee on behalf of the Board of
DSFH, and is specified when related share
options are granted. Shares under the
share options must be taken up within
10 years from the date of grant.

Vesting period of options granted:

The vesting period for the options is
determined by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSFH, and is specified when
related share options are granted.

Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid:

The amount payable on acceptance of
an option is HK$1 and must be made
within 21 days upon offer of granting
of share options or the date on which
the conditions (if any) for the offer are
satisfied.

Basis of determining the exercise price of
options granted:

The exercise price per option share
is concluded by the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee on behalf of
the Board of DSFH on the basis no less
exacting than the requirement set out
in Rule 17.03E of the Listing Rules and
is determined as no less than the higher
of (i) the closing price of DSFH’s shares
traded on the SEHK on the date of grant;
and (ii) the average closing price of
DSFH’s shares traded on the SEHK for the
5 business days immediately preceding
the date of grant.
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1.

(9)  Remaining life of the scheme:

The scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing from
27 May 2015 and expiring at the close of
26 May 2025.

No share options had been granted under the
DSFH Share Option Scheme from the date of
its adoption to 31 December 2023. The number
of share options available for grant under the
DSFH Share Option Scheme as at both 1 January
2023 and 31 December 2023 was 15,978,755.

Share award scheme

The Board of DSFH approved and adopted a
share award scheme (the “DSFH Share Award
Scheme”) on 9 September 2021, which was
further updated and amended on 30 March
2022.

In accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules, a summary of the DSFH Share
Award Scheme is disclosed as follows:

(1)  Purpose of the scheme:

The purpose of the scheme is to
recognize the contribution or value of
certain participants and to motivate and
incentivize them in furtherance of the
long-term business objectives of the DSFH

group.

(2)  Participants of the scheme:

Any director or employee of DSFH or
any other member of the DSFH group of
companies is eligible to participate in the
scheme.

(3)  Total number of shares available for grant
under the scheme and percentage of total
number of issued shares as at the date of
this Report of the Directors:

The total number of shares that may be
granted shall not exceed 9,600,000 shares
of DSFH (the “DSFH Award Shares”),

representing approximately 3% of the

total number of issued shares of DSFH as
at the date of this Report of the Directors.
Under the scheme, the trustee may
acquire issued shares on-market and/
or subscribe new shares from DSFH and
hold the DSFH Award Shares on trust for
selected participants during the trust
period.

(4)  Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the scheme:

The total number of the DSFH Award
Shares granted to each participant shall
not exceed 1,600,000 shares of DSFH from
time to time.

(5)  Vesting period of awards granted:

The vesting period, criteria and other
conditions is determined by the Board of
DSFH or its delegate, and are specified
in the award letter when related share
awards are granted.

(6) Amount payable on application or
acceptance of the award and the period
within which payments or calls must or
may be made or loans for such purpose
must be repaid:

Nil.

(7)  Basis of determining the purchase price of
shares awarded:

Nil.

(8)  Remaining life of the scheme:

The scheme shall be valid and effective
for a term of 10 years commencing from
9 September 2021 and expiring at the
close of 8 September 2031.

The number of share awards available for
grant under the DSFH Share Award Scheme as
at 1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 was
9,222,800 and 8,376,938 respectively.
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Particulars of share awards granted under the DSFH Share Award Scheme and information that is required to be
disclosed in accordance with the Listing Rules are set out below:

Number of DSFH Award Shares

Dateof  Outstanding Granted Vested Forfeited/  Outstanding Vesting

grant asat during during  lapsed during asat period

Grantee (D/MJY) 1/1/2023 2023 2023 2023 31/12/2023 (D/M]Y)

Directors

David Shou-Yeh Wong 03/04/2023 - 173,460 - - 173460  03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026

Hon-Hing Wong (Derek Wong) 03/04/2023 - 39,771 - - 39,771 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026

Gary Pak-Ling Wang 03/04/2023 - 107,063 - - 107,063 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026@

Nicholas John Mayhew 06/12/2022 72,700 - 14,540 - 58,160  06/12/2022 -
06/12/20271

03/04/2023 - 125,286 - - 125,286 03/04/2023 -
06/12/2026"

Aggregate of other employees® 06/12/2022 304,500 - 60,220 2,920 241360  06/12/2022 -
06/12/2027W

03/04/2023 - 403,02 - - 403202 03/04/2023 -
03/04/2026

Notes:

(1)  Share awards granted on 6 December 2022 are vested in 5 equal tranches between the first and fifth anniversaries from the date of grant.

(2)  Share awards granted on 3 April 2023 are vested in 3 tranches between the first and third anniversaries from the date of grant.

(3)  Share awards were granted to certain eligible employees of DSFH Group, who are directors or employees of DSFH or any other member of

the DSFH group of companies.

(4)  On 3 April 2023, DSFH granted a total of 848,782 DSFH Award Shares. The closing price of the DSFH shares on 31 March 2023 (being the
business day immediately before 3 April 2023 on which the DSFH Award Shares were granted) was HK$20.15 per share. The award shares

granted are existing issued shares to be acquired by the trustee of the DSFH Share Award Scheme from the market.

(5)  The weighted average closing price of the shares of DSFH immediately before the date on which the DSFH Award Shares were vested
during the year ended 31 December 2023 was HK$15.98.

(6) No DSFH Award Shares were cancelled during the year ended 31 December 2023.

(7) Details of the computation of the fair value of awards at the date of grant and the accounting standard and policy adopted are shown in

Note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes and share award
schemes as disclosed above, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company, its subsidiaries, its
fellow subsidiaries or its holding company during the year or

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2023, the following are the persons, other
than the Directors and Chief Executive of the Company
whose interests are disclosed above, who had interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of

subsisted at the end of the year.

Name

the Company as recorded in the register of shareholders’
interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the
Company.

Percentage of

Number of interestsin
shares held/ the total
Interests number of
Capacity in shares issued shares®

Christine Yen Wong Deemed interests by virtue of her spouse having 1,045,626,955 74.38%
a notifiable interest
Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited  Beneficial interests 1,045,461,643 74.37%
(“DSFH”)
Harold Tsu-Hing Wong Beneficial interests and deemed interests in 1,049,200,188? 74.64%
shares indirectly held by trustee
HSBC International Trustee Limited  Trustee and corporate interests 1,045,461,643% 74.37%
(“HSBCIT”)
Notes:

(1)

(4)

Such shares represented the deemed share interests of Christine Yen Wong by virtue of her spouse, David Shou-Yeh Wong being a
substantial shareholder of DSFH which held a controlling corporate interest in the relevant share capital of the Company and interests in
the Company held through a company in which David Shou-Yeh Wong has a controlling interest. Christine Yen Wong was taken to have
a duty of disclosure in respect of the deemed interests in the Company. These interests comprised the same interests of David Shou-Yeh
Wong under the heading “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

The interests of Harold Tsu-Hing Wong comprised of interests in 1,038,545 ordinary shares of the Company; deemed interests in 2,700,000
notional underlying shares of the Company relating to the cash-settled share-based incentive options granted by the Company; and
deemed interests pursuant to section 322 of the SFO in 1,045,461,643 shares of the Company held by DSFH and HSBCIT through a family
discretionary trust of which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor.

Such shares represented DSFH’s corporate interests in the Company indirectly held by HSBCIT in trust for a family discretionary trust of
which David Shou-Yeh Wong is the settlor. HSBCIT was taken to have a duty of disclosure in relation to the relevant shares of the Company
held through companies of which it has control. The relevant shares have been included in the “Corporate interests” of David Shou-Yeh
Wong as disclosed under the heading “Interests of Directors and Chief Executive” above.

The percentage of interests was calculated with reference to the total number of issued shares of the Company as at 31 December 2023.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, no other persons had any interests or short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register of shareholders’ interests required to be kept by the Company

pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the SFO or otherwise known to the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company,
its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party and in
which a Director of the Company or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every
Director and officer shall be entitled to be indemnified out
of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities
(to the fullest extent permitted by the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622)) which he/she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto. The Company has arranged appropriate
directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company,
or any of its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31 December 2023,
calculated under sections 291, 297 and 299 of the Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), amounted to HK$616,724,000
(2022: HK$561,759,000).

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of transactions with related parties of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023 have been set out in
Note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group derived
less than 30% of interest income and other operating

income from its 5 largest customers.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained the prescribed public float
under the Listing Rules, based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the Directors of the Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The published results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last 5 years are included in the section headed
“Financial Summary” of this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RULES GOVERNING
THE LISTING OF SECURITIES ON THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

The accompanying consolidated financial statements
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of
the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Company has not changed its auditors
in the preceding 3 years.

On behalf of the Board
David Shou-Yeh Wong

Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2024
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MEBARES
DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

REE2023F 128318 EFEREE20245F34 The names of the directors who have served on the boards of the

28H (B A ABI 2 AFEESTEREEZHH) LLH subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023

B HAEXRABZNB AR ESENEE 2 HS and up to 28 March 2024, being the date of the Report of the Directors of

mr Company for the year, are set out below:

(=T R FHES) (in alphabetical order)

FREES CHAN Ha-Fong Nancy

RS CHAN Ho-Tong (Tom CHAN)

FRef CHAN Hoi-Kit Frederick

ek fs 7 > CHAN Seng-Lee*

PR AEEX CHAN Cliff Wai-Kin

1w & CHANG Pui-Yuk Vanessa

fRAg) 1 CHEN Yi-Chuan (Rawson CHEN)*

BRI CHENG Yu-Chung (Patrick CHENG)

RESE CHEUNG Kin-Sang (Alex CHEUNG)

BER CHOW Chi-Leung Cristo

F5IKRA FUNG Siu-Ming (Philip FUNG)

(= HO Ka-Yeung Eric

S et Paul Michael KENNEDY

EIER = LAU Ka-Wai Frederick

2k LAU Pak-Hung

RER LEUNG Wai-Sum (Terence LEUNG)

FRE LI Richard Tsung-Yung

BE MA Yuen-Lai Barbara

B2EZ MAO Chi-Dor (Johnny MAO)

e Nicholas John MAYHEW

*HhE Blair Chilton PICKERELL

T POON Clement

& SZE Tsai-To Robert

Ey i TAM Wai-Hung David

FE%E WANG Pak-Ling Gary

R Paul Franz WINKELMANN

=EE WONG Chit-Kwan (Vincent WONG)

WONG Edmond WONG Edmond

=EE WONG Hon-Hing (Derek WONG)

S WONG Mei-Chun Phoebe

FrE WONG Shou-Yeh David

FrHH WONG Tsu-Hing Harold

EEO YAN Yun-Shum Grace

RRE YUEN Yat-To (Henry YUEN)

* BT/ FTEETARATEHANBASES * Those who have resigned/ceased as a Director of the relevant
BF5 o subsidiary(ies) of the Company.
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IRl
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

EZ 2023512 H31H L For the year ended 31 December 2023

PisE
LB TF (05T HKS’000 Note 2023 2022
FBWA Interest income 7 11,485,605 6,964,602
FMEZH Interest expense 7 (6,670,170)  (2,581,542)
BFHBURA Net interest income 4,815,435 4,383,060
IRFEE R AREUA Fee and commission income 8 1,078,967 2,432,747
IR E R AEZH Fee and commission expense 8 (212,165) (183,652)
FERFERASTUIA Net fee and commission income 866,802 2,249,095
R ZUA Net trading income 9 164,843 142,852
HAhEEWA Other operating income 10 69,004 51,263
EEWA Operating income 5,916,084 6,826,270
EESH Operating expenses 11 (3,168,897)  (3,016,010)
bR RERER 2 EE iR Operating profit before impairment losses 2,747,187 3,810,260
EERERE Credit impairment losses 14 (731,311) (803,100)
N ETFRERETEEE Operating profit before gains and losses
d 600 g Ayl on certain investments and fixed assets 2,015,876 3,007,160
HETEREMEEEEZ Net gain/(loss) on disposal of premises and
Bl (B518) other fixed assets 2,828 (2,451)
WEMEANTERE 2 FEE Net loss on fair value adjustment of investment
properties (41,087) (38,311)
HELUBERA AT RN EMEBEE Net gain on disposal of financial assets at
G amortised cost - 24
YN+ | Share of results of an associate 688,957 656,691
BE NGB 2 RBEREE Impairment loss on the investment in
an associate 24 (552,000) (1,683,000)
REIHEHEARIRE ZEIE Loss on deemed disposal of investment in
an associate (10) (10)
FEIE R HIERE - 2E4E Share of results of jointly controlled entities 27,014 29,879
BRFR AR Profit before taxation 2,141,578 1,969,982
I8 Taxation 15 (281,272) (361,182)
AT RE(LEEGEF Profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Company 1,860,306 1,608,800
SRER Earnings per share
E=FIN Basic 17 HK$1.32 HK$1.14
#a Diluted 17 HK$1.23 HK$1.07
F19EEFENOE MG EMBRER L — The notes on pages 119 to 320 are an integral part of these consolidated
gl o financial statements.
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nﬂ'l:léﬁl‘l&ﬁnie
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

EZ 202351231 HIEEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

LB T 008 HKS’000 2023 2022
FEGF Profit for the year 1,860,306 1,608,800
FEEHMPEWKE (B5i8) Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

ARESEMDBEELEWEIRIER ¢ Items that may be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:

BHRE Investments in securities
AT ESTEEEHESTAEMEE  Netchange in fair value of debt instruments
WamEH TR AT EEEFEE at fair value through other comprehensive income 298,270 (834,317)
R R S s ARIENEE /AT Share of other comprehensive income/(loss) of an
Hﬂﬂiﬁuﬂl 5/ (B518) associate accounted for using the equity method 248,924 (226,037)
NESTEEEHESTAEMEE  Netchange in allowance for expected credit losses
LlﬁZ s ES LAY ARG EEE of debt instruments at fair value through other
EEEETE comprehensive income 33,612 7,109
BRI 7 IRIERR IS Deferred income tax related to the above (43,181) 132,583
B | (920,662)
BB BIMEB R IRRNERER Exchange differences arising on translation of the
financial statements of foreign entities (156,209) (719,179)
TEEMDBRERAWRRNIER - Items that will not be reclassified to the consolidated
income statement:
AT ESZ2EBEEF AEMEE  Net change in fair value of equity instruments

WEMESEE TR ATFEES)FEE  at fair value through other comprehensive income 1,086,307 586,378

BRI IRERIE Deferred income tax related to the above (65,481) (35,153)
B 551,225
MNpREREz EFEEM2ERG Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year,

(&518) net of tax 1,402,242 (1,088,616)
N RIER ZFE2EINELERE Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 3,262,548 520,184
F1I9EEFNOEZMFHRGEMEIRERZ— The notes on pages 119 to 320 are an integral part of these consolidated
g5y o financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2023512931 H As at 31 December 2023

Bt
LGB T lid)m HK$°000 Note 2023 2022
BE ASSETS
B RERITIAERR Cash and balances with banks 18 16,395,770 17,800,880
EIRIT1IE12{8 8 M EHARERR Placements with banks maturing between one
and twelve months 3,151,814 8,616,565
FHER 5 BRES Trading securities 19 1,739,841 562,161
AT Est2 B HEF: AIBHEEMEBE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 19 8,216 9,303
TEERTA Derivative financial instruments 20 3,566,149 3,901,236
RIEERHMERE Advances and other accounts 21 149,113,954 142,712,617
AT EsHE B HEE T AHM Financial assets at fair value through other
2EWmNEHERE comprehensive income 22 40,525,842 38,617,851
MR AT IR SR E E Financial assets at amortised cost 23 39,372,378 32,926,090
C=UNCIE = Investment in an associate 24 2,215,131 2,159,290
HEZEHBERKRE Investments in jointly controlled entities 25 129,946 123,072
e Goodwill 27 713,451 713,451
B EE Intangible assets 27 69,715 69,715
TEREMETEE Premises and other fixed assets 28 2,813,187 2,808,838
REM= Investment properties 29 761,604 802,691
BNEARIEE E Current income tax assets 1,273 -
RIERIEE & Deferred income tax assets 35 165,823 262,273
st Total assets 260,744,094 252,086,033
=1 LIABILITIES
RITE™N Deposits from banks 2,485,044 4,112,493
TTESRMTA Derivative financial instruments 20 1,279,419 997,637
FHERZRENEE Trading liabilities 31 99,853 730,491
BEREWR Deposits from customers 32 207,233,698 199,792,201
BEITHNERE Certificates of deposit issued 33 2,428,028 4,228,983
BEES Subordinated notes 34 5,916,645 3,801,495
Hithik B KT8 Other accounts and accruals 8,020,654 7,873,950
BIEpRIEaE Current income tax liabilities 287,611 284,504
FILRIBEE Deferred income tax liabilities 35 103,699 39,131
aEast Total liabilities 227,854,651 221,860,885
K EQUITY
AT IRERFE LS Equity attributable to the Company’s
shareholders
B Share capital 38 6,894,438 6,894,438
Hitnf# 6 (BIEREEA) Other reserves (including retained earnings) 39 25,683,589 23,019,294
KREE Shareholders’ funds 32,578,027 29,913,732
BEIMERMTA Additional equity instruments 40 311,416 311,416
HEAsH Total equity 32,889,443 30,225,148
EEREaEAE Total equity and liabilities 260,744,094 252,086,033

EEEN2024F3 828 B RISREEEf o

FI9EEFE0EZ WD ARG BREZ —

BB e

HEHE
EFE EEESE

March 2024.

Gary Pak-Ling Wang
Director

financial statements.

Hon-Hing Wong
Managing Director

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28

The notes on pages 119 to 320 are an integral part of these consolidated
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REEmEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

#F 2023512431 H IE£EFE For the year ended 31 December 2023

LGB T Tli5)n HKS*000

20231510455 Balance at 1 January 2023

FERR Profit for the year

FEHMZERE Other comprehensive income
for the year

DARRHESZ (T LURMEAEEERE  Provision for equity-settled share-based
2B compensation

BIMERME TR ZIKETE Distribution payment of additional
equity instruments

2002FREKE 2022 final dividend
2023F RS 2023 interim dividend
2023F12831 Q&R Balance at 31 December 2023
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mEEmEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EZ 2023512 H31H L For the year ended 31 December 2023

EUNCTl S
Attributable to the shareholders TEOL
of the Company ERMTE
BEE Hititt REEA Additional Emast
Share Other Retained equity Total
LUBBF TG HK$'000 capital reserves earnings  instruments equity
2022131 H 48R Balance at 1 January 2022 6,894,438 1,446,488 21,571,990 898,587 30,811,503
FERF Profit for the year - - 1,608,800 - 1,608,800
FEHMZEEE Other comprehensive loss for the year - (1,088,616) - - (1,088,616)
BhEEMERIET A Redemption of additional equity
instruments - - - (898,587) (898,587)
BTEIMERIETA Issue of additional equity instruments - - - 311,416 311,416
DRSS (S ARG EAEHEREN  Provision for equity-settled share-based
2k compensation - 239 - - 239
BIMER U TR ZIKERIE Distribution payment of additional equity
instruments - - (41,652) - (41,652)
2021F KRS 2021 final dividend - - (337,380) - (337,380)
2022F RS 2022 interim dividend - - (140,575) - (140,575)
20212831045 Balance at 31 December 2022 6,894,438 358,111 22,661,183 311416 30,225,148
FIIEEFENOE MDA M ERET L — The notes on pages 119 to 320 are an integral part of these consolidated
Bk o financial statements.
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mEREREEER
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EZ 202351231 HIEEEE For the year ended 31 December 2023

PisE

LGB T Tl Z)m HK$°000 Note 2023 2022
RESESZIRERE Cash flows from operating activities
1R E) (FRA) /TRAIRE 348 Net cash (used in)/from operating activities 41(a) (1,144,937) 4,960,686
KEEESZRETRE Cash flows from investing activities
EEREMERAMETEE Purchase of investment properties and other

fixed assets (275,081) (267,346)
HETEREMEEEERMSNRIE Proceeds from disposal of premises and other

fixed assets 17,813 208
BUHEEIERI B ARIHEABRE Dividend received from jointly controlled

entities and associate 218,377 230,664
KRB EHPTAIRE P Net cash used in investing activities (38,891) (36,474)
REEHZRSRE Cash flows from financing activities
BITERIMERM TR Issue of additional equity instruments - 311,416
BEBEIMERETAR Repayment of additional equity instruments - (895,321)
BFITRERGER Issue of subordinated notes 41(c) 1,939,796 -
GEN=S=L= AN Payment of lease liabilities (148,553) (148,876)
EIMER M TR 2 REERIE Distribution payment on additional equity

instrument (36,007) (41,652)
FEETRERBMER Interest paid on subordinated notes and debt

BHZFE securities issued 41(c) (309,761) (164,342)

IREA RNz BRI E Dividend paid on ordinary shares of the

Company (562,301) (477,955)
BMEEERA (FTA) IR& 358 Net cash from/(used in) financing activities 883,174 (1,416,730)
REKRERIRLIAR GAL) 1EIN$%E Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash

equivalents (300,654) 3,507,482
FYRERERREEE Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year 19,260,423 16,042,821
EXEE 8 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 5,035 (289,880)
FEXRRERERIREIER Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 41(b) 18,964,804 19,260,423
FL9EEFENE MG EMBRET T — The notes on pages 119 to 320 are an integral part of these consolidated
gl o financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1. GENERAL INFORMATION

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) provide banking, financial and other related
services in Hong Kong, Macau, and the People’s Republic of China.

The Company is an investment holding company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The address of its registered office is 26th Floor, Dah Sing
Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The holding company is Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (“DSFH”),

a listed company in Hong Kong.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 28 March 2024.

2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the reporting years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”, which is a collective term and includes individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”), financial assets and financial liabilities held for
trading, and financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, which are carried at fair
value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in applying
the Group’s accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the period the assumptions change. Management believes that the
underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the consolidated
financial statements therefore present the financial position and results
fairly. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended standards
to its annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2023:

- HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 (Amendments) -
Disclosure of Accounting Policies

- HKAS 8 (Amendments) - Definition of Accounting Estimates

- International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules -
amendments to HKAS 12

- Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction - amendments to HKAS 12

None of these has a significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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2.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(Continued)

. Adoption of amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax

Reform

Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar Two
Model Rules apply to income taxes arising from tax law enacted
or substantively enacted to implement the Pillar Two model
rules published by the Organisation for Economic Co-operation
and Development (“OECD”). The Group is within the scope of
the OECD Pillar Two model rules. Pillar Two legislation has
been enacted in some tax jurisdictions in the world and will be
implemented in Hong Kong in 2025. Under the legislation, the
Group is liable to pay a top-up tax for the difference between
the Global Anti-Base Erosion Proposal (“GloBE”) effective tax
rate for each tax jurisdiction and the 15% minimum tax rate. The
Group has applied the exception to recognising and disclosing
information about deferred income tax assets and liabilities
related to Pillar Two income taxes and there is no current tax
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2023 under Pillar Two

legislation.

Due to the complexities in applying the legislation and calculating
GloBE income, the quantitative impact of the legislation on
the Group is not yet reasonably estimable. The Group plans to
conduct further analyses and may engage tax specialists to assist
itin applying the legislation.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

121



122

2. BXREFEREE (&)

2.1 RREE(H)
(Z) KRR RASNETTER R a2 FE

ETERMUGSHERRRRAEST > ¥
2023F 12 B 31 B ¥Rk & HA 0 IF 75 o8l ME %
R AEETMERATRA

—  BEEEHENFIN(ER]) — RPN
IERBEENDER

— BBEHENFIH(ES]) —AE5H
Rz IEREaRE

—  EBMBREERIFELN (BF]) —&
®rBERIMZHESRE

— BEREHESHE(E]) —MBRERE
5 — B Z AR T ERIRRRE P REH]
BEMERAZ DL

— EBEBEHERNETRREBYBRSE
HERBTIR (1BE]) — (HIERRE 2 hr

—  BEBAGFHENER (B —R=H
T

—  EEMBREERFIKREEGS
HER 285 (185]) — IR E & A H R
TEFGEREZEEHETRA

TAsH BT HAKEE BRI SURARAVER S
HLURAITERHARRRZ RN GELEE AR
4 o

REHMB2023F 1A 1B LM NRENZE
BYBRESERNZEERARNAERFTEAR
%,

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

2.1

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) New and amended standards and interpretations
not yet adopted

Certain amendments to accounting standards and interpretation
have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2023 reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group:

- HKAS 1 (Amendments) - Classification of Liabilities as

Current or Non-current

- HKAS 1 (Amendments) - Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

- HKFRS 16 (Amendments) - Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback

- HK Interpretation 5 (Revised) - Presentation of Financial
Statements - Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause

- HKAS 7 and HKFRS 7 (Amendments) - Supplier Finance
Arrangements

- HKAS 21 (Amendments) - Lack of Exchangeability

- HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments) - Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture

These amendments are not expected to have material impact
on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.

There are no other HKFRSs or interpretations that are effective from

1 January 2023 or not yet effective that would be expected to have a

material impact on the Group.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over which
the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to
the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for business combinations by the Group. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values
of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from
a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
the Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over
the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously
held interest measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Subsidiaries (Continued)

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b) Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests as
transactions with equity holders of the Company. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any
consideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also recorded
in equity.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest
in the entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture
or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the related
assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or loss.
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2.2

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Consolidation (Continued)
(c) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting and are
initially recognised at cost. The Group’s investment in an associate
includes goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment loss)
identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and
its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised
in reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are
adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds
its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless
it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associates.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of results of an associate” in the consolidated

income statement.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest
in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses in associate are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, the investments
in associates are stated at cost less provision for impairment
losses. The results of associates are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and receivable.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2 Consolidation (Continued)

(d) Jointly controlled entities

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group
and other parties undertake an economic activity, which is
subject to joint control and none of the participating parties has
unilateral control over the economic activity.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using equity method of accounting. The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of
the results of jointly controlled entities for the year, and the
consolidated statement of financial position includes the Group’s

share of the net assets of the jointly controlled entities.

2.3 Interestincome and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the consolidated income
statement for all debt instruments measured at amortised cost and fair
value through other comprehensive income using the effective interest
method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the
interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Group estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment
options) but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation
includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to
the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been
written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is
recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Fee and commission income and expense

Fee and commission income from contracts with customers is
measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a
customer. The Group recognises revenue when it transfers control over

aservice to a customer.

Fees for ongoing account management, custody services and other
servicing fees that are continuously provided over an extended period
of time are recognised on systematic basis over the period the service is
provided.

Revenue related to transaction-based arrangements such as
interchange, broking services and import or export services is
recognised at the point in time when the transaction takes place.

2.5 Dividend income

Dividends are recognised in the consolidated income statement when
the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities
Measurement methods
Amortised cost and effective interest rate

The amortised cost is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus the principal
repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortisation using the
effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount
and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any loss
allowance.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset (i.e. its amortised cost before any impairment allowance)
or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. The calculation does
not consider expected credit losses and includes transaction costs,
premiums or discounts and fees and points paid or received that are
integral to the effective interest rate, such as origination fees. For
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (assets that
are credit-impaired at initial recognition) the Group calculates the
credit-adjusted effective interest rate, which is calculated based on
the amortised cost of the financial asset instead of its gross carrying
amount and incorporates the impact of expected credit losses in
estimated future cash flows.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Measurement methods (Continued)
Amortised cost and effective interest rate (Continued)

When the Group revises the estimates of future cash flows, the carrying
amount of the respective financial asset or financial liability is adjusted
to reflect the new estimate discounted using the original effective
interest rate. Any changes are recognised in profit or loss.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to purchase or sell
the asset.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset or financial
liability at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset
or financial liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are incremental and directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of the financial asset or financial liability, such as fees and
commissions. Transaction costs of financial assets and financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in
profit or loss. Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit
loss (“ECL”) allowance is recognised for financial assets measured at
amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI
which results in an accounting loss being recognised in profit or loss
when an asset is newly originated.

When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities differs from the
transaction price on initial recognition, the Group recognises the
difference as follows:

(@)  When the fair value is evidenced by a quoted price in an active
market for an identical asset or liability (i.e. a Level 1 input)
or based on a valuation technique that uses only data from
observable markets, the difference is recognised as a gain or loss.

(b) In all other cases, the difference is deferred and the timing of
recognition of deferred day one profit or loss is determined
individually. It is either amortised over the life of the instrument,
deferred until the instrument’s fair value can be determined using

market observable inputs, or realised through settlement.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets

(i) PERHEZEFE
FEEDEHEREEE MIFEER

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

. MAFESEBEEEFHHAER (8 . Fair value through profit or loss (including held for trading);
ERERZ AR ;

. MAFEstEEEEH T AHMEE . Fair value through other comprehensive income; or
Yead 5

. BEERALAS © . Amortised cost.

B TREZ DERESNT ¢

EF LA

EBTARZEUETABRMETEEE
AHEMERZITE  MER - BUREER
FRNREEBTRBEERZBZRIGR -

BFLRZDEREBZSEEIUAN

The classification requirements for debt and equity instruments
are described below:

Debt instruments

Debt instruments are those instruments that meet the definition
of a financial liability from the issuer’s perspective, such as
loans, government and corporate bonds and trade receivables
purchased from clients in factoring arrangements.

Classification and subsequent measurement of debt instruments

depend on:
. TEBREEZBEEBEN ) K . the Group’s business model for managing the asset; and
. ZEEZIREREME o . the cash flow characteristics of the asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Based on these factors, the Group classifies its debt instruments
into one of the following three measurement categories:

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”), and
that are not designated at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVPL”), are measured at amortised cost. The carrying
amount of these assets is adjusted by any ECL allowance
recognised and measured as described in section (ii) below.
Interest income from these financial assets is calculated
using the effective interest rate method.

. FVOCI: Financial assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the assets, where
the assets’ cash flows represent SPPI, and that are not
designated at FVPL, are measured at FVOCI. Movements
in the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income (“OCI”), except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign
exchange gains and losses on the instrument’s amortised
cost which are recognised in profit or loss. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to
profit or loss. Interest income from these financial assets is
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at FVPL and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit or
loss and presented in the consolidated income statement
in the period in which it arises.



2.

EXEFBEREEE ()

2.6 TMEERERGE)

EHEE (B)

(i) PERHEEBRZEGE
EF TR ()

EBELN  EHRARREAERNFNEESR
EUELERERM - &Rz BRESME
RZEEWNANRERIWR SRS R
FRCHEZEETWEIRERM © HEmE &
TERWMERMEEDFEXZAR) © Ao
BZEMEESHMEBREAZ -5 Ok
BUATESEEHEFF ABGEEE - &
EENM—AHEEETEGREAREBZAER
BEBEZERN  MARZEEERNS
KIRERM ~ WRAEFHEREFEEZ RIRNER
FEEEEAS ~ MO EER AU
AMHREREAS - HIFRZBARZESFTE
AEEEAR SRR —HEEZEMTH
HEZz—8My (BB RBEERaAFEE
Mz EBER) - ZFBFRDEEHM)
EBBEARIIRU AT ESHERHEEF A

1B o

MEAERABZEN  HEBRAREE
BEMWEEHIREANAREEHIRER
ke > AEEET SR TAZIRSME
BERRABES RS ZEMN ((MBEER
FBZEMRR) o TEEITTEE - £EE
FEBCNRERBEANBERIIES —
o BAERESERNEEER - FERA
& HthBEABERBAFBERZ EEHEE
KEEZH—E - WELFRRSI AR R
BEZHF R RlEAESURIE - HHRIER
BESRUATESHERHEFHABEZD
ERETE -

BRRMTETAZSHEE  SETHRE
MERMBAT RIS Z BN ELIEEREF
EE o

2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

Business model: the business model reflects how the Group
manages the assets in order to generate cash flows. That is,
whether the Group’s objective is solely to collect the contractual
cash flows from the assets or is to collect both the contractual
cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of assets. If neither
of these is applicable (e.g. financial assets are held for trading
purposes), then the financial assets are classified as part of “other”
business model and measured at FVPL. Factors considered by the
Group in determining the business model for a group of assets
include past experience on how the cash flows for these assets
were collected, how the asset’s performance is evaluated and
reported to key management personnel, how risks are assessed
and managed and how managers are compensated. Securities
held for trading are held principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term or are part of a portfolio of financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. These securities
are classified in the “other” business model and measured at
FVPL.

SPPI: Where the business model is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows or to collect contractual cash flows and
sell, the Group assesses whether the financial instruments’ cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and interest (the
“SPPI test”). In making this assessment, the Group considers
whether the contractual cash flows are consistent with a basic
lending arrangement (i.e. interest includes only consideration
for the time value of money, credit risk, other basic lending
risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement). Where the contractual terms introduce exposure
to risk or volatility that are inconsistent with a basic lending
arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and
measured at FVPL.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in

their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are
SPPI.
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2.

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Classification and subsequent measurement (Continued)
Debt instruments (Continued)

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when
its business model for managing those assets changes. The
reclassification takes place from the start of the first reporting
period following the change. Such changes are expected to be
very infrequent and none occurred during the period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments are instruments that meet the definition of
equity from the issuer’s perspective; that is, instruments that do
not contain a contractual obligation to pay and that evidence
a residual interest in the issuer’s net assets. Examples of equity

instruments include basic ordinary shares.

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at
fair value through profit or loss, except where the Group’s
management has elected, at initial recognition, to irrevocably
designate an equity investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income. When this election is used, fair value
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss, including on disposal. Dividends,
when representing a return on such investments, continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Group’s

right to receive payment is established.

Gains and losses on equity investments at FVPL are included in
the “Net trading income” in the consolidated income statement.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(ii) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis the ECL associated
with its debt instrument assets carried at amortised cost and
FVOCI and with the exposures arising from loans to customers,
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts. The Group
recognises a loss allowance for such losses at each reporting
date. The measurement of ECL reflects:

. An unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is

RIER Bt AR £58 ; determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes;
. SERNREEE; & . The time value of money; and
. BATCERNNE M ASE MM EE . Reasonable and supportable information that is available

RERAZABMBESMN  BEEBER
RIBAIRBAEER R BB RABEN
REVE RS o

DS SRRAS B SMEEZ HEERFBZY
RHEBEERMBEZIR - EREERYHE
REAZREEFHRED BB RTHMRE
KeFate 1z —8bm o IRTEStEEEED)
STARMEERG 2 EHTAZREERSE
AFE - HREEFHER S IREE AR

Z—EBD ©

MiEE3.2.28R B X5 F AU A 2R
EEREER -

without undue cost or effort at the reporting date about
past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Impairment allowance of financial assets measured at amortised
cost is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets. Impairment allowance of loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts is recognised as a provision as
part of “Other accounts and accruals”. The carrying amount of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI is their fair value. Their
impairment allowance is recognised as part of “Investment
revaluation reserve”.

Note 3.2.2 provides more details of how the ECL allowance is
measured.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

134

(i) EmfER

FEFERFEMHHIUEMAGNERER
Bz afHEM o MAEILEER » A5H
GHEMFRE S HRIFRNEERERE ° &
EERLEEEETIRE :

. B fERABRMHRE > BREER
ERESORTAEENATAIRASE

(iii) Modification of loans

The Group sometimes renegotiates or otherwise modifies
the contractual cash flows of loans to customers. When this
happens, the Group assesses whether or not the new terms are
substantially different to the original terms. The Group does this
by considering, among others, the following factors:

. If the borrower is in financial difficulty, whether the

modification merely reduces the contractual cash flows to

TMEENEEE © amounts the borrower is expected to be able to pay.
. BAEMAEAEARFGER > FlNE . Whether any substantial new terms are introduced, such as

At BERRBARNFEIE
Dt R B 2 [OFR o

ERTRAREI 5 15 Ry A IE
REMHAR ©

a profit share/equity-based return that substantially affects
the risk profile of the loan.

. Significant extension of the loan term when the borrower is

not in financial difficulty.

. R BEBAREE o . Significant change in the interest rate.
. ERNEEEE 2 EE o . Change in the currency the loan is denominated in.
. MMAZIER G~ EMiERYSAIEE . Insertion of collateral, other security or credit
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enhancements that significantly affect the credit risk
associated with the loan.

If the terms are substantially different, the Group derecognises
the original financial asset and recognises a “new” asset at
fair value and recalculates a new effective interest rate for the
asset. The date of renegotiation is consequently considered
to be the date of initial recognition for impairment calculation
purposes, including for the purpose of determining whether a
significant increase in credit risk has occurred. However, the
Group also assesses whether the new financial asset recognised is
deemed to be credit-impaired at initial recognition, especially in
circumstances where the renegotiation was driven by the debtor
being unable to make the originally agreed payments. Differences
in the carrying amount are also recognised in profit or loss as a
gain or loss on derecognition.
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Financial assets (Continued)
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(iii) Modification of loans (Continued)

If the terms are not substantially different, the renegotiation or
modification does not result in derecognition, and the Group
recalculates the gross carrying amount based on the revised
cash flows of the financial asset and recognises a modification
gain or loss in profit or loss. The new gross carrying amount
is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the
original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest
rate for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets).

(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification

Financial assets, or a portion thereof, are derecognised when
the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the assets
have expired, or when they have been transferred and either
(i) the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership, or (ii) the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and the
Group has not retained control.

The Group enters into transactions where it retains the
contractual rights to receive cash flows from assets but assumes
a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to other entities
and transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards. These
transactions are accounted for as “pass through” transfers that

result in derecognition if the Group:

. Has no obligation to make payments unless it collects

TWisZ (RIEZ ST ; equivalent amounts from the assets;
. WEIFHESNRIREE ; & . Is prohibited from selling or pledging the assets; and
. BEAEEENMETEHNEEE . Has an obligation to remit any cash it collects from the

EZEARE -

assets without material delay.
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2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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(iv) Derecognition other than on a modification (Continued)

Collateral (shares and bonds) furnished by the Group under
standard repurchase agreements and securities lending and
borrowing transactions are not derecognised because the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards on the
basis of the predetermined repurchase price, and the criteria
for derecognition are therefore not met. This also applies to
certain securitisation transactions in which the Group retains a
subordinated residual interest.

When the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the
assets have been transferred, and the Group neither transfers
nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership,
and the Group has retained control of the transferred assets, the
Group applies continuing involvement approach.

Under this approach, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement
and recognise the associated liability, to reflect the rights and
obligations retained by the Group. The net carrying amount of
the transferred asset and associated liability is: (a) the amortised
cost of the rights and obligations retained by the Group, if the
transferred asset is measured at amortised cost; or (b) equal to
the fair value of the rights and obligations retained by the Group
when measured on a stand-alone basis, if the transferred asset is
measured at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities
(i) Classification and subsequent measurement

In both the current and prior period, financial liabilities are
classified and subsequently measured at amortised cost, except
for:

. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: this
classification is applied to derivatives, financial liabilities
held for trading (e.g. short positions in the trading booking)
and other financial liabilities designated as such at
initial recognition. Gains or losses on financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss are presented
partially in other comprehensive income (the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability,
which is determined as the amount that is not attributable
to changes in market conditions that give rise to market
risk) and partially profit or loss (the remaining amount of
change in the fair value of the liability). This is unless such
a presentation would create, or enlarge, an accounting
mismatch, in which case the gains and losses attributable to
changes in the credit risk of the liability are also presented
in profit or loss;

. Financial liabilities arising from the transfer of financial
assets which did not qualify for derecognition, or when
the continuing involvement approach applies. When the
transfer of financial asset did not qualify for derecognition,
a financial liability is recognised for the consideration
received for the transfer. In subsequent periods, the Group
recognises any expense incurred on the financial liability;
when continuing involvement approach applies; and

. Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments.
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SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.6 Financial assets and liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

(ii) Derecognition

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are extinguished
(i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires).

The exchange between the Group and its original lenders of
debt instruments with substantially different terms, as well
as substantial modifications of the terms of existing financial
liabilities, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability.
The terms are substantially different if the discounted present
value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any
fees paid net of any fees received and discounted using the
original effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows of the
original financial liability. In addition, other qualitative factors,
such as the currency that the instrument is denominated in,
changes in the type of interest rate, new conversion features
attached to the instrument and change in covenants are also
taken into consideration. If an exchange of debt instruments or
modification of terms is accounted for as an extinguishment, any
costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss
on the extinguishment. If the exchange or modification is not
accounted for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred to
adjust the carrying amount of the liability are amortised over the
remaining term of the modified liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer
to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due,
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and others on
behalf of customers to secure loans, overdrafts and other banking
facilities.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially measured at fair value and
subsequently measured at the higher of:

. The amount of the loss allowance; and

. The fee received on initial recognition less income recognised
in accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”.

Loan commitments provided by the Group are measured as the amount
of the loss allowance. The Group has not provided any commitment to
provide loans at a below-market interest rate, or that can be settled net
in cash or by delivering or issuing another financial instrument.

For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the loss
allowance is recognised as a provision. However, for contracts that
include both a loan and an undrawn commitment and the Group
cannot separately identify the expected credit losses on the undrawn
commitment component from those on the loan component, the
expected credit losses on the undrawn commitment are recognised
together with the loss allowance for the loan. To the extent that the
combined expected credit losses exceed the gross carrying amount of
the loan, the expected credit losses are recognised as a provision.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Derivative and hedging activities

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at
fair value. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives are embedded in hybrid contracts, such as the
conversion option in a convertible bond. If the hybrid contract
contains a host that is a financial asset, then the Group assesses the
entire contract as described in the financial assets section above for
classification and measurement purposes. Otherwise, the embedded

derivatives are treated as separate derivatives when:

. Their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to

those of the host contract;

. A separate instrument with the same terms would meet the

definition of a derivative; and

. The hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or

loss.

These embedded derivatives are separately accounted for at fair value,
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated income
statement unless the Group chooses to designate the hybrid contracts
at fair value through profit or loss.

The method of recognising the resulting fair value gain or loss depends
on whether the derivative is designated and qualifies as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged. The Group
designates certain derivatives as hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or liabilities or firm commitments (fair value hedges).

The Group documents, at the inception of the hedge, the relationship
between hedged items and hedging instruments, as well as its risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge
transactions. The Group also documents its assessment, both at hedge
inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are
used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes
in fair values of hedged items.
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2.8

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Derivative and hedging activities (Continued)

(a) Fairvalue hedge

Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and
qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the consolidated
income statement under “Net trading income - Net gain/(loss)
arising from financial instruments subject to fair value hedge”,
together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset
that are attributable to the hedged risk.

If the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting,
the adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged item for
which the effective interest method is used is amortised to profit
or loss over the period to maturity. If the hedge relationship no
longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting or is terminated
for reasons other than derecognition, e.g. due to repayment of
the hedged item, the unamortised carrying value adjustment
(the difference between the carrying value of the hedged item
at the time of termination and the value at which it would have
been carried had the hedge never existed) to the hedged item is
amortised to the income statement over the remaining life of the
hedged item by the effective interest method. If the hedged item
is derecognised, the unamortised carrying value adjustment is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

(b) Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting

Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in the consolidated income statement under
“Net trading income - Net gain/(loss) from derivatives entered
into for trading purpose”. For derivatives that are managed
in conjunction with designated financial assets or financial
liabilities, the gains and losses arising from changes in their fair
value are included under “Net trading income - Net gain/(loss) on
financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss”.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy
of the Company or the counterparty.

2.10 Sale and repurchase agreements

The liability to counterparties in respect of securities sold subject
to repurchase agreements (“repos”) is included in amounts due to
other banks, deposits from banks, or other accounts and accruals,
as appropriate. Securities purchased under agreements to resell
(“reverse repos”) are recorded as loans and advances to other banks
or customers, as appropriate. The difference between the sale and
repurchase price is treated as interest and accrued over the life of
the agreements using the effective interest method. Securities lent
to counterparties are also retained in the consolidated financial
statements.

Securities borrowed are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements, unless these are sold to third parties, in which case the
purchases and sales are recorded with the gain or loss included in
trading income. The obligation to return them is recorded at fair value as
a trading liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.11 Repossessed assets

Loans on which collateral assets have been repossessed are not
derecognised and are carried in the consolidated statement of
financial position with appropriate amounts of impairment allowances
made. In the case of delinquent loans on which collateral assets have
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to legal
arrangements or court orders, and with the legal title of the assets
having been passed to the Group, such loans are derecognised. The
foreclosed assets held for resale are included in “Advances and other
accounts - Other assets”.

2.12 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The
chief operating decision maker is the person or group of persons that
allocates resources to and assesses the performance of the operating
segments of an entity. The Group has determined the Chief Executive
and members of the Executive Committee (“EC”) as its chief operating

decision maker.

All transactions between operating segments are conducted on an
arm’s length basis, with inter-segment revenues and costs being
eliminated on consolidation. Income and expenses directly associated
with each segment are included in determining operating segment
performance.

Based on the requirements of HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the Group
has the following segments: Personal Banking, Corporate Banking,
Treasury and Global Markets, Mainland China and Macau Banking, and
Others.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in HK dollars, which is the Group’s presentation currency and the
functional and presentation currency of the Company and major
part of the Group.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the relevant entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains and losses recognised in the
consolidated income statement are presented net in the
consolidated income statement within the corresponding item.
Foreign exchange gains and losses on other comprehensive
income items are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income within the corresponding item.

In the case of changes in the fair value of foreign currency
denominated monetary assets classified as FVOCI, a distinction
is made between translation differences resulting from changes
in amortised cost of the assets and other changes in the carrying
amount of the assets. Translation differences related to changes
in the amortised cost are recognised in the consolidated income
statement, and those related to changes in the carrying amount,
except for impairment, are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
investments in equity instruments held at fair value through
profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation difference on certain other non-monetary items, such
as equities classified as FVOCI, are included in the investment
revaluation reserve in other comprehensive income.
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2.13

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy)
that have a functional currency different from the presentation
currency are translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)  assetsand liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of
that statement of financial position;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised as a
separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the above processes are
reported in shareholders’ equity under “Exchange reserve”.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities are taken
to shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the consolidated income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of

a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.14 Premises and other fixed assets

Premises comprise mainly offices and shops. Leasehold land and
all other fixed assets are stated at historical cost less depreciation.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
- Premises Over the remaining period of lease
- Furniture, fittings, equipment Over the estimated useful lives
and motor vehicles generally between 3 and 10
years or the unexpired terms of
the lease, whichever is shorter

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at each end of the reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.17).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.15 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the companies in the
consolidated Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related
transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair value. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If
this information is not available, the Group uses alternative valuation
methods such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in accordance
with the guidance issued by the International Valuation Standards
Committee. These valuations are reviewed annually by external valuers.
Investment property that is being redeveloped for continuing use as
investment property, or for which the market has become less active,
continues to be measured at fair value.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things,
rental income from current leases and assumptions about rental
income from future leases in the light of current market conditions.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying amount only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated income statement during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.15 Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified
as premises and other fixed assets, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes.

If an item of premises and other fixed assets becomes an investment
property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of
transfer is recognised in equity as a revaluation of premises and other
fixed assets under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the consolidated

income statement.

2.16 Goodwill and intangible assets

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over
the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and
liabilities of the acquiree as at the date of acquisition. Goodwill is
carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested annually for impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of
impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination on which the goodwill arose.

Intangible assets arising from an acquisition are recognised separately
from goodwill when they are separable or arise from contractual or
other legal rights, and their value can be measured reliably. They
include trade names and intangible assets of core deposits, contracts
and customer relationships. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
amortisation, and/or accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated based on estimated useful life ranging from 5 to 12 years
using a diminishing balance method.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and non-
financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or are not yet available
for use are not subject to amortisation, but are tested annually for
impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels (cash-generating units) for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows. Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal
of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Company'’s financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary or an associate is also required upon
receiving dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the
Company’s share of the total comprehensive income of that entity
concerned in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of that entity in the Company’s statement of financial position
exceeds the Company’s share of the carrying amount of that entity’s
net assets including goodwill in its consolidated statement of financial
position.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In such case, the tax is recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in
the countries where the Company’s subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and that are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. The tax effects of income tax
losses available for carry forward are recognised as an asset when it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
these losses can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entities,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax related to investment properties is measured
according to the tax consequence on the presumption that they are
recovered entirely through sale.

Deferred income tax related to fair value re-measurement of debt
securities at FVOCI, which is charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, is also credited or charged directly to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in the
consolidated income statement upon the realisation of relevant
investments.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits
(a) Pension obligations

The Group offers a mandatory provident fund scheme and a
number of defined contribution plans, the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds. These
pension plans are funded by payments from employees and by
the relevant Group companies.

The Group’s contributions to the mandatory provident fund
schemes and defined contribution retirement schemes are
expensed as incurred. Other than mandatory provident fund
contribution, the Group’s contributions may be reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave prior to
vesting fully in the contributions.

(b) Share-based compensation
(i) Share option schemes

The Group has the choice to pay the intrinsic value of the share
option or to issue new shares to a grantee at the date of exercise
under the share-based compensation plans. The total amount to
be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value according to settlement type.

For cash-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is the
fair value of the options granted, with re-measurement at each
reporting period with any change in the cost recognised in the
consolidated income statement, with a corresponding credit or
adjustment to the “Liabilities”.

For equity-settled share-based compensation, the total cost is
measured and recognised based on the fair value of the equity
options at the grant date, with a corresponding credit to the
“Shared-based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’ funds.
The total cost, which is fixed based on the fair value at the grant
date, is charged to consolidated income statement in accordance
with the terms of the vesting of the options over time. When the
options are exercised, the Company will issue new shares to settle
its obligation, and transfer applicable amount from the “Share-
based compensation reserve” to the “Share capital” account.
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2.19

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Share-based compensation (Continued)
(ii) Share award schemes

For award shares under the Share Award Scheme, the amount
to be expensed as share-based compensation expenses is
determined by reference to the fair value of the award shares
granted, taking into account all non-vesting conditions associated
with the grants on grant date. The total expenses is recognised
over the relevant vesting periods or on the grant date if the shares
vest immediately, with a corresponding credit to the “Shared-
based compensation reserve” in the shareholders’ funds.

For those awarded shares which are amortised over the vesting
periods, the Group reviews its estimates of the number of award
shares that are expected ultimately vest based on the vesting
conditions at the end of each reporting period. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative amount recognised in prior years
is charged or credited to share-based compensation expenses
in the current year, with a corresponding adjustment to “Share-
based compensation reserve”.

Where award shares are acquired under the Share Award Scheme
from the market or by electing for scrip in lieu of cash dividends,
the total consideration of the shares acquired from the market
(including any directly attributable costs) or the value of shares
received under the scrip dividend scheme is presented as “Shares
held for share award scheme” and deducted from total equity.

Upon vesting, the related costs of the vested award shares
purchased from the market and shares acquired from reinvesting
cash dividends or received under the scrip dividend scheme
(dividend shares) are credited to “Shares held for share award
scheme”, with a corresponding decrease in “Share-based
compensation reserve” for the purchased shares, and decrease in

retained earnings for the dividend shares.
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2.19

2.20

SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(c) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

(d) Bonus plans

Liabilities for bonus plans due wholly within twelve months after
the end of the reporting period are recognised when the Group
has a present or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation
can be made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present legal or

constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is more likely

than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are

not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the

likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the

same class of obligations may be small.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for use by the
Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and non-
lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and instead accounts
for these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the
following lease payments:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any

lease incentives receivable,

. variable lease payments that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date, if any

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees, if any

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably

certain to exercise that option, and

. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term

reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options
are also included in the measurement of the liability.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay
to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the
right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms,
security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

. where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received,

. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does

not have recent third party financing, and

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term, country,

currency and security.
Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability for each period.
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date

less any lease incentives received,
. any initial direct costs, and

. restoration costs.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2.22 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities
that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts and other institutions. These assets are excluded from the
consolidated financial statements, as they are not assets of the Group.

2.23 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised as a liability in the
consolidated financial statements in the period in which they are
approved by shareholders.

2.24 Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including: cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, treasury bills, other eligible bills and certificates of deposit
and investment securities which are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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2. SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that
an outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to
the consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits

is probable. When such inflow is virtually certain, an asset is recognised.

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those
activities involve the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management
of some degree of risk or combination of risks. Taking risk is core to the
financial business, and operational risks are an inevitable consequence
of being in business. The Group’s aim is therefore to achieve an
appropriate balance between risk and return and minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

The Group’s risk management policies are designed to identify and
analyse these risks, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Group regularly reviews its risk
management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets,
products and emerging best practice.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Risk management is carried out pursuant to the overall strategy and
policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Risk Management and
Compliance Committee (“RMCC”) under the authority delegated by the
Board oversees and guides the management of different risks which are
more particularly managed and dealt with by the Group Risk Division
(“GRD”) and different functional committees. In addition, Internal Audit
is responsible for the independent review of risk management and the
control environment.

To further enhance the risk governance and risk management
standards, the Board has approved a Risk Strategy framework that also
covers the Group’s Risk Appetite framework. The Risk Strategy sets out
the core values and high level risk management direction of the Group,
taking into account the overall business strategy and direction, under
which a robust Risk Appetite framework is established to guide the
strategic planning process and strengthen the risk-return management.
Fundamentally, the Risk Appetite framework sets out the types and
amount of risk that the Group is willing to take in order to achieve its
business plan. The Group’s risk appetite metrics are composed of key
indicators for measuring capital, risks, return and liquidity and this is
supplemented by a set of risk tolerances made up of major risk limits
of the Group. In order to ensure that business is conducted within our
established risk appetite, monitoring on the compliance with the risk
appetite limits and risk tolerance is undertaken on a quarterly basis.
In this connection, the Group has set out its Risk Appetite Statement
that covers five key dimensions of the risks and returns of the Group,
namely, the target returns to shareholders, earnings volatility, solvency,
liquidity and other key risk measures. The GRD is responsible for the
ongoing monitoring of the compliance with the Risk Appetite Statement
and the regular reporting of the status to the RMCC and the Board.
Moreover, the Risk Appetite framework and major risk appetite limits
are subject to review by the RMCC and the Board on an annual basis.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market
risk and operational risk. Market risk includes currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risks.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments

The Group accepts deposits from customers at both fixed and floating
rates, and for various periods, and seeks to earn positive interest
margins by investing and lending these funds in a wide range of assets.
The Group seeks to increase these margins by consolidating short-term
funds and lending for longer periods at higher rates, while maintaining
sufficient liquidity to meet all claims that might fall due.

The Group also seeks to apply its interest margins through its lending to
commercial and retail borrowers and to charge customers appropriate
fees and commission, taking into consideration credit risk and market
conditions. Such exposures involve not just on-balance sheet loans
and advances, as the Group also enters into guarantees and other
commitments such as letters of credit, performance bonds and other
bonds.

The Group also trades in financial instruments where it takes positions
in exchange-traded and over-the-counter (“OTC”) instruments,
including derivatives, to take advantage of short-term market
movements in equities and bonds and in currencies and interest rates.
The Board places trading limits on the level of exposures that can
be taken in relation to market positions. Apart from specific hedging
arrangements, foreign exchange and interest rate exposures are
normally offset by entering into counterbalancing positions (including
transactions with customers or market counterparties), or by the use of
derivatives, thereby controlling the variability in the net cash amounts
required to liquidate market positions.

The Group also uses interest rate swap and other interest rate
derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk arising from changes in interest
rates that will result in decrease in the fair value of fixed rate assets or
increase in the fair value of fixed rate liabilities. Part of these financial
instruments are designated as fair value hedges, and the terms of
hedge including hedged item, amount, interest rates, hedge period
and purpose are determined and documented at the inception of
each fair value hedge. Hedge effectiveness is assessed at inception on
a prospective basis and is reassessed, on an ongoing basis, based on
actual experience and valuation. Fair value hedge relationships that
do not meet the effectiveness test requirement of hedge accounting
are discontinued with effect from the date of ineffectiveness of the fair
value hedge.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk

The Group uses interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to changes
in the fair values of fixed-rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt
securities held in respect of a benchmark interest rate. Pay-floating/
receive-fixed interest rate swaps are matched to specific issuances of
fixed-rate liabilities or pay-fixed/receive-floating interest rate swaps are
matched to fixed-rate debt securities held with terms that closely align
with the critical terms of the hedged item.

Only the interest rate risk element is hedged and therefore other risks,
such as credit risk, are managed but not hedged by the Group. Interest
rate risk to which the Group applies hedge accounting arises from fixed-
rate issued liabilities and fixed-rate debt securities held, whose fair
value fluctuates when benchmark interest rates change. The Group
hedges interest rate risk only to the extent of benchmark interest rates
because the changes in fair value of an issued liability or a debt security
are significantly influenced by changes in the benchmark interest rate.
Hedge accounting is applied where economic hedge relationships meet
the hedge accounting criteria.

Before fair value hedge accounting is applied by the Group, the Group
determines whether an economic relationship between the hedged
item and the hedging instrument exists based on an evaluation of the
qualitative characteristics of these items and the hedged risk that is
supported by quantitative analysis. The Group considers whether the
critical terms of the hedged item and hedging instrument closely align
when assessing the presence of an economic relationship. The Group
evaluates whether the fair value of the hedged item and the hedging
instrument respond similarly to similar risks.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group establishes a hedge ratio by aligning the par amount of the

fixed-rate debt security or issued liabilities and the notional amount

of the interest rate swap designated as a hedging instrument. Possible

sources of ineffectiveness are as follows:

(v)

changes in market liquidity and bid-ask spread of the debt
securities;

the fair value changes related to the benchmark rate before next
fixing date and on the fixed spread over the benchmark rate of
the interest rate swap;

changes in interest rate sensitivity at different fair value level;

the effect of the counterparty and the Group’s own credit risk on
the fair value of the interest rate swap, which is not reflected in
the fair value of the hedged item attributable to the change in

interest rate; and

differences in maturities of the interest rate swap and the debt
securities held or the certificates of deposit issued.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

161



3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 FERERIT AR (&) 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
3.1.1 FFIERBGEEERE N EEEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
H(#) accounting (Continued)
MRz ATER M (@) Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)
RERFFA TR g BARF R R A T EL A The Group held the following interest rate swaps as hedging
ZHHTIA - instruments in fair value hedges of interest risk.
ZER

2023%F12H31H 31 December 2023 Maturity

1ERA 1FEME SEME
E\&EER — FI=R E & Risk category - interest rate risk Less than FE5F More than
LOBM T oA d HKS’000 1year 1-5 years 5 years
AT BB —FEE Hedge of issued liabilities -

certificates of deposit

HE Nominal amount 2,437,126 = =
TFHBEEHZE Average fixed interest rate 4.74% - =
T BB - BEES Hedge of issued liabilities - subordinated notes
HE Nominal amount 1,757,543 4,296,215 -
FHEEFRZE Average fixed interest rate 5% 4.99% -
HrHETrasE—EEs Hedge of issued liabilities - borrowing
HE Nominal amount - - -
THBEEM =R Average fixed interest rate - - -

A Z LA ESTE B HEE) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value

AR MR EWGIETSES through other comprehensive income
HE Nominal amount 1,983,923 11,275,548 3,929,084
B SlEhES Average fixed interest rate 3.79% 3.59% 3.15%

$HREA 2 DU ERAL AT BRAY Hedge of debt securities held at

(EVGECE amortised cost
HE Nominal amount 2,356,655 10,700,221 8,137,928
TFHBEEHZE Average fixed interest rate 3.84% 3.47% 3.03%
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges of interest rate risk (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

ZIH#AE

20225 12H31H 31 December 2022 Maturity

1ELA 1FEME SEME
R BEE R — =R Risk category - interest rate risk Less than 55 More than
LOBTF (15T HKS’000 lyear 1-5years 5years
AT BB —FEE Hedge of issued liabilities -

certificates of deposit
HE Nominal amount 3,898,625 389,863 -
TFHBEEHZE Average fixed interest rate 3.17% 0.74% -
AT BE—BEGS Hedge of issued liabilities - subordinated notes
HE Nominal amount - 4,093,556 -
FHEEFRZE Average fixed interest rate - 3.86% -
HrETras—Es Hedge of issued liabilities - borrowing
L= Nominal amount - - -
THBEEN=ER Average fixed interest rate - - -
A Z UATESTE2B HES) Hedge of debt securities held at fair value
AR M EWGHIETSE S through other comprehensive income
& Nominal amount 4,238,195 10,124,343 5,563,679
THEEF]ZE Average fixed interest rate 3.94% 3.45% 3.34%
R 2 DU ERAL AT BRAY Hedge of debt securities held at
BES amortised cost

HE Nominal amount 48,468 10,620,370 8,846,085
EHEENE Average fixed interest rate 4.52% 3.32% 3.12%
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3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 FERERIT AR (&) 3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)
3.1.1 FFIERBGEEERE N EEEZITET 3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
H(#) accounting (Continued)
ANEEEH Fair value hedges
BREEAYRIEE 28R ¢ The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as
follows:
2023
RETEREMS
RARAEELAE
i RESEZ
BRiE2023E  ETHAEEZATE
IS HhHERAEEE
SEEHERREE HEdESE  Accumulated amount
ZHAHRZATE ZATEES of fair value hedge
HARRAELE R ERBERIRA Changeinvalue adjustments remaining
Accumulated amountof 2 4t0iEE 2 1B subjecttohedge  inthe consolidated
fair value hedge adjustments | ine jtem in the usedfor statement of financial
on the hedged itemincluded  ¢oncolidated calculating hedge position for any
A inthe carrying amount  gtatement of financial ineffectiveness hedged items that
Carrying amount of the hedged item position in which the for 2023 have ceased to be
BT EE &ff BE &fE  hedgeditem ()  adjusted for hedging
HKS$'000 Assets Liabilities Assets  Liabilities isincluded Note (a) gains and losses
G - 2,428,028 - (9,008) BEGMNEDE (54,023) -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
BEER - 5,916,645 - (13,113) BEEE (167,058) -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
B - - - - HOER - -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
FAZUATEIEBHEHHA 16,335,053 - (924,665) - DATEGEBHES 350,969 =
HEt >RGN ERES SIARMZ AR
Debt securities held at fair value THEE
through other comprehensive Financial assets at
income fair value through
other comprehensive
income
FEZNESM AT RN ERES 19,689,607 - (1,505,197) - DUEEmATIERN 433,629 =
Debt securities held at THEE
amortised cost Financial assets at
amortised cost
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge

accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedged items were as

follows: (Continued)

2022
RATLEHE
WRERADELER
R EZ
BRsENNE  EEHAEEZATE
E P S HhREEREE
SIEHPRREREE BEHELE  Accumulated amount
ZHWERZATE 2ATEES of fairvalue hedge
HrRRREER Changeinvalue  adjustments remaining
Accumulatedamountof = Atzeipnze subject to hedge in the consolidated
fair value hedge adjustments w2 40m8 B8 usedfor  statement of financial
onthe hedged item included e jtem n the calculating hedge position for any
A inthe carryingamount  ¢onsolidated statement ineffectiveness hedged items that
Carrying amount ofthe hedged item of financial position in for2022 have ceased to be
LEEF AT BE &fE BE &  whichthe hedged item S(®) adjusted for hedging
HKS'000 Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities isincluded Note (a) gains and losses
FE - 4228983 - (59,505 BETNEDE 41,608 -
Certificates of deposit Certificates of deposit
issued
BEER - 3801495 - (292,061) fEER 328,947 -
Subordinated notes Subordinated notes
(L= - - - - FOEN - -
Borrowing Deposits from banks
FEZUATEHEREEEHA 18,776,876 - (1,260,861) - DATENEBHES (1,923,889) -
HtheEWERERES St ARMEEER
Debt securities held at fair value tHEE
through other comprehensive Financial assets at
income fair value through
other comprehensive
income
BRI BRI B 17,622,300 - (1,892623) - LUBERRIATIRY (1,792,343) -
Debt securities held at SHEE
amortised cost Financial assets at

amortised cost
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and
hedge ineffectiveness were as follows:

2023
i)
20235
HRAH
ZATEES
RRMBIRER Change in fair
BEHHTAZER valueusedfor  FEDNEER
Line item in the calculating ZHHEH
EEE consolidated hedge Ineffectiveness WHEEAES
C B t statement of financial  ineffectiveness recognisedin ¥k ZIER
HfE arrying amoun position where the for 2023 profit/(loss)  Line item in profit or loss
LOBEF A8 Nominal BE &fF hedginginstrumentis 5 () #(R)  thatincludes
HKS000 amount Assets  Liabilities included Note (a) Note(a) hedge ineffectiveness
GilESEI
Interest rate risk
GilESEri Ry pES 2,437,126 1,362 10,556 fT4ERTA 54,486 463 FBATEHFHERER
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TEZ3E/ (i)
certificates of deposit instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financialinstruments
subject to fair value
hedge
Rl - R EES 6,053,758 50,159 188,980 {T4SRITIR 169,006 1,948  FAATEHHERSR
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TEZ3E/ (i)
subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financialinstruments
subject to fair value
hedge
Rl - HpEE = = - 1EEmIA = - BAATESHERSE
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial IR/ (B8)
borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
R - SsB 2 UATE 17,188,555 932,544 7950 {TESRTIA (351,041) (12)  AATESHIERSR
HERHEHHAEMEE Derivatives financial TEZ3E/ (i)
WERERES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - hedge financial instruments
of debt securities held at subject to fair value
fair value through other hedge
comprehensive income
Flia il —$piE 2 R 21,194,804 1,519,696 14,630 {TEERTR (433,746) (117)  AATEEERER
FAG SR B Derivatives financial TEZ3WE/ (58
Interest rate swaps - hedge instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
of debt securities held at financialinstruments
amortised cost subject to fair value
hedge
B Note:
() ERNEBEmNERNSEATEERANEEE & (@)  The amount of hedge ineffectiveness recognised in profit/(loss) for each

WEPEERENNEELS AN HP T
BERNATEZSMERZER -

RITRITERAIRAT) 20235FF4R

category of fair value hedges is the difference between the change in value
of the hedged item subject to hedge in the current year and the change in
fair value of the corresponding hedging instrument in the current year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Fair value hedges (Continued)

The amounts relating to items designated as hedging instruments and

T hedge ineffectiveness were as follows: (Continued)
2022
RS
20224
Fape S
REMBERIRR Change in fair
BEHhIAZER valueusedfor BB
Line item in the calculating it N
EEE consolidated . chedge  Ineffectiveness  WrafAEE
Carrving amount statement of financial  ineffectiveness recognisedin RN ZIAE
HfE arying position where the for 2022 profit/(loss)  Line item in profit or loss
LOBEFAISn Nominal BE B  hedginginstrument s () () thatincludes
HKS’000 amount Assets Liabilities included Note (a) Note(a)  hedge ineffectiveness
< m b
Interest rate risk
IR - Hh R 4,288,488 - 60,249 {TAERITA (41,976) (368) AATEHAHERISR
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TR/ (B8)
certificates of deposit instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
FEE - EER 4,093,556 - 295718 fTAERITE (332,353) (3,406) AATEEHIERTA
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TEZ3IE/ (B8)
subordinated notes instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
HEai—-HpEE - - - fTAERIA - - BATERHERER
Interest rate swaps - hedge of Derivatives financial TEZ3IE/ (B8)
borrowing instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
financial instruments
subject to fair value
hedge
FIEER-HAREZUATE 19926217 1,260,861 - fTEERIA 1,923,860 (29) AATEHFHERSE
SEEEEHHAEMRE Derivatives financial TEZ3NE/ (B8
WaRE%ES instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
Interest rate swaps - hedge financial instruments
of debt securities held at subject to fair value
fair value through other hedge
comprehensive income
Pl -smmE 7 DBl 1951493 1,893,831 1223 fiEEHIA 1,792,359 15 BRTEHAHERSR
AR ERE Derivatives financial TEZ3WE/ (F8)
Interest rate swaps - hedge instruments Net gain/(loss) arising from
of debt securities held at financial instruments
amortised cost subject to fair value

hedge
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.1 Strategy in using financial instruments (Continued)

3.1.1 Derivatives held for risk management and hedge
accounting (Continued)

Interest rate benchmark reform

In March 2021, the UK Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) announced
the date on which London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) will be
discontinued. All GBP, CHF, EUR, JPY LIBOR settings and the one-
week and two-month USD LIBOR settings had discontinued after 31
December 2021. The remaining USD LIBOR settings will discontinue
after 30 June 2023. In July 2023, the UK FCA published a statement
confirming that the USD LIBOR panel had ceased.

Also, at 31 December 2022, the Hong Kong interbank offered rate
(“HIBOR”) was included given that the reform of this benchmark was
considered possible. At 31 December 2023, HIBOR is no longer expected
to be directly affected by interbank offered rates reform following the
successful transition of all major LIBOR settings and the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority (“HKMA”) affirmation that there were no plans to
discontinue HIBOR.

The Group has defined and executed the implementation plan for Inter-
bank Offered Rate (“IBOR”) reform. We had ceased to enter into new
IBOR contracts and liaised with its counterparties to modify existing
IBOR contracts by using other interest rate benchmarks or agreeing
the fallback interest charging mechanism when IBOR discontinued.
These actions for a smooth transition had been completed in 2023.
Management considered that the risk and the impact to the Group is

immaterial.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk

The Group’s main credit risk is that borrowers or counterparties
may default on their payment obligations due to the Group. These
obligations arise from the Group’s lending and investment activities,

and trading of financial instruments (including derivatives).

The Group has a Group Credit Committee (“GCC”) for approving major
credit exposures. The Credit Management Committee (“CMC”) and the
Treasury & Investment Risk Committee (“TIRC”) are the committees
responsible for credit policy formulation and portfolio monitoring of the
loan and treasury businesses respectively. These committees have been
chaired by the Chief Executive or Group Chief Risk Officer with certain
Executive Directors and senior business and credit officers as members.
Credit risk measurement, underwriting, approval and monitoring
requirements are detailed in credit policies.

The Group manages all types of credit risk on a prudent basis. Credits
are extended within the parameters set out in the credit policies and
are approved by different levels of management based upon established
guidelines and delegated authorities. Credit exposures, limits and
asset quality are regularly monitored and controlled by management,
credit committees and GRD. The Group’s internal auditors also conduct
regular reviews and audits to ensure compliance with credit policies
and procedures, and regulatory guidelines.

The Group has established policies and processes for the approval and

review of new products and activities, and credit policies with details of
the loan grading, or credit scoring, processes and impairment policies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.1 Credit risk measurement

Credit risk grading

The Group uses internal credit risk grading that reflects the credit
quality of the borrowers. The Group uses internal credit grading
scorecards tailored to the various categories of counterparty. The credit
grading scorecards take into consideration borrower and loan specific
information collected at the time of application (such as disposable
income, and level of collateral for retail exposures; and financial
indicators and qualitative indicators for corporate exposures). For retail
exposures, this is supplemented with internal data such as delinquency
status and external data such as credit bureau scoring information
on individual borrowers. In addition, the scorecards enable expert
judgement from the credit risk officer to determine the final internal
credit grade for each exposure. This allows for considerations which
may not be captured as part of the other inputs into the scorecards.

The following are additional considerations for each type of portfolio
held by the Group:

Retail

After the date of initial recognition, for personal unsecured lending of
retail business, the likelihood of default is monitored on a periodic basis
by behavioural score. This score is mapped to a Probability of Default
(“PD”).

Corporate

For corporate business, the credit grade is determined at the borrower
level. A relationship manager will incorporate any updated or new
information/credit assessments into the credit grading scorecard on an
ongoing basis. In addition, the relationship manager will also update
information about the creditworthiness of the borrower every year from
sources such as borrower’s financial statements. This will determine

the updated internal credit grading.

Using the internal observed default rate supplemented with external
default data, and by applying statistical methods, PD master scales are
calibrated to arrive at the PD for each credit grade.



3. MBRREE(GE 3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

.21 [EEEEZ (48) 3.2.1 Credit risk measurement (Continued)

EE R MR (B8) Credit risk grading (Continued)

& Treasury

BRI ERIRIKTIHEE N2 EF5HE S & FEFERM For debt securities and interbank exposures under the Treasury and
2 BB AEERR R IR TAR B 2 S E TR - 2% Global Markets portfolio, external rating agency credit grades are used.
TR FHBRR IS M EHT o SMRAI 2 EREN These published grades are continuously monitored and updated. The
WIRENRT RSB M 2 BT o PDs associated with each grade are determined based on default rates

published by the rating agencies.

3.2.2 RIS EERE1E 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement

HARUHREER BRI B AR BRAEE HKFRS 9 outlines a “three-stage” model for impairment based on
BREFMSIBUREBE 2 M3MEL A » Eamn changes in credit quality since initial recognition as summarised below:
T

. REESR R EERENERIAD .
BRIERL REEERBHAERGERE
52 o

. iR TERHAR B EEREB RS R .
RIgEm(MEEEMRAEEM)) > BIEEB
EIMEER2) > BINREARFEERIE -

. HEMTRSKRAESEERE > RITRT .
BB EREE3 ) o

. (RIS T A R EEREAERT .
RR12EBRPIBEREZENFFSIRZ
EIFRAEERIREMI VR ERFT & - BEER2
g3z TRARBRE REE EHTEH
EERE -

. RESEMBRSENZTHERMES .
RN EZBNSHRAAE EATRIEE
GE

. BARREZ EEREEMEERZFNRT] .
RN EREEREZERMEE - HRH
EEBE—BER2PEENHE -

A financial instrument that is not credit-impaired on initial
recognition is classified in “Stage 1” and has its credit risk

continuously monitored by the Group.

If a significant increase in credit risk (“SICR”) since initial
recognition is identified, the financial instrument is moved to
“Stage 2” but is not yet deemed to be credit-impaired.

If the financial instrument is credit-impaired, the financial
instrument is then moved to “Stage 3”.

Financial instruments in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an
amount equal to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses
that result from default events possible within the next 12
months. Instruments in Stages 2 or 3 have their ECL measured
based on expected credit losses on a lifetime basis.

A pervasive concept in measuring ECL in accordance with HKFRS

9 is that it should consider forward-looking information.

Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets are those
financial assets that are credit impaired on initial recognition.
Their ECL is always measured on a lifetime basis.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

The following diagram summarises the impairment requirements under
HKFRS 9 (other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial
assets):

BIREREZFEERESY

Change in credit quality since initial recognition

P ER 1 BEER 2 PEER 3
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(e T#R) (FERRE B TRHERERIEEIN) (FERESEE)

(Initial recognition)

121 A i B i E B &8
12-month expected credit losses

FEBMFERRE RN 2 TEHEFRR R
—FZ

3221 FEERKIEE I

ENEUT BN ZEERFAEED TR T

AERMNMEERBRAEEN :

(Significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition)

(Credit-impaired assets)

ZHIEEEEEE
Lifetime expected credit losses

2 EEAEE SR
Lifetime expected credit losses

parsell The key judgements and assumptions adopted by the Group in

addressing the requirements of the standard are discussed below:

3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk

The Group considers a financial instrument to have experienced a SICR
when one or more of the following criteria have been met:
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when there is significant adverse external credit rating transition
for the bond portfolio, migrating from investment grade to non-
investment grade, or one notch downgrade for bond with original
non-investment grade at purchase

when there is internal credit rating transition, ranging from one
notch to five notches depending on its initial credit rating, for
corporate portfolio

when the day past due (“DPD”) exceeds 30 days

when the borrower is reported as “Early Warning” for corporate

portfolio

when the borrower is reported as Special Mention according to
the loan classification of HKMA. The decision to classify the loans
is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of

individual counterparties defaulting.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.2.1 Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed on a monthly basis at a portfolio
level for all retail financial instruments held by the Group. In relation to
corporate financial instruments, where an Early Warning list is used to
monitor credit risk, this assessment is performed at the counterparty
level and on a monthly basis. The criteria used to identify SICR are
revised as when appropriate by the respective credit departments of
the portfolios.

The Group has not used the low credit risk exemption for any financial
instruments in the year ended 31 December 2023 and 2022.

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets

The Group defines a financial instrument as in default, which is aligned
with the definition of credit impaired (referred to as “Stage 3 financial
assets”), when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on

the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following
observable data:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
. a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
. the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms that

the Group would not consider otherwise;

. the borrower is bankrupt;

. it is reported as substandard, doubtful or loss according to the
loan classification of the HKMA. The decision to classify the loans
is based on the borrower’s repayment ability and likelihood of

individual counterparties defaulting; and

. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of

financial difficulties.

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023

173



174

3. MFBEREE(E)

3.2 EEREE &)

322 FRHIZERREE ()
3222 BOREEREREZES (B)

HERARTBEMEIFRZ ER—RERE
BRE  FBRIFARBERTERRANRERZ
[ B BE R R e St i AU E HE AR © LESh
BIHA0 A EBIB0 Az TEBR R AEERIE

3223 SIEFRHGEEGRE 28 - RREEESZ
Z A

BREEERNREEERBRARIENESEE
HEBRREESREMRI2ZERRE (M120EA4
HifE)) REMBEESE - REEEBRDENN
AR BRI AE (TEMRBEE)) RENE
KRR (MENBRRR ) 2EMRRZER > HER
LU

. BONARTRARERAETEMBEE LR
T—E1218 8 #3fE (T1218 B iR E AV 324
RSN EEZ 2R EFRE ((2HENK
PRI ) BRI Z PIREM (R LI MBI RS E
RMEBEZER) °

. ENRBAEDREAEEEENRERT
—{E 1218 B 28 (T 121 B A2 49 A b &
1) IR 2 EATIREAR (T2 HRE A B &K
1) RS2 BFE o BN > FBIRAEMS >
AREESIEANHAEIREE RN R ATEE
BAVEEERS - WIRFFSHEEE - TMEIIRE
ZEAINEEE o

. BABRAEARAEEBATEN RRAE
ZRKEE - BRI ZHFEG] -
REFAER BT RIE R M EMEE R
BHIEME - BAIRRAXIENRNTEE
EfR AR AT D ERT o AR
KIZ 2B AR EREESE > 12188
HABENRARTEEEQR » T —@
1R2ER MBS E Bt EEZERADL
REREFIBRETHHEENR - RERZ
TRt IR RIS AR 2 RSt IR R T
DL e

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.2 Definition of default and credit-impaired assets (Continued)

A loan that has been renegotiated due to deterioration in the borrower’s
condition is usually considered to be credit-impaired unless there
is evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows has
reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In
addition, a retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered
credit-impaired.

3.2.23 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques

The ECL is measured on either a 12-month (“12M”) or Lifetime basis
depending on whether a SICR has occurred since initial recognition or
whether an asset is considered to be credit-impaired. Expected credit
losses are the discounted product of the PD, exposures at default
(“EAD”), and loss given default (“LGD”), defined as follows:

. The PD represents the likelihood of a borrower defaulting on
its financial obligation (as per “Definition of default and credit-
impaired” above), either over the next 12 months (“12M PD”), or
over the remaining lifetime (“Lifetime PD”) of the obligation.

. EAD is based on the amounts the Group expects to be owed at the
time of default, over the next 12 months (“12M EAD”) or over the
remaining lifetime (“Lifetime EAD”). For example, for a revolving
commitment, the Group includes the current drawn balance plus
any further amount that is expected to be drawn up to the current
contractual limit by the time of default, should it occur.

. LGD represents the Group’s expectation of the extent of loss
on a defaulted exposure. LGD varies by type of counterparty,
type and seniority of claim and availability of collateral or other
credit support. LGD is expressed as a percentage loss per unit of
exposure at the time of default. LGD is calculated on a 12-month
or lifetime basis, where 12-month LGD is the percentage of loss
expected to be made if the default occurs in the next 12 months
and Lifetime LGD is the percentage of loss expected to be made
if the default occurs over the remaining expected lifetime of the
loan.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The ECL is determined by projecting the PD, LGD and EAD for
each future month and for each individual exposure. These three
components are multiplied together and adjusted for the likelihood
of survival (i.e. the exposure has not prepaid or defaulted in an earlier
month). This effectively calculates an ECL for each future month,
which is then discounted back to the reporting date and summed. The
discount rate used in the ECL calculation is the original effective interest
rate or an approximation thereof.

The Lifetime PD is developed by applying a maturity profile to the
current 12M PD. The maturity profile looks at how defaults develop on a
portfolio from the point of initial recognition throughout the lifetime of
the loans. The maturity profile is based on historical observed data and
is assumed to be the same across all assets within a portfolio and credit
grade band. This is supported by historical analysis.

The 12-month and lifetime EADs are determined based on the expected
payment profile, which varies by product type.

. For amortising products and bullet repayment loans, this is
based on the contractual repayments owed by the borrower over
a 12-month or lifetime basis. This will also be adjusted for any
expected overpayments made by a borrower. Early repayment/
refinance assumptions are also incorporated into the calculation.

. For non-revolving products, the exposure at default is predicted
by taking current drawn balance and adding a “credit conversion
factor” which allows for the expected drawdown of the remaining

limit by the time of default.
. For revolving products, the EAD is estimated by taking the

maximum between the on-balance sheet exposure and the
estimated utilised amount at default based on utilisation rate.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.2.3 Measuring ECL - Explanation of inputs, assumptions and
estimation techniques (Continued)

The 12-month and lifetime LGDs are determined based on the factors
which impact the recoveries made post default. These include collateral
type and projected collateral values, historical discounts to market/
book values due to forced sales, time to repossession and recovery
costs observed.

Forward-looking economic information is also included in determining
the 12-month and lifetime PD, EAD and LGD. Refer to Note 3.2.2.4 for
an explanation of forward-looking information and its inclusion in ECL
calculations.

The assumptions underlying the ECL calculation, such as how the
maturity profile of the PDs and how collateral values change etc., are
regularly monitored and reviewed.

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

The assessment of SICR and the calculation of ECL both incorporate
forward-looking information. The Group has performed historical
analysis and identified the key economic variables impacting credit risk
and expected credit losses for each portfolio.

These economic variables and their associated impact on the PD, EAD
and LGD vary by financial instrument. Expert judgement has also been
applied in this process. Forecasts of these economic variables (the
“base economic scenario”) are provided by some economic research
institutions and the in-house economic research team on a regular
basis and provide the best estimate view of the economy over the next
five years. For the economic variables out of the forecasting periods
(i.e. after the next five years), the point-in-time default risk level at the
last forecasting period is referenced to estimate the lifetime default
risk level of each instrument. The impact of these economic variables
on the PD, EAD and LGD has been determined by performing statistical
regression analysis to understand the impact changes in these variables
have had historically on default rates and loss rates.



3. MBREIEEE(E)

3.2 EEREE )

322 FRHIZERREE ()

3.224 MATEHAEEESIRRE Z R B ()

EERBAEEMZFEDEEEEERZE
8 EXEEHE R TIHERMET - HEE
ERTMTARSAMEL  BE2HMERIRES
A RERRBRNERZBREERE - EE
ZeHd o AEE S ERREEEIERAMER12
B R FEFRAREERE (ER1) - SRIANMER
SHITAIRE ER51E (PBER2 K PERER3)  ZFTAM
EHNBRAEEBENDBREMBRESRERL
BIFEBRARUGEZ BIRNEEMETE -

7£2023%F > HRBSFEIRIE ~ MGBUA R RS
2 BEBES TYRURBEES FERHE M ER
BRI BRIBEWEIIENNTEEE o BR
FEFT EEF)ZFEIE2024F & T o EHE AR
FENTER > AARBNRENBENATHE
TE o HILFERF > REMEREENEEERM
BEIHMGEBCARREBAEGHE—RER > 4
KEBRERERIAEESE -HES= 0 AEMEE
BB EEREN 2T RABENTEME
BEERER EOEEEEEMHEE  EETEN
REREEAGS > THETEEEERBREEREY
HEIEN » URFHETEAEEBEEENTEN

EEEZH R E N

[EEE—T > 7220215 - AEERRMEEHEE
BT TEEESMNVAE » TRBUMHELTE
FHZIB BB 51 EIRER D ERR A P AEERRAY
BUERE - BEZSTEIEN2023F108HER » XU
RIEEHEEELBR—RGUMER > TREIRR
WARREEN » 2EERSEMBARBETERER
BBYMBERER0.1T% R G ERY o A& B EET G
EEMHEGNEELR » TNRFHZEMAEN
BT -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

The assessment of SICR is performed by considering either the change
in credit quality, expert credit judgement and backstop indicator.
This determines whether the whole financial instrument is in Stage 1,
Stage 2, or Stage 3 and hence whether 12-month or lifetime ECL should
be recorded. Following this assessment, the Group measures ECL as
either a probability weighted 12-month ECL (Stage 1), or a probability
weighted lifetime ECL (Stages 2 and 3). These probability-weighted
ECLs are determined by running each scenario through the relevant ECL
model and multiplying it by the appropriate scenario weighting.

In 2023, the post pandemic recovery was not as strong as expected,
driven by the high interest rate environment, heightened geopolitical
tensions, falling asset prices and more importantly failure of certain
Mainland property developers. While US interest rates are expected to
drop in 2024, the impact on the local economy is yet to be observed as
the pace and the magnitude of the rate cut is still uncertain. Meanwhile,
credit quality issue of Mainland property developers and geopolitical
tensions is likely to persist for some time, bringing uncertainties to
economic developments. Against this background, the Group has
continued to adopt appropriate assessment and risk management
procedures in the measurement of ECL. This includes reviewing credit
portfolios, considering different macroeconomic forecast scenarios,
assessing the reasonableness of ECL models outputs, and evaluating
the adequacy of ECL allowances.

Management judgments and overlay

To recap, in 2021, the Group imposed management overlay to
the ECL model output in consideration of the potential impact on
certain borrowers who relied on the Government’s Pre-approved
Principal Payment Holiday Scheme (“PPPHS”). Although the principal
moratorium ended in October 2023, and the credit quality of the
portfolio was generally maintained, the Group considered it appropriate
to maintain an overlay amount of 0.17% of the total outstanding
for the vehicle finance portfolio as a provision for risk in light of the
uncertainties ahead. The Group will continue to evaluate credit quality
of the portfolio and the need for such overlay in the coming year.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions

The Group relies on a broad range of forward-looking economic
indicators as model inputs, such as the forecasts of macroeconomic
factors (“MEFs”) such as property price indices, GDP growth rates,
unemployment rates, and interest rates. The selection of MEFs had
gone through stringent statistical data tests commonly adopted by
the industry as well as expert judgements to ensure that MEFs used
in the ECL models are relevant to and reflective of the risk profile of
the Group’s credit portfolios while satisfying required quantitative
standards.

” o«

The scenarios “base”, “good” and “bad” were determined based on the
underlying assumptions described in the below table. In particular, the
“base” scenario makes reference to a set of macroeconomic forecasts
obtained from different economic research institutions and the Group’s
economist. “Good” and “bad” scenarios were developed by referencing
the MEFs in the “base” scenario, with appropriate adjustment to the
upside and the downside potential variations taking into account
the uncertainties in the forward-looking economic environments.
The magnitude of adjustment were quantified based on historical
movements of the MEFs observed through a long span of observed data
covering peaks and troughs of past economic cycles.
Scenario Underlying assumptions of the scenario
Base Forward-looking macroeconomic factors are a key
component of the macroeconomic outlook. The
base scenario is based on a set of macroeconomic
forecasts which formulate a “base case” view of the
most probable future direction of relevant economic
variables.

Good This scenario is determined by making reference to
the “base” scenario and reflects positive uncertainties
by incorporating upside variations to the “base”

scenario macroeconomic forecasts.

Bad This scenario is determined by making reference
to the “base” scenario and reflects negative
uncertainties by incorporating downside variations to
the “base” scenario macroeconomic forecasts.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

Members of the CMC as well as department heads of credit risk units
put forth their most holistic view on the likelihood of occurrence,
enabling the Group to generate forecasts of economic factors and the
forward-looking PD and LGD. To have further professional review and
reasonableness checking, the Group’s economist provided his overall
view on whether the collective forecasted outcome is generally in line
with his expectation. As a stringent measure, the summarized outcomes
will be submitted to the CMC for final approval. These forward-looking
PD and LGD are then used as input parameters in the expected credit
loss model.

Significant period-end assumptions used for the ECL estimate are set

out as below.
SEHIRIMETI9%
Average of 1EERmIHE
5-Year One-Year
%2023F12831H As at 31 December 2023 Forward-Looking Forward-Looking
ERAMEERELREX Hong Kong GDP Growth Rate (%) Hf Base 2.3% 2.5%
(B2t R¥F Good 7.0% 7.2%
TR Bad -2.4% -2.2%
EREENE Hong Kong Residential Property Price  E52 Base 2.9% -5.0%
ERIEEEE) (5 DL) Index Change (%) BiF Good 22.2% 14.3%
= Bad -16.4% -24.3%
EBREZ (R Hong Kong Unemployment Rate (%)  £H# Base 2.8% 2.8%*
Rif Good 2.3% 2.3%*
= Bad 4.7% 4.7%*
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

SEHFIIE T

Average of LFHARIRE

5-Year One-Year

1120224 12A31H As at 31 December 2022 Forward-Looking  Forward-Looking
ERANMEERELRE Hong Kong GDP Growth Rate (%) Hit Base 1.8% 0.9%
(B RiF Good 7.4% 6.5%
TR Bad -3.8% -4.7%

ERAEME Hong Kong Residential Property Price  £52 Base 2.0% -3.9%
BEigisgEs) (B0t Index Change (%) R§f Good 25.2% 19.3%
= Bad -21.2% -27.1%

ERREE (AL Hong Kong Unemployment Rate (%)  £52 Base 2.9% 3.3%"
RiF Good 2.3% 2.3%*

= Bad 5.2% 5.6%*
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*

These one-year forward-looking rates represent forecast average rates for
one year.

The above assumptions were the latest forecasts available at the time
the ECL calculation was performed. If after the period-end date further
changes in the economic condition that are not consistent with the
forecasts are observed, adjustments may be made in the assignment
of probability weightings accordingly to reflect the latest situation. No
such adjustment was made so far.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)

3.2.24 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models

(Continued)

Economic variable assumptions (Continued)

The average weightings assigned to each economic scenario, “base”,

“good” and “bad” are as follows:

20234 20226

12A831H 12831H

31December 31 December

2023 2022

s Base 70% 71%
B Good 11% 14%
rE Bad 19% 15%

R AR E M T A 15 1R 2 E TR
ERAR PINEREE » IANBUaESH
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BEE -

HREDHT

TERIEERRERNRIBZRRUT :

(i) REX BERHEHBFIRITRERRMERAE
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Other forward-looking considerations not otherwise incorporated

within the above scenarios, such as the impact of any regulatory,

legislative or political changes, have also been considered, but are not

deemed to have a material impact and therefore no adjustment has

been made to the ECL for such factors. This is reviewed and monitored

for appropriateness on a quarterly basis.

Sensitivity analysis

The most significant assumptions affecting the ECL allowance are as

follows:

(i)  Unemployment rates, given its impact on secured and unsecured

borrowers’ ability to meet their contractual repayments;

(ii)  GDP growth rates, given the significant impact on companies’

performance and collateral valuations; and

(iii)  Property price indexes, given the significant impact it has on

mortgage collateral valuations.
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3. HBRREIEGE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
322 FREFISEERAIE (1B) 3.2.2 Expected credit loss measurement (Continued)
3.2.24 A TEERS EE1EEE 2 iR (8) 3.2.2.4 Forward-looking information incorporated in the ECL models
(Continued)
RE T () Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
MTFAREREAEENLSHSEREFNER Set out below are the changes to the ECL that would result from
BREMEEEESHNGIENEECENTARE reasonably possible changes in these parameters from the actual
BEiERH e assumptions used in the Group’s economic variable assumptions:
= Retail
EEEEEIENEE
ECL Impact

LGB T Tl g)m HK$’000 2023 2022
RFE=R Unemployment rates +1% 14,037 86,867

-1% (8,487) (13,103)
TEREIEEX GDP growth rates +0.5% (4,145) (4,610)

-0.5% 4,221 4,701

M BIRIER Property price indices +5% (5,729) (4,228)

-5% 11,651 8,360
faES Corporate

FEHAEEEIENRE
ECL Impact

LGB T HKS$’000 2023 2022
REX Unemployment rates +1% 26,048 35,288

1% (23,225) (32,079)
SEREIERE GDP growth rates +0.5% (4,953) (7,129)

-0.5% 5,161 1,417

MIZEERIER Property price indices +5% (9,044) (7,254)

-5% 12,005 10,049

182  KHMRITEEBRAT 2023FFHK



3. MBRREE(GE
3.2 FEAEKGE)
3.2.3 BESEIERIEFIGEEZ R

FEBCHENERARNZZHFTER  17EH
BERREEREEREFIBEEP AR - R
BERARZZHFER - ITEXEAKZBERR
BEE > BEREEBKRNREEEZE S EHER -

ERAXNRGHTFERZERSRAREERNESR
RRETE  MITEZBRERHEEREEHESRER
HETREERENOR - ARXZBRENDHSERH
RETRIRIEHN TR EERMRE - AAR
ENEEETEEEATERMES -

FEEPNBEER > /RGEERR  GUEUER
mIFREERRVER - HERIRITETEFEM
EEZXZHFEERR  AEERFIETET
BEXRGHFAZEZZRIEE > BRAEBRLZH
GEANGEERAMEMRRZER  BETET
BERFZEERR - AEREEZET2EE5!
HFZMBENREETR - EHEH RIS
ZEEERTETREZ HEBEEEEHBE - 580
ZIERRERRER - hEEEEHEELE
ERENEEBRR o 5] 1L r] BHIIERNERIFR
FIREAEENRER  BRYIEMDIERES
PRIBHBIRIEETER » TR RERNER

=
f&o

A EREECHM A BRC B2 EBERE > B
ERMANEEREEE  FEERSHERINE
EENFEN - Bt > IEFRETAHAEREE
REREERRE

FREEERE @ ERA S WEUEFR R - EEURT
ERERZHFNEEEN  HEREBIKAH

Y oy

BRREES] ©

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies

The Group has an established framework to manage and control
concentration risk with respect to individual borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country. Exposure limits by borrower or counterparty
group, industry or country are in place and their exposures are
monitored and reported to credit committees regularly.

The large exposure limits to borrower or counterparty groups are
capital based while the limits for industry are relative to the size of
the overall credit portfolio and bounded by regulatory limit. Country
limits are also set up with reference to the sovereign credit rating from
international credit rating agencies. All these limits aim to achieve a
more balanced portfolio.

To mitigate credit risk and where appropriate, the Group will obtain
collateral to support the credit facility granted. To control credit
risk exposure to counterparty arising from derivative positions,
the Group limits its derivative dealings with approved financial
institutions, and uses established market practices on credit support
and collateral settlement to reduce credit risk exposure to derivative
counterparties. Overall credit risk limit for individual financial
institution counterparty, including valuation limit for derivatives, is
approved by the GCC with reference to the financial strength and credit
rating of individual counterparty. The acceptable types of collateral
and their characteristics are established within the credit policies, as
are the respective margins of finance. Enforceable legal documentation
establishes the Group’s direct, irrevocable and unconditional recourse

to any collateral, security or other credit enhancements provided.

In relation to lending commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
without prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in cases where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not expose the Group
to significant credit risk.

Irrespective of whether collateral is taken, all credit decisions are based

upon the customer’s or counterparty’s credit profile, cashflow position

and ability to repay.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(a) Loansand advances

The Group has guidelines on the acceptability of specific classes
of collateral for securing loans and advances. The principal
collateral types are:

. Mortgages over properties;

. Charges over business assets such as premises and

accounts receivable;

. Charges over financial instruments such as debt securities
and equities;

. Charges over deposits; and

. Charges over shares.

In addition, in order to minimise credit loss, the Group will, where
possible, seek additional collateral from the borrower as soon as
impairment indicators are noticed on relevant individual loans

and advances.

(b) Debt securities

Debt securities and treasury bills are generally unsecured, with
the exception of asset-backed securities and similar instruments,
which are secured by portfolios of financial instruments or
underlying assets.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.3 Risk limit control and mitigation policies (Continued)
(c) Derivatives

All counterparty credit risk for derivatives trading are managed
as part of the credit risk control and monitoring process in
respect of the counterparty including credit controls such as
setting individual limit for valuation risk, daily settlement limits
and performing periodic credit assessment. Moreover, the
Group requires derivative contract counterparties to enter into
International Swaps and Derivatives Association Agreement or
analogous master agreement in order to follow the standardised
market practice of close-out netting arrangement in the event
of default or early termination and in accordance with the
regulatory requirements.

Collateral arrangements with selected counterparties are also
in place to limit our unsecured derivative exposures to these
counterparties.

3.2.4 Write off policy

The Group writes off financial assets, in whole or in part, when it has
exhausted all practical recovery efforts and has concluded there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery include (i) ceasing enforcement
activity and (ii) where the Group’s recovery method is foreclosing
on collateral and the value of the collateral is such that there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering in full.

The Group may write-off financial assets that are still subject to
enforcement activity. The outstanding contractual amounts of such
assets written off during the year ended 31 December 2023 was
HK$1,160 million (2022: HK$201 million).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements

The following tables contain analysis of the credit risk exposure of
financial instruments. The gross carrying/notional amount of financial
assets below also represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk on these assets.

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment

20237 12H31H At 31 December 2023
IREE/ 2REE
Gross carrying/notional amount T
RRREE  REEUT iR

g Special  Sub-standard a3t ECL BEE
LOBISTF T8 HKS’000 Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RTINS R Balance and placements with banks 19,553,118 - - 19,553,118 5,534 19,547,584
—PEERL -Stage1 19,553,118 - - 19,553,118 5534 19,547,584
—FEER2 - Stage 2 - - - - = =
—FEER3 - Stage3 - - - - - -

AT Es 2 EHETHA Debt instruments at fair value through
Ht 2 ANENER IR other comprehensive income 40,071,584 - 78,113 40,149,697 81,886 40,067,811
—PEERL - Stage 1 40,071,584 - - 40,071,584 34,356 40,037,228
—PEER - Stage 2 - - - - - -
3] - Stage3 - - 78,113 78,113 47,530 30,583
DUg R AT RNEBTA Debt instruments at amortised cost 39,413,306 - - 39,413,306 40,928 39,372,378
—MEE - Stagel 39,413,306 - - 39,413,306 40,928 39,372,378
—P&ER2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—PEE3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
BREMREM Loans and advances to customers 138,418,175 1,851,740 2,779,561 143,049,476 1,113,256 141,936,220
—BEERL - Stage1 128,604,667 - - 128,604,667 364,345 128,240,322
—PEER - Stage 2 9,813,508 1,851,740 - 11,665,248 263,656 11,401,592
—FEER3 - Stage3 - - 2,779,561 2,779,561 485,255 2,294,306
EGES Trade bills 2,060,317 - - 2,060,317 2,981 2,057,336
—PEERL - Stage 1 2,060,143 - - 2,060,143 2,981 2,057,162
) - Stage 2 174 - - 174 - 174
—PEER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
FEETH B R EMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 5,052,893 20,487 67,933 5,141,313 20,915 5,120,398
—PBERL - Stage 1 5,022,715 - - 5,022,715 6,979 5,015,736
—PEER2 - Stage 2 30,178 20,487 - 50,665 2,907 47,758
—[BE3 - Stage3 - - 67,933 67,933 11,029 56,904

ERREMEE  RIBER Loan and other commitments,

and financial guarantees 68,765,937 6,550 - 68,772,487 68,318 68,704,169
—PEE - Stage 1 66,993,660 - - 66,993,660 65,861 66,927,799
) - Stage 2 1,772,277 6,550 - 1,778,827 2,457 1,776,370
—P2E3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
At Total 313,335,330 1,878,777 2,925,607 318,139,714 1,333,818 316,805,896

ERBILTHERE » 25 RUATENE
BHEFHH AHMEARGENEBTAZ%
RTRAKRNKRERGFEPIESEE0E

HEEREE -

RITRITERAIRAT) 20235FF4R

For the purpose of this disclosure, notional amount of debt
instruments at FVOCI and the associated ECL allowance
maintained in investment revaluation reserve are presented.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) ZAEREMENEREE @) (1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)
20225 12831H At 31 December 2022
REE/ a8
Gross carrying/notional amount B
BRREE  REESUT FiaEE
ER Special ~ Sub-standard At ECL #E
LOBIST T8 HK$’000 Pass mention or below Total allowance Net
RITRAEERRTER Balance and placements with banks 26,432,036 - - 26,432,036 14,591 26,417,445
—PEERL - Stage 1 26,432,036 - - 26,432,036 14,501 26,417,445
—P&ER2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—PEER3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
AT E2EHZEHA Debt instruments at fair value through
Hit 2 ANENER IR other comprehensive income 39,775,573 - - 39,775,573 48,275 39,727,298
—FEERL - Stage 1 39,697,600 - - 39,697,600 47,645 39,649,955
—P&ER2 - Stage2 771973 - - 77,973 630 77,343
—PEE3 - Stage3 - - - - - -
DUg R AT RNEB TR Debt instruments at amortised cost 32,985,496 . - 32,985,496 59,406 32,926,090
—PEERL - Stage 1 32,985,496 - - 32,985,496 59,406 32,926,090
—PEEx2 - Stage 2 - - - - - -
—PEER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
BREMREM Loans and advances to customers 132,178,325 1,812,898 2,539,012 136,530,235 1,636,402 134,893,833
—PEEL - Stage 1 123,617,311 - - 123617311 406,618 123,210,693
— e - Stage 2 8,561,014 1,812,898 - 10,373,912 342,731 10,031,181
—PBEER3 - Stage3 - - 2,539,012 2,539,012 887,053 1,651,959
BERE Trade bills 3,666,988 - - 3,666,988 5,570 3,661,418
—PEERL - Stagel 3,665,308 - - 3,665,808 5,569 3,660,239
—MBER - Stage 2 1,180 - - 1,180 1 1,179
—PEER3 - Stage 3 - - - - - -
FEstH SR EMERE Accrued interest and other accounts 4,100,434 11,806 70,319 4,182,559 25,193 4,157,366
—PEERL - Stage 1 4,075,916 - - 4,075,916 10,169 4,065,747
—P&ER2 - Stage2 24,518 11,806 - 36,324 2,238 34,086
—PEER3 - Stage 3 - - 70,319 70,319 12,786 57,533
ERREMEE  RETER Loan and other commitments,
and financial guarantees 74,563,798 33,167 10,125 74,607,090 98,973 74,508,117
—PEERL - Stage 1 71,765,299 - - 71,765,299 89,684 71,675,615
—P&ER2 - Stage2 2,798,499 33,167 - 2,831,666 9,289 2,822,377
—PEE3 - Stage3 - - 10,125 10,125 - 10,125
At Total 313,702,650 1,857,871 2,619,456 318,179,977 1,888,410 316,291,567
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3.2.5

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk (Continued)

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

The credit ratings are broadly categorised as follows:

Retail
Class 1 “pass”, which covers loans that are current or within 30

DPD.

Class 2 “special mention
31-90 DPD.

”, which generally covers loans with

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which generally covers loans
that are more than 90 DPD.

Corporate

Class 1 “pass”, which covers Grade 1 to 9 of the Group’s internal
loan grading system, represents loans for which borrowers
are current in meeting commitments and for which the full
repayment of interest and principal is not in doubt.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers Grade 10 of the Group’s
internal loan grading system, represents loans with which
borrowers are experiencing difficulties and which may lead to
credit losses to the Group if the deterioration in loan quality
cannot be contained.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers Grade 11 to 13
of the Group’s internal loan grading system, represents loans in
which borrowers are displaying a definable weakness that is likely
to jeopardise repayment; or collection in full is improbable and
the Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest; or
loans that are considered uncollectible after all collection options
have been exhausted.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
other credit enhancements (Continued)

(1) Financial assets subject to impairment (Continued)

Treasury

Class 1 “pass”, which covers exposures to counterparties with

internal credit rating of BB- or above.

Class 2 “special mention”, which covers exposures to

counterparties with internal credit rating of B+ to B-.

Class 3 “sub-standard or below”, which covers exposures to

counterparties with internal credit rating of CCC+ or below.

(2) Financial assets not subject to impairment

IREE
Gross carrying amount
LOBIETF TG HKS’000 2023 2022
FIER S RBRNEE Trading assets
—(E5RS - Debt securities 1,739,841 562,161
—{TETA - Derivatives 1,062,388 746,544
HqHHTETAR Hedging derivatives 2,503,761 3,154,692

DUATESHE B E BT AIEEER
SRAE
—BEES

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
- Investment funds

8,216 9,303
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3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.5 REIAFFE IR mat BAtis ELeF 57 3.2.5 Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or
ZREIEEREE (1B other credit enhancements (Continued)

FEEZEERRI2E TP BE— ST The results of credit performance of the Group can be further assessed

with reference to the following:

. HEPZER AR B IHBERVBRRRZ . Mortgage loans, which represent the biggest group in the
B8 ; portfolio, are backed by collateral;

. EEREZERERRBRLERENKRE . Loans and advances to customers that are credit-impaired
RARFERY1.94% (20224 © 1.86%) ; K& constituted 1.94% (2022: 1.86%) of the total loans and advances

to customers; and

. BHEHE SR EMESRERT4% (20224 : . T4% (2022: 72%) of the investments in debt securities and other
72%) R/EASERR © bills have at least an A- credit rating.
3.2.6 BRIRE 3.2.6 Loans and advances
BEREF BT - Loans and advances to customers are summarised as follows:
LB T 008 HKS’000 2023 2022
BRI BR4AEER Gross loans and advances 143,049,476 136,530,235
NkR - REEELRRE Less: total impairment allowances (1,113,256)  (1,636,402)
e Net 141,936,220 134,893,833
EERBEZER R Credit-impaired loans and advances 2,779,561 2,539,012
Bk BEERSBEZER Less: Stage 3 impairment allowances (485,255) (887,053)
B Net 2,294,306 1,651,959
FEIERRATE" Fair value of collateral held* 1,707,443 1,056,118
EEREERABREERER K Credit-impaired loans and advances as
PREEEA DL a % of total loans and advances to
customers 1.94% 1.86%
* ERRATFENRBIERRMERERKRERS * Fair value of collateral is determined at the lower of the market value of
iR MEPERREET © collateral and outstanding loan balance.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

The table below shows the percentage of impairment allowance as a
percentage of loans and advances for each of the three broad internal

rating classes.

2023 2022
BEERE BEZER
(L ETREREE L EREREE
ALt Bt
Impairment Impairment
SR xk#s  allowance EREEE allowance
B7Lt as a % of B asa % of
Loans and loan Loans and loan
advances balance advances balance
% % % %
4871 Class
1-1FH 1-pass 96.8 0.3 96.8 0.4
2—45RIREE 2 - special mention 13 10.0 1.3 15.3
3—AREUT 3 - sub-standard or below 1.9 17.5 1.9 34.9
100.0 0.8 100.0 1.2
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(a) Loans and advances to customers that are credit-
impaired under HKFRS 9

The analysis of the gross amount of credit-impaired loans
and advances by class, along with the fair value of the related
collateral held by the Group as security, is as follows:

192

RITRITERAIRAT) 20235FF4R

ARG
NFE
Eps4EEE WEEE BRE{E  Fairvalue
20237 12H31H At 31 December 2023 Gross Impairment Carrying of collateral
LCBMSTF 5T HKS’000 exposure allowance amount held
EERBEZER Credit-impaired loans
BAE : Loans to individual:
— =R+ - Credit cards 13,055 11,265 1,790 =
—FIBE™N - Mortgages 336,922 60,443 276,479 315,248
—Hfh - Others 295,157 118,753 176,404 51,617
G : Loans to corporate entities:
—BHE™M - Term loans 1,834,850 195,196 1,639,654 1,073,352
—BBER - Mortgages 49,254 12,842 36,412 47,724
—BZmE - Trade finance 123,826 30,069 93,757 101,265
—HAth - Others 126,497 56,687 69,810 118,237
EEREZEREEE Total credit-impaired loans 2,779,561 485,255 2,294,306 1,707,443
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3.

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

() BREBMBREERBIRFEEER

Loans and advances to customers that are credit-

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

BEZEFERRBEHR(E) impaired under HKFRS 9 (Continued)
FHIEES
RIE
R EAREE BEZEH IRMEE Fair value
20225 12831H At 31 December 2022 Gross  Impairment Carrying  of collateral
LCEMST o 5T HKS’000 exposure allowance amount held
BEEREBEZER Credit-impaired loans
BAER Loans to individual:
—(EAF - Credit cards 14,176 11,991 2,185 -
—ZIBE™R - Mortgages 254,376 52,170 202,206 219,655
—HAth - Others 340,231 168,771 171,460 43,633
BEEM Loans to corporate entities:
—BHE™M - Term loans 1,566,736 569,768 996,968 498,002
—IBER - Mortgages 109,328 6,608 102,720 108,734
—E2ME - Trade finance 106,092 35,465 70,627 43,726
—HAth - Others 148,073 42,280 105,793 142,368
EEREZEMMEEE Total credit-impaired loans 2,539,012 887,053 1,651,959 1,056,118
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

() BEHKIEEETAEEE

(b)

Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(i) Gross amount of overdue loans

2023 2022
HHAKR(EE BHARER
= el BRARgE
Gross Gross
amount of EECEE] amount L4858
overdue BSLE  ofoverdue Bt
LUBIET (U5 HKS’000 loans % of total loans % of total
FEEELEMK Gross loans and advances to
BERARZR > B customers which have been
overdue for:
—3BAMU EZE6MEA - six months or less but over
three months 344,615 0.24 535,376 0.39
—6EAMUEELIF - one year or less but over six
months 664,811 0.46 987,443 0.72
—1F E - over one year 1,158,163 0.81 332,525 0.25
2,167,589 1.51 1,855,344 1.36

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.6 Loans and advances (Continued)

(b) Loans and advances overdue for more than 3 months

(Continued)

(i)  Value of collateral held and impairment allowances

G R ATFRFmn E against overdue loans and advances
EEE
KREEHEE gl gl iRl P5ER3
Outstanding HhE  FAEEMD  REEAIEG RELERE
amount of Current Portion  Portion not Stage 3
2023F12H31H At 31 December 2023 loansand market value covered by coveredby  impairment
LOBEET o5 HKS'000 advances  of collateral collateral collateral allowances
BHEARERE RS Overdue loans and advances
KER to customers 2,167,589 2,615,092 1,553,890 613,699 228,158
BRURER
REEHE iRt D HHRD PEER3
Outstanding BhE FAIEEMD  REERIEZR REERE
amount of Current Portion Portion not Stage3
20224F12831H At 31 December 2022 loansand  market value covered by covered by impairment
LOBMSFT(78;m HKS000 advances of collateral collateral collateral allowances
BHAREBELER Overdue loans and advances
R to customers 1,855,344 1,715,178 888,975 966,369 632,380

FEZERREBRIERER  #18
MERIBIREMEEEERE

() KEHER(EHRaEETLHRZE

Collateral held mainly represented pledged deposits,

mortgages over properties and charges over other fixed

assets such as equipment.

(c) Rescheduled advances net of amounts included in

HEF) overdue loans and advances shown above
{h4a%E 1548%8
Bt Bt
LOBIEF iR HKS°000 2023 % of total 2022 % of total
BERERMBR Loans and advances to customers 405,780 0.28 339,249 0.25
FEERIBUBZRERE Stage 3 impairment allowances 115,036 123,023
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3.2 FEREGE

3.7 BEEHE

7220235 %2022 125318 » Wt im HAEE3E
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RERFTA ZWEHRHR I T -

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.7 Trade bills

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no balance of trade bills
that were overdue for more than 3 months.

3.2.8 Repossessed collateral

Repossessed collateral held at the year-end is as follows:

LGB TFTvsR HK$°000 2023 2022

BE4E Nature of assets
Bl /ES Repossessed properties 252,687 125,262
Hth Others 925 5,560
253,612 130,822

W EHE R IR AT IE R BIREE > BUGHRIEA MU
RARBRZ ERAREIRET o

i 5+ BT % 35 48 {& 4 58,181,000 78 7T (2022 £F :
59,356,000787T) Z X R E P S T H A
Th 782 EAR R AR B R A BepB i 2 Tk 2 AT L
VIR ERE RO o ZIRIF @A 2RV TH
MEEIETWRHEBEHEZEE - BAZERE
WAL IEFESR o

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Repossessed collaterals are sold as soon as practicable with the
proceeds used to reduce the outstanding indebtedness of the
borrowers concerned.

Certain other properties in the Mainland China with a total estimated
realisable value of HK$58,181,000 (2022: HK$59,356,000), which had
been foreclosed and repossessed by the Group pursuant to orders issued
by courts in the Mainland China, represent assets held by the Group
for resale and have been reported under “Other assets” in Note 30. The

relevant loans had been derecognised.



3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 EEEE (&) 3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.9 EHRERF 3.2.9 Loss allowance
TRIBHEREBUHEIRE LR E NN ER LML The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s ECL allowances
Z2EBPERKRBR ~ ERUKIERYERRZTEH for loans and advances to customers, loan commitments and financial
EEEEEBNRE guarantees by stage under HKFRS 9.
£ Retail

MEERL 3::9) PEER3 At

FiEE FHiEE FHEE FHiEE
BRER BRER BRERE BRER

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
LOBEEF 5T HKS’000 allowance allowance allowance allowance
2023F1H1H At 1 January 2023 301,393 43,466 232,932 571,791
B/ Transfers:
EREREL Transfer to Stage 1 7,800 (5,227) (2,573) =
BREMR Transfer to Stage 2 (6,259) 38,425 (32,166) -
EBRERRS Transfer to Stage 3 (25,868) (18,830) 44,698 =
FREEREIS R BB AL 2 §/2  Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance (4,595) 11,755 339,157 346,317
HBRIRE - BAT B New financial assets originated, purchased
JERMEE or derecognised during the period 55,948 17,767 (6,880) 66,835
BNTAE /BIBKE BHEK  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-looking
AIE /ARG 28 assumptions (50,112) (11,140) 48,651 (12,601)
FEIRRLIR Unwind of discount 363 570 76 1,009
b6z Write-offs - - (433,434) (433,434)
SN R ELfth 28 Foreign exchange and other movements (72) (47) - (119)
2023%F12A831H At 31 December 2023 278,598 76,739 190,461 545,798
20221814 At 1 January 2022 365,825 36,230 219,180 621,235
82 Transfers:
ERERE Transfer to Stage 1 5,676 (5,676) - -
BRERE Transfer to Stage 2 (4,498) 4,975 (477) -
EREMRES Transfer to Stage 3 (20,511) (13,099) 33,610 -
AEREBEREGEEMESLZF2E  Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance (845) 7,615 266,461 273,231
HARETRA ~ A SRR New financial assets originated, purchased
JEHEE or derecognised during the period 36,837 7,516 (7,197) 37,156
BHEIAR BIBRE /BNEKR  Changes in PDs/LGDs/EADs/forward-looking
HIE /R RR 28 assumptions (81,337) 5,403 31,178 (44,756)
FRIREEER Unwind of discount 409 502 68 979
e Write-offs - - (309,891) (309,891)
IME R HLA =S Foreign exchange and other movements (163) - - (163)
2022F12A31H At 31 December 2022 301,393 43,466 232,932 577,791
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3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 ZERE @) 3.2 Credit risk (Continued)
3.2.9 ETIRER (5B) 3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)
1oE Corporate
(1291 (2] PeEz3 &t

RS BHEE FHEE FHiEE
BRER BRER BiRERE BiRER

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
ECL ECL ECL ECL
LOBEF 5T HKS’000 allowance allowance allowance allowance
2023F181H At 1January 2023 194,546 308,554 654,121 1,157,221
' Transfers:
EBYRERR] Transfer to Stage 1 20,345 (19,629) (716) -
BRERED Transfer to Stage 2 (17,535) 17,535 - -
BRERES Transfer to Stage 3 (123) (200,220) 200,343 -
FMERER R EREEMESEZE 2  Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance (8,115) 19,807 174,078 185,770
HARITRE ~ BA TR New financial assets originated, purchased
ZEHMERE or derecognised during the period 10,497 43,908 (19,597) 34,808
BNTAE /BHIB%E /BHEK  Changes in PDs/LGDs/FADs/forward-looking
I/ AR RS 28 assumptions (48,113) 17,929 257,298 227,114
ERRAGIR Unwind of discount 396 1,579 508 2,483
b6z Write-offs - - (971,199) (971,199)
SNEE R L fth 43 Foreign exchange and other movements (290) (89) (42) (421)
2023%12H831H At 31 December 2023 151,608 189,374 294,794 635,776
2022%181H At1 January 2022 218,142 323,745 328,429 870,316
I Transfers:
BB TR Transfer to Stage 1 7,275 (6,111) (1,164) -
ERERERL Transfer to Stage 2 (19,004) 19,004 - -
BRERES Transfer to Stage 3 (1,795) (81,831) 83,626 -
FPERER REGEEFTEEZ# 2  Effect of stage transfers and changes in
allowance (3,481) 20,174 505,434 522,127
HAPRTRA ~ AR New financial assets originated, purchased
EHEE or derecognised during the period 23,306 (16,342) (39,442) (32,478)
BNTAR /BHIB%ER /BHEK  Changes in PDs/LGDs/FADs/forward-looking
AIE /AR RR 28 assumptions (28,716) 50,246 44,493 66,023
RIRIAIR Unwind of discount 84 1,422 121 1,633
i Gz Write-offs - - (267,340) (267,340)
IME R HL A= Foreign exchange and other movements (1,265) (1,753) (42) (3,060)
2022412A31H At 31 December 2022 194,546 308,554 654,121 1,157,221
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3.0.9 EFIEER (4B)

TREHEEBMBREER IR AERILREE
Z BB (B RERNBRZRE(EBERE
PRI R HERNBERER) LR ©

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)
3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

The tables below provide a reconciliation of the Group’s gross exposure
(in terms of the aggregate of carrying amount of loans and advances
to customers and notional amount of loan commitments and financial

guarantees) by stage under HKFRS 9.

o2 Retail
PRERL [42:7) PRER3 A&t
ER4EEE il Ebg4egE il
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
LOBIEFolidn HK$’000 exposure exposure exposure exposure
2023%1H1H At 1 January 2023 108,270,766 549,368 608,783 109,428,917
B2 Transfers:
BRERER Transfer to Stage 1 91,960 (69,081) (22,879) -
BREMR Transfer to Stage 2 (499,145) 576,495 (77,350) =
BT Transfer to Stage 3 (449,421) (154,194) 603,615 =
IBHESD ~ 4R EHEED Origination, derecognition, further lending
E—TERRER and repayment 581,806 (70,277) (33,527) 478,002
Hi Write-offs - - (433,434) (433,434)
SN R EL {23 Foreign exchange and other movements (28,606) (262) (74) (28,942)
2023%12H31H At 31 December 2023 107,967,360 832,049 645,134 109,444,543
202F1818 At 1 January 2022 111,759,224 448,842 588,688 112,796,754
B/ Transfers:
EREREL Transfer to Stage 1 76,020 (76,020) - -
BYERER Transfer to Stage 2 (344,783) 349,174 (4,391) -
EREMEES Transfer to Stage 3 (347,038) (93,907) 440,945 -
IAHESD ~ 42 [FHEED Origination, derecognition, further lending
E—FERRER and repayment (2,714,542) (78,721) (106,318) (2,899,581)
b Gz Write-offs - - (309,891) (309,891)
IME R H A= Foreign exchange and other movements (158,115) - (250) (158,365)
2022512831H At 31 December 2022 108,270,766 549,368 608,783 109,428,917
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3. BEBRREIEGE)
3.2 EEEK@E)
3.0.9 EFIEER (4B)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.9 Loss allowance (Continued)

1oE Corporate
PRERL FEER2 PEER3 At
ER4EEE EbR4EEE EbR4EgE Elg4EzE
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Gross Gross Gross Gross
LOBEET AR HK$’000 exposure exposure exposure exposure
2023F181H At1January 2023 86,794,020 12,656,210 1,940,354 101,390,584
EE N Transfers:
BREMERL Transfer to Stage 1 825,047 (820,113) (4,934) -
YRR Transfer to Stage 2 (4,489,852) 4,498,645 (8,793) -
BRERES Transfer to Stage 3 (60,863) (1,445,766) 1,506,629 -
IAHESD ~ 4R [FHEED Origination, derecognition, further lending
E—FEMREN and repayment 4,608,617 (2,277,320) (327,205) 2,004,092
b6z Write-offs - - (971,199) (971,199)
SNEE R L fth 23 Foreign exchange and other movements (46,002) 370 (425) (46,057)
2023F12831H At 31 December 2023 87,630,967 12,612,026 2,134,427 102,377,420
20221818 At1 January 2022 93,331,598 13,457,362 856,375 107,645,335
E=roN Transfers:
BYEERR] Transfer to Stage 1 1,289,871 (1,287,410) (2,461) -
ERERER Transfer to Stage 2 (4,974,097) 4,979,117 (5,020) -
BRERLS Transfer to Stage 3 (827,604) (823,332) 1,650,936 -
IGHESD ~ 4R LD Origination, derecognition, further lending
E—FEHNIER and repayment (1,858,687) (3,640,620) (287,024) (5,786,331)
/622 Write-offs - - (267,340) (267,340)
SME R E S Foreign exchange and other movements (167,061) (28,907) (5,112) (201,080)
2022128315 At 31 December 2022 86,794,020 12,656,210 1,940,354 101,390,584

HEAGEERERERITIER RUSERA A
TR U A E 2 BEEH T AR MEENG
WEHBTLAE  HPUATET=EBHEFHF AR
HEEWE N ER T 248(E78,113,0007 7T M fE
EEREREKI > B EEHEBEEEEERE
FEFF22022512 831 HB9630,000 8 i i1 = 5
2023512831 HA947,530,00078 7T (20224 : 42{E
77,973,000/8 TCHFSER 1SR EMEEL2 > BEHEE
5518 (R P ER 9 A% A E F 72,00078 7018 11 22 630,000
BIT) o D EEERINM EASHNFERER
ELBER o

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

Treasury portfolio, which consists of cash and balances with banks
and debt instruments at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income. Of which, debt instruments at fair value
through other comprehensive income with notional amount of
HKS$78,113,000 was transferred from Stage 2 to Stage 3 with an
increase in ECL allowance from HK$630,000 as at 31 December 2022
to HK$47,530,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022: transfer notional
amount of HK$77,973,000 from Stage 1 to Stage 2 with an increase in
ECL allowance from HK$72,000 to HK$630,000) due to stage transition.
Others are classified in Stage 1 without stage transition during the year.



3. HEEKRER(8) 3.
3.2 EEEK@E)
3.2.10 (BF5EE %

TRHTRI2023F &20224F12 831 B iR s 4R 14 E
FETE Z s HR DT 2 (EFEeE S5 ©

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.10 Debt securities

The table below presents an analysis of debt securities by rating agency
designation at 31 December 2023 and 2022.

UATHE
FERHEE
FAHMRE
Wt EREE LAER RS
Financial FlIERRY
assets at EREE
fair value Financial
X%  through other assets at
2023128318 At 31 December 2023 B®REE comprehensive amortised At
LOBITF 5 HK$’000 Trading assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 927,174 204,328 1,131,502
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 1,739,841 14,972,157 8,768,677 25,480,675
A-ZEA+ A-to A+ - 16,210,084 16,494,505 32,704,589
B EERA- Rated but lower than A- - 5,259,389 6,458,233 11,717,622
FETR Unrated - 1,395,483 7,487,563 8,883,046
At Total 1,739,841 38,764,287 39,413,306 79,917,434
MATE
srERHES)
HAHMEE
WENERMEE LUgERRR 2
Financial BIJ8RRY
assets at TREE
fairvalue Financial
X% through other assets at
20225 12831H At 31 December 2022 FE#EE  comprehensive amortised ast
LB idm HK$°000 Trading assets income cost Total
AAA AAA - 3,127,926 - 3,127,926
AA-ZEAA+ AA- to AA+ 562,161 10,208,949 6,440,778 17,211,888
A-EA+ A-to A+ - 15,630,609 15,806,959 31,437,568
BB BERA- Rated but lower than A- - 8,975,053 7,449,315 16,424,368
*BTR Unrated - - 3,288,444 3,288,444
At Total 562,161 37,942,537 32,985,496 71,490,194
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

exposure

(a) Geographical sectors

Loans and advances to customers by geographical area are

classified according to the location of the borrowers after taking

into account the transfer of risk. In general, risk transfer applies

when an advance is guaranteed by a party located in an area

which is different from that of the borrower.

The following table analyses gross loans and advances to

customers by geographical area.

20235 20226

12A31H 12H31H

At At

31December 31 December

LOBWF 3T HKS$000 2023 2022
BEREM MR Gross loans and advances to customers

_ - Hong Kong 119,759,434 115,359,550

_chEpo ~ Mainland China 7,546,867 6,387,927

_smpe ~ Macau 14,012,453 13,466,251

e - Others 1,730,722 1,316,507

143,049,476 136,530,235

202 KIRITEEARAT 2023555k
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk

exposure (Continued)

() 7% (b) Industry sectors
EEEA KB — 21T # R B s Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector classified
4E according to the usage of loans
LOBETFTlidm HK$°000 2023 2022
EEBFERNER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEswt Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEERE - Property development 6,908,262 5,194,440
—MERE - Property investment 23,767,506 21,406,840
S - Financial concerns 3,607,794 2,564,573
—REEL - Stockbrokers 1,240,252 842,926
—HEERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 4,791,670 4,825,599
— 5 - Manufacturing 1,684,066 1,954,317
—ERRERRE - Transport and transport equipment 2,662,549 2,247,726
— ERGEE) - Recreational activities 62,840 79,708
—EMRE - Information technology 29,760 22,048
—Hfh - Others 6,062,815 6,054,928
50,817,514 45,193,105
A Individuals
—-BEIEEEHE S - Loans for the purchase of flats in Home
A2 EERHE IR Ownership Scheme, Private Sector
TEEEHEEEFER Participation Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme 467,752 484,470
—BEEMETMEER - Loans for the purchase of other
residential properties 34,954,353 33,911,826
—ERREM - Credit card advances 3,841,087 3,674,222
—Hfh - Others 13,530,504 12,181,304
52,793,696 50,251,822
TEEEHANEDN Loans for use in Hong Kong 103,611,210 95,444,927
B55E (1) Trade finance (Note (1)) 5,624,799 5,752,611
EEBLUMERMER (F(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong (Note (2)) 33,813,467 35,332,697
143,049,476 136,530,235
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.2 Creditrisk (Continued)

3.2.11 Concentration of risks of financial assets with credit risk
exposure (Continued)

(b) Industry sectors (Continued)

Gross loans and advances to customers by industry sector classified
according to the usage of loans (Continued)

Note:

(1)  Trade finance shown above represents loans covering finance of
imports to Hong Kong, exports and re-exports from Hong Kong
and merchandising trade classified with reference to the relevant
guidelines issued by the HKMA.

(2) Loans for use outside Hong Kong include loans extended to
customers located in Hong Kong with the finance used outside
Hong Kong.

3.3 Marketrisk

Market risk is the risk of losses in assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet

positions arising from adverse movements in market rates and prices.

Market risk exposure for different types of transactions is managed
within various risk limits and guidelines approved by the Board, the
RMCC and the TIRC under the authority delegated from the Board.
Risk limits are set at the portfolio level as well as by products and
by different types of risks. The risk limits comprise a combination
of notional, stop-loss, sensitivity and value-at-risk (“VaR”) controls.
All trading positions are subject to daily mark-to-market valuation.
The Risk Management and Control Department (“RMCD”) within the
GRD, as an independent risk management and control unit, identifies,
measures, monitors and controls the risk exposures against approved
limits and initiates specific actions to ensure positions are managed
within an acceptable level. Any exceptions have to be reviewed and
sanctioned by the appropriate level of management of TIRC, RMCC or
the Board as stipulated in the relevant policies and procedures.

Banco Comercial de Macau, S.A. (“BCM”) and Dah Sing Bank (China)
Limited (“DSB China”), which are subsidiaries of DSB, run their treasury
functions locally under their own set of limits and policies and within
the market risk management framework set by DSB. The RMCD of
DSB oversees the market risk arising from the treasury operations of
BCM and DSB China to ensure that the risk controls put in place are
commensurate with their businesses and consistent with the Group
standards.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

The Group applies different risk management policies and procedures
in respect of the market risk arising from its trading and banking books.

3.3.1 Market risk arising from the trading book

In the Group’s trading book, market risk is associated with trading
positions in foreign exchange, debt securities, equity securities and
derivatives.

(a) Marketrisk measurement technique

In the management of market risk, the Group measures market
risks using various techniques commonly used by the industry
and control market risk exposures within established risk limits.
The major measurement techniques used to measure and control
market risk are outlined below.

(i) Value-at-risk

The Group applies a VaR methodology, which is a
statistically based estimate, to measure the potential loss
of its trading portfolio from adverse market movements. It
expresses as the maximum amount the Group might lose
given a certain level of confidence, which for the Group
is 99% for a one day holding period. There is therefore a
specified statistical probability that actual loss could be
greater than the VaR estimate. Hence, the use of VaR does
not prevent losses outside the VaR limits in the event of
extreme market movements.

The VaR model assumes a certain “holding period” (one
day in the case of the Group) until positions can be closed.
It is calculated based on the current mark-to-market value
of the positions, the historical correlation and volatilities
of the market risk factors over an observation period of
one calendar year using a method known as historical
simulation approach.

The VaR model is continuously validated by back-testing
the VaR results for trading positions. All back-testing
exceptions are investigated and back-testing results are
reported to senior management.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.1 Marketrisk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(a)

Market risk measurement technique (Continued)
(i) Value-at-risk (Continued)

As VaR constitutes an integral part of the Group’s market
risk control regime, VaR limits are established and reviewed
by the Board and its delegated committees at least
annually for all trading positions and allocated to business
units. Actual exposures, including VaR, are monitored
against limits on a daily basis by RMCD. Average daily VaR
for the Group for all trading activities during the year was
HK$3,022,000 (2022: HK$3,388,000).

(ii)  Stress tests

Stress tests provide an indication of the potential size of
losses that could arise in extreme conditions. The stress
tests carried out by RMCD include: risk factor stress testing,
where stress movements are applied to each risk category;
and scenario stress testing, which includes applying
possible stress events to specific positions or portfolios.
Besides, the expected shortfall of the trading portfolio
is measured to evaluate the expected size of extreme
trading loss beyond a specified confidence level and over a
longer holding period. In addition, reverse-stress tests are
performed as a useful tool to evaluate the maximum size of
market stress that the Group can endure before hitting the
prescribed tolerable levels.

The results of the stress tests are reviewed by the Board
and its delegated committees regularly.
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3.3 TiFAK (&)
3.1 JBEXSRZ H5EE (4E)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.1 Marketrisk arising from the trading book (Continued)

(2) mERARENE (b) VaR summary of trading portfolio
#FE2023F12831H1E121AR HZE2022F12831H L1218 8

12 months to 31 December 2023 12 months to 31 December 2022
T35 Ri= =RIE T BE =
LOEMSFoS);n HKS000 Average High Low Average High Low
4 R B Foreign exchange risk 2,504 4,030 291 1,660 3,113 262
IESEl Interest rate risk 1,393 4,822 469 2,393 5,844 511
IR kR All risks 3,022 5,997 703 3,388 6,132 653

3.3.2 JEEIRITIRZ FiG R

KREBZRITERT > THEREAREERANEH K
EmtRBEZRFE -

3.3.2 Market risk arising from the banking book

In the Group’s banking book, market risk is predominantly associated

with positions in debt and equity securities.
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(a) Market risk measurement technique

Within the risk management framework and policies established
by the Board and its delegated committees, various limits,
guidelines and management action triggers are established to
control the exposures of the Group’s banking book activities
to foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, and price risk. In
particular, position and sensitivity limits and price triggers are
in place to control the price risk of the investment securities. In
addition, sensitivity analysis and stress testing (including reverse-
stress testing) covering shocks and shifts in interest rates on the
Group’s on- and off-balance sheet positions and credit spreads
on the Group’s investment securities are regularly performed
to gauge the market risk inherent in the Group’s banking
book portfolios and manage it against the established control
measures.

VaR methodology is not used to measure and control the market
risk of the banking book.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.2 Marketrisk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio
(i) Foreign exchange risk

The Group has limited net foreign exchange exposure
(except for USD, Macau Pataca (“MOP”) and Renminbi
(“RMB”)) as foreign exchange positions and foreign
currency balances arising from customer transactions are
normally matched against other customer transactions or
transactions with the market. Foreign exchange exposure
of the non-trading portfolio in respect of MOP and RMB
arise mainly from the operation of subsidiaries in Mainland
China and Macau. The net exposure positions including
the trading and non-trading portfolios, both by individual
currency and in aggregate, are managed by the Treasury
and Global Markets Division of the Group on a daily basis
within established foreign exchange limits.

Long-term foreign currency funding, to the extent that
this is used to fund Hong Kong dollar assets, or vice versa,
is normally matched using foreign exchange forward
contracts to reduce exposure to foreign exchange risk.

At 31 December 2023, if HKS had weakened by 100 basis
points against RMB with all other variables held constant,
the profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$34 million higher (2022: HK$27 million higher), mainly
as a result that the foreign exchange gain on translation of
RMB denominated financial assets outweighed the foreign
exchange losses on translation of RMB denominated
financial liabilities.

Conversely, if HKS had strengthened by 100 basis points
against RMB with all other variables held constant, the
profit after tax for the year and equity would have been
HK$34 million lower (2022: HK$27 million lower).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.2 Marketrisk arising from the banking book (Continued)

(b)

Sensitivity analysis of non-trading portfolio (Continued)

(ii)  Interest rate risk

The framework adopted by the Group to measure interest
rate risk exposures arising from its banking book positions
is consistent with the guidelines set out by the HKMA in
its Supervisory Policy Manual (“SPM”) on Interest Rate
Risk in the Banking Book (“IRRBB”). From an earnings
perspective, interest rate risk is the risk that the net income
arising from future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
From an economic value perspective, interest rate risk is
the risk that the economic value of a financial instrument
will undergo adverse impact because of changes in market
interest rates. The Group takes on interest rate risk from
both perspectives in the banking book. As such, the interest
margins or net interest income and the economic value
of the capital may increase or decrease as a result of such
changes or in the event that unexpected movements
arise. The Board and the Asset and Liability Management
Committee (“ALCO”) set limits on the level of mismatch of
interest rate repricing that may be undertaken and monitor
the interest rate impacts through scenario analysis and
stress testing regularly.

At 31 December 2023, if HKS and USS market interest
rates had experienced a 200 basis points parallel up shock
under the HKMA’s standard parallel up scenario, with
other variables held constant, the impact on earnings over
the next 12 months and the impact on economic value of
equity would have been HK$201 million higher and HKS$775
million lower respectively (2022: HK$335 million higher and
HK$670 million lower respectively).

The method and assumptions used in the above sensitivity

analysis on foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk are broadly
on the same basis for both 2022 and 2023.

In addition to foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk, the Group’s

investments in debt securities and equity securities are also exposed

to risks arising from other factors. Consequently, the value of such

investments could change significantly depending on a variety of

factors including liquidity risk, market sentiment and other events that

might affect individual or portfolios of exposures.
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3. BEBRREIEGE) 3.
3.3 THiZE (&)

3.3.3 SMNEmESE

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

TRE A ERZEEH D RLUBEEEIIE The table below summarises the Group’s financial assets and
THEEREE  UKEEBBRINGERETF liabilities as well as off-balance sheet net notional positions and credit
BEREEREZEEE - commitments translated into equivalent HKS amounts, categorised by
currency.

2023512A31H At 31 December 2023 B g5 WP AEH i ay
LEEFT AT HKS'000 HKD usb MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
e RITRITHVAEER Cash and balances with banks 7,825,273 1,925,695 488,870 1,456,791 4,699,141 16,395,770
ERTIERERNIS Placements with banks maturing between

HER one and twelve months 496,027 271,124 - 2,230,640 153,423 3,151,814
?%T’E*%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ% Trading securities 1,739,841 - - - - 1,739,841

ATHES B EHES) Financial assets at fair value through

ET?\?&!ﬁﬁEﬁmﬁ'ﬁE profit or loss - - - 8,216 - 8,216
fTESBIA Derivative financial instruments 98,744 3,190,255 - 43,311 233,839 3,566,149
XIE“#&HWEE Advances and other accounts 114,604,375 12,751,407 7,789,057 8,794,149 5,174,966 149,113,954

UATEEEHEEA Financial assets at fair value through other

Eﬂﬁ@%ﬁ@ﬁm@a comprehensive income 7,888,098 31,448,863 863,918 88,181 235,882 40,525,842
DU AT RN SREE Financial assets at amortised cost 5,499,662 30,230,626 1,577,744 1,887,122 177,224 39,372,378
SREER Total financial assets 138,152,920 79,818,570 10,719,589 14,508,410 10,674,475 253,873,964
&ff Liabilities
TR Deposits from banks 39,775 1,954,100 - 490,697 4n 2,485,044
fTE&mIa Derivative financial instruments 47,690 1,036,182 - 12,231 183316 1,279,419
KIERBRENERE Trading liabilities 99,853 - - - - 99,853
BRER Deposits from customers 137,684,695 40,385,267 8,818,391 12,005,523 8,339,822 207,233,698
BEINEDE Certificates of deposit issued - 2,428,028 - - - 2,428,028
BEER Subordinated notes - 50916,645 - - - 5916,645
HAERE RiBE Other accounts and accruals 3,450,439 3,925,255 288,090 302,757 54,113 8,020,654
SHaEAH Total financial liabilities 141,322,452 55,645,471 9,106,481 12,811,208 8,577,123 227,463,341
BEABRAKARE Net on-balance sheet positions (3,169,532) 24,173,093 1,613,108 1,697,202 2,096,752 26,410,623
BEBERIMGELEFE  Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 47,035  (22,348,398) - (1,436,748)  (1,798,634)  (25,536,745)
EE&E Credit commitments 55,122,860 7,059,396 1,841,877 4,697,483 50,871 68,772,487
* BESBERIIMNIELRFEETEANREARE * Off-balance sheet net notional positions represent the net notional

BN EEF R INE

EERITTE TEMRIRFERE o

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments which are

principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.

RITRITERAIRAT) 20235FF4R
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.3 Currency risk (Continued)

2022%12A318 At 31 December 2022 BT e P NG 2t At
LOEEF A HK$'000 HKD usp MOP RMB Others Total
BE Assets
RERIERTHER Cash and balances with banks 9,396,640 401,962 521,291 2,294,409 5,186,578 17,800,880
ERMZEDERRE Placements with banks maturing between

W one and twelve months 5,839,272 - - 2,217,134 500,159 8,616,565
BERBRRNES Trading securities 562,161 - - - - 562,161
WATErEEHES Financial assets at fair value through

STABRNSEHEE profit or loss - - - 9,303 - 9,303
TE&mIA Derivative financial instruments 153,112 3,568,584 - 2,716 176,824 3,901,236
REETREMKE Advances and other accounts 110,166,410 13,449,728 7,846,780 8,453,351 2,796,348 142,712,617
WATESEEEEHHA Financial assets at fair value through other

Et2ENENEHEE comprehensive income 9,061,417 28,956,363 324,521 131,374 144176 38,617,851
DU ATRNSREE Financial assets at amortised cost 4154888 25,098,193 1,141,093 2,355,588 176,128 32,926,090
SRBEAT Total financial assets 139333900  71474,830 9833885 15,523,875 8980213 245,146,703
& Liabilities
B1TEA Deposits from banks 422,926 3,689,567 - - - 4,112,493
fTE£MTIA Derivative financial instruments 59,048 828,542 - 11,551 98,496 997,637
FIERAEENERE Trading liabilities 730,491 - - - - 730,491
BRER Deposits from customers 129,098,151 39,154,306 9,256,780 13,042,834 9,240,130 199,792,201
BETHEE Certificates of deposit issued - 4,228,983 - - - 4,228,983
BEER Subordinated notes - 3,801,495 - - - 3,801,495
EfERERTER Other accounts and accruals 3,001,043 4,317,747 189,629 316,402 49,129 7,873,950
SEIBRAS Total financial liabilities 133,311,659 56,020,640 9446409 13,370,787 9,387,755 221,537,250
BESRRNEERH Net on-balance sheet positions 6,022,241  15454,190 387,476 2,153,088 (407,542) 23,609,453
BEABRIMNIALEEE"  Off-balance sheet net notional positions* 16463860  (15.923,280) - (1,099,191) 647,607 88,996
EEAE Credit commitments 59,473,558 7,503,748 2,160,921 5,092,322 376,541 74,607,090
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3. RBIBEREIEE) 3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 TIBEE (@) 3.3 Market risk (Continued)

3.3.4 FIERE 3.3.4 Interest rate risk

TERMIIAERZFERE - KNBIEAERRZ The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to interest rate risks.
BRESETEC EREBEREE ) UTREEEX Included in the table are the Group’s financial assets and liabilities at
HeEIHAE UUREE R %) H1E ° carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or

maturity dates.

3fEAME
3fER 1 1ENE
FUF Over 55 SELE THE

20235128310 At 31 December 2023 3 months 3months  Over1year Over  Non-interest Bt
WEET AT HKS000 or less to1year to 5 years 5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
HERITRITAVEER Cash and balances with banks 15,549,282 - - - 846,488 16,395,770
ERTIELERMES Placements with banks maturing between

HER one and twelve months 1,172,881 1,978,933 - = - 3,151,814
FIERBRGENES Trading securities 1,725,135 7,293 7,413 - - 1,739,841
UATHEEE AHES) Financial assets at fair value through

SABGNEREE profit or loss - - - - 8,216 8,216
fTE£MIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,566,149 3,566,149
BIBEHRAMERE Advances and other accounts 129,093,406 7,390,531 5,604,257 253,581 6,772,179 149,113,954
WATESEEEEHEA Financial assets at fair value through

HEtrERGENEREE other comprehensive income 5,882,922 7,989,493 21,376,780 3,515,092 1,761,555 40,525,842
D AT RN EREE Financial assets at amortised cost 4,855,651 7,644,867 19,744,598 7,125,270 1,99 39,372,378
sEmEELH Total financial assets 158279277 25,011,117 46,733,048 10,893,943 12,956,579 253,873,964
af Liabilities
HITER Deposits from banks 2,472,238 6,107 - - 6,699 2,485,044
fTEemTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 1,279,419 1,279,419
KIERBRENGE Trading liabilities 99,853 - - - - 99,853
ERER Deposits from customers 153,408,394 37,670,653 2,634,371 - 13,520,280 207,233,698
BEINERE Certificates of deposit issued 796,144 1,631,884 - - - 2,428,028
BERS Subordinated notes 1,754,856 - 4,161,789 - - 5916,645
EftRERTER Other accounts and accruals 487,347 101,404 326,627 149,162 6,056,114 8,020,654
SRBESH Total financial liabilities 159,018,832 39,410,048 1,122,787 149,162 21,762,512 227,463,341
FISHEZESS (RIGEE)*  Totalinterest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)*  (739,555)  (14,398,931) 39,610,261 10,744,781
FRTE TRz A Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 30,131,970 (395,558)  (17,669,399)  (12,067,013)
FIEHREESH (%)% Totalinterest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 29,392,415  (14,794,489) 21,940,862  (1,322,232)
* RCHEF WA EENREEEBERNEEMN * Unadjusted interest sensitivity gap is determined based on positions of

BENHEEET - KRR EBREEEFA on-balance sheet assets and liabilities. Adjusted interest sensitivity gap
TLREF R R IEMETHRETE TRESH89 takes into account the effect of interest rate derivative contracts entered

Ko into to mitigate interest rate risk.

212 KIRITEEBRAR 2023FF5R
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3.3 THiZE (&)
3.3.4 FEEGE (4)

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.3 Marketrisk (Continued)

3.3.4 Interest rate risk (Continued)

3EAME
3(EA FlIE 1N E
FUF Over E56 SELE THE

202F12831H At 31 December 2022 3months 3months  Over1year Over  Non-interest =6
LOBETF AR HKS'000 or less to Lyear to5years 5years Bearing Total
BE Assets
RERIERTHER Cash and balances with banks 16,088,163 - - - L7277 17,800,880
ERMIZEDERRE Placements with banks maturing between

WET one and twelve months 5,856,264 2,760,301 - - - 8,616,565
RIERBRENES Trading securities 545,165 6,438 10,558 - - 562,161
WATErEEHES Financial assets at fair value through

STABRNSEHEE profit or loss - - - - 9,303 9,303
fTEERTE Derivative financial instruments - - - - 3,901,236 3,901,236
REETREMKE Advances and other accounts 122,129,946 4,962,885 8,510,503 2,910,738 4198545 142,712,617
WATESEEEEHHA Financial assets at fair value through

Et2ENENEHEE other comprehensive income 6,690,905 6,158,337 20,117,460 4,975,835 675314 38,617,851
DS ATRNEREE Financial assets at amortised cost 2,969,264 3210135 19,153,704 7,590,998 1989 32,926,090
THEEAH Total financial assets 154279707 17,098,096 47,792,205 15477571  10499,104 245,146,703
= Liabilities
B1TER Deposits from banks 3411424 - - - 701,069 4,112,493
fTE£MIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - 997,637 997,637
BERZRENEE Trading liabilities 730,491 - - - - 730,491
REEA Deposits from customers 132723417 48,958,085 2,406,598 - 15704101 199,792,201
BEINETE Certificates of deposit issued 814,917 3,049,142 364,924 - - 4,228,983
BERS Subordinated notes - - 3,801,495 - - 3,801,495
EfERERTER Other accounts and accruals 738,548 101,529 295,877 101,148 6,636,848 7,873,950
SEIBRAS Total financial liabilities 138,418,797 52,108,756 6,368,894 101,148 24,039,655 221,537,250
FISHEERES (RGEE)*  Totalinterest sensitivity gap (unadjusted)* 15860910  (35,010,660) 40923331 15376423
RETETRRZ S Effect of interest rate derivative contracts 29,990,577 689,839  (16,153,692)  (14,526,724)
FISHEEES (CHBE)*  Totalinterest sensitivity gap (adjusted)* 45851487 (34,320,821) 24,769,639 849,699

Dah Sing Banking Group Limited Annual Report 2023



214

3. MBRREE(GE
3.4 REBETER

MEBEERBHIERERREETITERTES
ZEANBERTHMENEERENMRIR S
MEERITHREE -

4.1 FEETRGEIEREF

rERZRBERIEEESRHE > SERTE)
EEARERBEREZRBMRMERET > U
ENHENEBEERERZTREESE ) - &
EREMERTERIEE BB EERIEEX
(TRBEEMERLLEER ) RZOBZLEE (T2
BRI RERTERRBESRIZEEE
A o REBMPRBANRSABEEET LR RZ
DEZIEEESIEERBERND R 525%K%
75% °

5 *EEEREEASER(EEBRTM
IM-1URB Mt REREER E ) R(EEBRTM)
LM-2T T2 ER B AR B IR E Rk BT <
REMER IR RAREEER - (BEHR
FMIM-1EEREE B ERFKMAURER
SHEIRITRBIE AR Z 5% > T(EEBRFM)
M2/ A BB ERRITEEEZEE ((BERE
B )Pz BEREMERAMGEE > 5ER
{ESRITRUREM IR E IR E -

RYBTRRERNEREEFTHIEZEERK

\

BEREE  BUEREAEENEERGRERES
EEETPERARERE AEENBEEREE

EEZEETHRNAERZERRERNES
KL~ MEBRKKER » URH—ZRIEER
PEEMEFILR « OB R LR R EIHAEECR
ZRBtRABRESFFEREE - It BERS
BEEZSEERAYIEERERNEREEN
RAE ISRV RAR MRIETE - AEEBILE AR
EE5EEENRBAREEEE » WAL ELR
B ELRFRERTRAKTHNREESZ USRS
HEEMR - MERRKTSHEEES KR
MRRzHBER MERRRSEEERRE
A EREERFENARKO - TFETREIE
DTRBITAIE o BTS2 iR A R IR A R E 1
Rz BERS » WAHBRRNERBERURR
HEEMFILE « ROBERILERNERER - 78
BMERESERESEERMZ DM

I

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to fund increases in
assets or meet its payment obligations associated with its financial
liabilities when they fall due without incurring unacceptable loss.

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process

The Group manages its liquidity on a prudent basis with the objective
to comply with the statutory standards and to ensure that there is
an adequate liquidity and funding capacity to meet normal business
operations and to withstand severe liquidity stresses. The Group has
adopted the Liquidity Maintenance Ratio (“LMR”) and the Core Funding
Ratio (“CFR”) as the regulatory standards specified by the HKMA for
reporting on the Group’s liquidity position. During the period, the Group
had maintained sufficiently high LMR and CFR well above the statutory
minimum of 25% and 75% respectively.

Moreover, the Group has maintained a sound liquidity risk management
framework in accordance with the HKMA’s requirements set forth in the
SPM LM-1 on “Regulatory Framework for Supervision of Liquidity Risk”
and the SPM LM-2 on “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity Risk
Management”. The SPM LM-1 is to provide the approach adopted by
the HKMA for supervising and assessing the liquidity risk of banks while
the SPM LM-2 is developed to implement the liquidity sound principles
formulated by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (“Basel
Committee”) to strengthen the liquidity risk management standards of
banks.

Liquidity risk management is governed by the policy and framework
approved by the Board, which delegates to the Group’s ALCO to oversee
liquidity risk management. The ALCO regularly reviews the Group’s loan
and deposit mix and changes, funding requirements and projections,
and monitors a set of liquidity risk metrics, including the LMR, CFR and
maturity mismatch on an ongoing basis. In addition, material changes
in the liquidity risk metrics together with any corresponding proposed
mitigation actions will be reviewed by ALCO. Appropriate limits or
triggers on these risk metrics are set and sufficient liquid assets are
held to ensure that the Group can maintain a sufficient level of stable
funding to support its asset growth. The Treasury and Global Markets
Division is responsible for the day-to-day management of funding and
liquidity position while the GRD is responsible for the measurement
and monitoring of liquidity risk exposures on a daily and monthly basis,
and also conducting liquidity analysis and stress testing. The Financial
Control Division handles regulatory reporting in relation to liquidity risk,
and coordinates the regular forecast of loans and deposits, and LMR,
CFR, budget and analysis relating to liquidity and funding management.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)
3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

The Group places considerable importance to establish a diversified
and stable funding. While customer deposits form the primary portion
of the Group’s funding, certificates of deposit and medium term notes
are issued at opportune times in order to lengthen the funding maturity
and optimise asset and liability maturities. Short-term interbank
deposits are taken on a limited basis with the aim of maintaining the
presence in the market and the Group is a net lender to the interbank
market.

The monitoring and reporting take the forms of cash flow
measurements and projections for different time horizons, including
the next day, week and month, which are key periods for liquidity
management. The starting point for those projections is an analysis of
the contractual maturity of the financial assets and liabilities as well as
the expected maturity of these assets and liabilities based on historical
observations. The cash flow projections also take into account the
historical behaviour of off-balance sheet items, including undrawn
lending commitments and contingent liabilities such as standby letters
of credit and guarantees. The Group always maintains an adequate
liquidity cushion, which is composed of high quality marketable
securities with sufficient market depth to meet its liquidity needs at all
times, even under adverse market conditions. Eligible securities in the
cushion mainly have low risk and simple structure and can be readily
sold or used as collateral to obtain funds within a short period of time.
Debt securities held are marked to the market on daily basis to ensure
their market liquidity.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.1 Liquidity risk management process (Continued)

B8AT In HK$ million
20234 20224
12831H 12H31H
AEpr4E As at Asat
Internal EAcAER| 31 December 31 December
categorisation Basic Criteria 2023 2022
F14R R EBBENRE LN « 2B RI/T « BRAEFAS K 13,202 11,331
NEBAETIIRRZ ERIEEZR0%NEBES
Tier1 Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, relevant international
organisations and public sector entities with a 0% risk weight
under the Basel Il Standardised Approach
F2AMR RIEEEBBENREEZNBT « ZBERIRT - AEEURIFE 13,594 7,859
R TR R 2 AR E R 20% B BE 5
Tier 2A Marketable securities issued or guaranteed by government,
multilateral development banks, public sector entities and non-
financial corporate entities with a 20% risk weight under the
Basel Il Standardised Approach
2Bk 2 OAFRESHREL A EER BB EEF L RPN RBE E 46,973 46,384
S RIIERITHRRZ EMBEERS
Tier 2B Other marketable securities issued or guaranteed by corporate

or financial institutions with at least an investment grade and
those securities that may be included in “liquefiable assets”

under the liquidity maintenance ratio

REBEMETEDR - SREERESEERM
B~ —RTIBEEBY Rt E ME TR 5 UET
EREMRREZBZ T HER TEERE
FEBRI-RINRFERER  SEEEHK
SRR KB ENERBREA N R LR
Bz NE R IHIER « REBRERESEE S
g s EHES B 2 RN ERIEN A
BIRERTBZIEF (PINETRIREH R 7
ERFRItEREERRZEE) - SFETR
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REEREN - ERRAABZRZRAFRAE
TRREBERTZREATEAMS - NREE
ME=H2RFEE - AEEZMBADNEES
RZBER T AEEERBESH R UENEE
2 AEEZTTETARZ RS RINESH R
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RAUKRGH - BRAEBETETARZHTZ
R RZHHER - BRI m BB EER FE5T
AREERRE o

RITRITER AR AT 2023FF5R

The Group performs stress testing regularly, which includes an
institution-specific crisis scenario, a general market crisis scenario and
a combination of these crisis scenarios in order to assess the potential
impact on its liquidity position under stressed market conditions. The
Group maintains a set of early warning indicators, including qualitative
and quantitative factors and involving both internal and market
indicators that help identify any emerging risk at an early stage. The
Group maintains a contingency plan that sets out its strategies for
dealing with liquidity stresses and the procedures for making up cash
flow deficits (e.g. conducting repo transactions or liquidation of assets
held for liquidity risk management purpose) in emergency situations.
An annual drill test is conducted and the contingency plan is reviewed
at least annually to ensure it remains sound and effective. Intragroup
transactions are conducted on arm’s length basis and are treated the
same way as other third party transactions for the purpose of cash
flow projection under normal scenario. Subsidiaries of the Group are
required to manage their liquidity positions to meet their needs under
both normal and stressed conditions. Most of the Group’s derivative
transactions are exchange rate contracts and interest rate contracts.
Under the terms of our collateral arrangements with derivative
counterparties, collateral movements are not linked with the credit
ratings of the Group.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

3.4 Liquidity risk (Continued)

3.4.2 FIHFE T 3.4.2 Maturity analysis
TEROMAEERREHREEHASOEEAES The table below analyses the Group’s assets and liabilities into relevant
P AMELIA (WEA) 2 FerRRAErBE KR maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the end of the
I=(E reporting period to the contractual maturity date or, where applicable,
the earliest callable date.
AR E
fB3fdF  3fERML
FUF F1f 1EME
HEEE  1EAELT  3monthsor Over EE  SENE

2023%12831H At 31 December 2023 Repayable Upto lesshutover  3months  Overdyear Over  fEEHE ait
LB HK$'000 on demand 1month Imonth  tolyear  to5years 5years  Indefinite Total
BE Assets
RERTRTIEES Cash and balances with banks 2,798,656 13,597,114 - - - - - 16,395,770
HRTIZ1ERRA Placements with banks maturing between

R one and twelve months - - 1,172,880 71,398 1,901,536 - - 3,151,814
F (R AR Trading securities - 199564 925,571 7,93 7,413 - - 1,739,881

AATEtEERES Financial assets at fair value through

af/\iam VEHEE profitor loss - - - - - - 8,216 8,216
fifeMIA Derivative financial instruments - 391,222 168,773 461,233 1108949 1435972 - 3,566,149
%IE‘*#&H ] Advances and other accounts 7,906,144 20,568,181 8,765,111 18,835,778 47,061,097 43,855,800 2,121,843 149,113,954

WATEHEEAESEA  Financial assets at fair value through other

Ami@uﬁzmmﬁmﬂéé comprehensive income - 2862699 2,042 8,100,081 22,262,163 3515092 1761555 40,525,842
DESHATERNEREE  Financial assets at amortised cost - M7698 1279847 7,095,630 20,521,940  7,125271 1,99 39,372,378
BEnaRE Investment in an associate - - - - - - 225131 2215131
HEEHERSE Investments in jointly controlled entities - - - - - - 129946 129946
BE Goodwil - - - - - - 713,451 713,451
B EE Intangible assets - - - - - - 69,715 69,715
NENEMETEE Premises and other fixed assets - - - - - - 2,813,187 2,813,187
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 761,604 761,604
fiEEE Currentincome tax assets - - - 1273 - - - 1213
FithEgE Deferred income tax assets - - - - 165,823 - - 165,823
BER: Total assets 10,704,800 40,266,478 14,736,434 35,478,686 93,028,921 55,932,135 10,596,640 260,744,094